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REEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. DONG Li (Chairman)

Ms. YIN Haiyan

Ms. HONG Yu (appointed on 6 April 2023)
Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CAQO Yixiong Alan

Mr. LAU Chi Kit
Mr. LU Zhigiang

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee
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Mr. LAU Chi Kit

Mr. LU Zhigiang
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Dr. DONG Li

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan
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Dr. DONG Li (Chairman)
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Company Secretary

Mr. CHOW Kam Keung, Albert
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Corporate Information 2@ &

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL
SHARE REGISTRAR

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

HEFERNELEE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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Bank of China Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
China CITIC Bank International Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited BERITERAE
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd. LB ERERIRTERAD
The Bank of East Asia Limited RIIRITARRE
China Construction Bank Corporation FRERHIRI TR B R AE
United Overseas Bank Limited RERTABRE

China Guangfa Bank Co., Ltd. EEIRITRINDBIRAE]
Citibank, N.A. TEFEIRTT
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Leoch International Technology

and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are pleased to

Financial Highlights
MFBHEE

BrEEEMARAR ((F28) RENEBAF
(WerE L) MASH T BREE

Limited (the “Company”)

announce the following financial highlights:

Year ended 31 December

B#E+-_HA=+—HLEE

2023 2022 Change
g S — B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARETF T
Revenue & 13,471,235 12,845,859 +4.9%
Gross profit EF] 1,943,707 1,594,774 +21.9%
Profit for the year NEEEH] 567,836 502,744 +12.9%
Profit attributable to owners of ISYNCSIEZ 2= PNl
the parent ekl 535,372 481,075 +11.3%
Basic earnings per share, SRERRF
in RMB (NE¥5T) 0.39 0.35
Proposed final dividend per share EESRFABKRE
(HK cents) CBAL) 7.0 10.0
Paid interim dividend per share BRI ERPEKRE
(HK cents) G 4.0 Nil %
Profit attributable to
Revenue Gross profit Profit for the year owners of the parent
Weas ER REFE R F A RER ARG F
AR ARI AR Jui
15,000,000 2,000,000 1,043,707 600,000 so7.836 600,000
13,471,235 535,372
12,845,859 502,744
1,594,774 500,000 500,000 481,075
12,000,000 1,600,000
400,000 400,000
9,000,000 1,200,000
300,000 300,000
6,000,000 800,000
200,000 200,000
3,000,000 400,000
100,000 100,000
0 0 0 0
2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023
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Financial Highlights B 7@ 2

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Period”), the
Group’s audited profit attributable to owners of the parent
amounted to approximately RMB535.4 million.

Basic earnings per share was RMBO0.39 (2022: RMBO0.35),
the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 1,362,202,493 (2022: 1,357,854,935) in issue during the
year.

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
recommend the payment of a final dividend of 7 cents for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: 10 cents). The
Company had declared and paid an interim dividend of 4
cents during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The register of members of the Company will be closed:

(i)  from Friday, 10 May 2024, to Thursday, 16 May 2024,
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be registered. In order to be eligible to attending and
vote at the AGM, Shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/
F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Thursday, 9 May 2024; and

(i)  from Monday, 3 June 2024 to Wednesday, 5 June
2024 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitlement to receive the
final dividend, during which period no transfer of Shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for receiving the
final dividend, Shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited. at 17/
F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 31 May 2024.
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WORDS FROM THE CHAIRMAN

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Leoch
International Technology Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group” “Leoch”), | hereby
present Leoch audited report on its annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2023 (the “Period”) for shareholders’

review.
Global Overview

The size of the worldwide lead acid and Lithium battery
market was estimated at USD104.31 billion in 2023, and
between 2024 and 2030, it is projected to increase at a
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 15.8%. The oil and
gas, chemical, and healthcare industries heavily rely on UPS
devices for uninterrupted power supply, which is anticipated
to drive the battery market’s expansion. Because lead acid
batteries are inexpensive and very reliable, they are utilized
in crucial applications. The growing demand for electric
vehicles in the U.S. and Mexico, on account of favorable
government regulations, rising sales of electric vehicles
rising along with government efforts to reduce the carbon
footprint by deploying eco-friendly products, is expected
to augment the market growth during the forecast period.
Asia Pacific held the greatest revenue share of over 65% in
2023 and dominated the worldwide market. Grid storage,
home storage, and commercial storage are all predicted
to rise significantly due to a number of causes, including
urbanization, industrialization, and rising disposable income
in emerging nations, along with legislation that encourage
investment in the area.

In terms of revenue, lead acid batteries accounted for the
second largest share on the global battery market in 2023.
The share of the market is projected to be supported by
increased demand for Rechargeable batteries, e.g. starting,
lighting and ignition switch battery in the automobile sector
over the forecast period. The automobile sector led the global
battery market with a market share of over 50% for lead acid
battery in 2023.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement £ E#RS

The application segment of the market in 2023 saw industrial
batteries hold the largest share of 35.85%, primarily due to
the growing need for energy storage and backup systems in
a variety of industries while the use of small-sized batteries in
consumer electronics and portable devices is anticipated to
support market expansion. Automotive batteries ranked as
the second-largest application sector, holding 34.62% of the
global market share. Over the course of the growth periods,
it is expected that the rise in passenger car manufacturing
in developing nations like China, India, Brazil, and Russia will
contribute to the market growth.

There have been significant breakthroughs brought about
by the ongoing research and development of batteries,
particularly in the domains of energy density, cycle life,
and safety. Industrial batteries are now more economical,
environmentally friendly, and efficient thanks to these
technical advancements. Market for batteries has and is
expected to grow significantly on a global scale due to a
confluence of factors that highlight the increasing demand
for stable and sustainable power solutions across various
industries.

Leoch Battery By Product line

Group Revenue reported at RMB13,471 million representing
a growth of 4.9% primarily accounted for by Start Battery
successful market expansion in EMEA region in addition to
sustaining our leading position for both Backup Power and
Motive Battery product lines

8 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2023
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Backup Power Product line had reported a sale revenue of
RMB6,284 million representing 46.6% of our total portfolio.
Increased demand for uninterrupted power supply (UPS), the
growth in power outages, and increasing need for reliable
power supply across many industries due to society’s
increasing reliance on technology and digital infrastructure.
In recent years, power outages brought on by natural
disasters, extreme weather, and deteriorating electrical
infrastructure have increased in frequency. The disruption
of vital services and considerable financial losses can result
from these outages. Data centers need a consistent and
dependable power source to prevent data loss and sustain
uninterrupted operations. The expansion of cloud computing
and digital services has increased the number of data
centers. As a result, it is anticipated that demand for backup
power will increase throughout due to the rising demand for
uninterrupted power supply.

Start Battery Product Line recorded its sale revenue of
RMB3,687 million, representing 27.4% of our Revenue
share. Our development of technology has helped reduce
the idling time of engines, by automatically shutting down
and restarting the internal combustion engine of the
vehicle, thus reducing the fuel consumption and emissions.
Increasing demand for start-stop technology by automotive
manufacturers to reduce the CO:2 emission to meet
government standards of emissions is also accelerating
growth of the start-stop technology. Rampant integration
of new technologies to enhance fuel-efficiency of start-
stop technology is further boosting growth of the start-stop
battery market.

Chairman’s Statement F[ERE
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Chairman’s Statement £ E#RS

Motive battery Product Line’s 2023 revenue was reported
at RMB1,209 million, representing 9% of our revenue
share. The robust plan changes on our supply chain and
the burgeoning drive to shift to cleaner, more reliable, and
sustainable energy sources have been the key contributor for
our motive battery growth. Further, the concerns on global
economic slowdown, the Impact of war in Ukraine, and
the Risks of stagflation with possible market scenarios are
pressing the need for us to re-deploy our market strategies
by countries. We are expecting a healthy CAGR primarily
propelled by staggering demand from emerging markets.
Proliferating demand for smart storage, decentralized
networks and intelligent automation, in flourishing fast
developing nations are few key indicators to sustain the
growth.

Recycling Battery Product line had reported a revenue of
RMB2,024 million, representing 15% of our portfolio, we
foresee this industry to grow rapidly owing to increasing
popularity of EVs and renewable energy storage systems
leading to a higher demand for batteries, and, in turn,
driving the need for recycling. Governments globally
are implementing regulations to promote the recycling
of batteries and reduce environmental impact, which is
expected to further boost industry growth.

Leoch Battery By Regions

Due to the fastest-growing markets in the EV, urbanization,
industrialization, and renewable energy sectors, Asia Pacific
led the regional category in 2023. The main drivers of the
region’s supremacy are its rapid industrial expansion and
the need for energy efficiency from major nations like China,
India, and Australia to lower expensive energy-related
expenses and other environmental concerns.
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China Region had recorded its revenue of RMB8,158 million
accounting for 60% Revenue share via capitalizing on the
trend of change in the automobile industry, in addition with
our recent integration and expansion of Tianjin JV’s venture
with GS Yuasa to support our sales expansion, and also the
ecology is gradually improving, with a complete industrial
chain being built. With almost 900 gigawatt-long periods of
assembling limit or 77% of the worldwide aggregate, China
is home to six of the world’s 10 greatest battery creators.
Behind China’s battery predominance is its upward mix
across the remainder of the EV store network, from mining
the metals to delivering the EVs. China dominance will be
here to stay for the short term till it addresses the issues
within the domestic industry, such as lopsided supply chain
development, an imbalance in supply and demand, local
protectionism, and quality inconsistencies are hampering the
healthy growth of the industry.

Oversea Markets’'s Revenue was reported at RMB5,313
million, being 40% of our revenue share. North America
and EMEA were the primary contributors of these growing
markets following Asia Pacific owing to powerful expansion
in the industrial automotive sector. In line with our ongoing
capacity investment in Mexico, and given the presence and
accumulation of global manufacturers like Exide, Odyssey,
and Continental Battery Company, this will result in strong
potential and capacities of batteries available in the region.
Increasing requirements for industrial vehicles will augment
the growth of the industrial batteries market in the region.
The U.S. landscape of electric vehicles (EVs) and batteries is
dynamic and complex, hence it will continue to remain a key
player in the region contributing to the growth.

Overall, in addition to technological advancements,
Battery’s market outlook will also be influenced by the
industry’s growing commitment to sustainability and energy
optimization, capacity consolidation, and the integration of
novel concepts. Leoch’s Battery is positioned to revolutionize
the energy and automotive industries by enabling a
smooth transition to a more integrated and cleaner energy
ecosystem.
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Chairman’s Statement £ E#RS

PROSPECT & CHALLENGES

Many different players in the worldwide battery value chain
are showing interest in Leoch Battery due to its excellent
financial and competitive position. The company has
developed the five-year expansion program, which includes
pursuing strategic projects including our New Mexico
battery plant commissioning to arrest the US and Europe
untapped opportunities pipeline leveraging on its proximity
and improved logistics lead time advantages. Where else in
APAC region, the ongoing expansion on Plant capacity for
both Malaysia is aimed to resolve the accumulated order
backlogs, as for Vietnam, the ongoing lithium production
plant expansion investment in addition to existing Anhui
setup will further enhanced Lithium output capacity for Leoch
Group. Both passenger electric vehicle (EV) applications and
energy storage systems (ESS) are potential end markets for
these projects. We are carrying out our strategy to position
Leoch as the go-to industrialization partner in the global
battery market, and we have some interesting conversations
going on with possible strategic partners on global footprints
partnership projects.

COMMITMENT &
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The company’s goal is to produce clean, affordable batteries
in order to hasten the decarbonization of the world’s energy
and transportation systems. Leoch’s main markets are
energy storage systems (or “ESS”) and commercial mobility.
Moving forward, the company is expected to continue its
market leadership within the Battery’s market.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we are committed to
drive the business in fiscal year ‘24 to maximize EBITDA
and free cash flow while accelerating key investments in
portfolio differentiators, market-proven business development
talent and upskilling initiatives to drive growth and long-term
shareholder value. | would like to thank our shareholders,
customers and business partners for their long-term support
and trust. And to extend my appreciation to our management
team and our staff members on achieving the outstanding
results for 2023.

12 Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS /

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Period”),
the Group’s revenue amounted to RMB13,471.2 million,
representing an increase of 4.9% from RMB12,845.9 million
for the corresponding period in 2022.

During the Period, revenue from batteries (and related items)
business amounted to RMB11,447.5 million, representing
an increase of 9.7% from RMB10,432.8 million for the
corresponding period in 2022. The increase in revenue from
batteries was contributed by the 19.4% growth rate in the
PRC market and 0.3% in overseas market.

Comparing the revenue of RMB6,440.6 million from batteries
(and related items) during the second half of 2023 with that
of RMB5,006.9 million in the first half of the Period, sales
increased by 28.6%. Both the PRC and overseas markets
were catching up in which sales increased by 30.1% and
27.0% respectively when comparing the results for the
second half and the first half of the Period. Besides seasonal
factor, the spread of battery sales in the first half and second
half of 2023 were 43.7% vs 56.3% (2022: 47.1% vs 52.9%)
and similar ratio applied in both the PRC and overseas
markets during the Period, reflecting that demand was
steadily recovering in the battery industry globally.

Reserve power battery remained the top revenue contributor
during the Period but the pace of growth in SLI battery was
expediting. Different from last two years when overseas
business was the major contributor to the growth of battery
business, the high growth rate in the PRC market covered
the flat performance from overseas market. The Group
believes that the recovery of overseas economy may be
slow but with its continued efforts, it would achieve better
performance in 2024. Nevertheless, three categories of
battery business had different levels of performance during
the Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BIREssm R

Reserve power batteries

The Group’s sales of reserve power batteries during the
Period amounted to RMB6,284.4 million (2022: RMB6,006.1
million), representing an increase of 4.6% as compared to the
same period of last year. This accounted for approximately
54.9% of the total revenue from batteries sales for the Period
as compared to 57.6% in 2022. The increment in sales
revenue of reserve power batteries amounted to RMB278.3
million (2022: RMB1,247.2 million increment) during the
Period.

The Group managed to turn around the decrement in sales
of RMB92.2 million during the first half of 2023 in the second
half of 2023. This was contributed by more than 17% and
close to 10% increase in shipping ton of lead-acid battery
in the PRC and overseas market respectively during the
second half of 2023 when compared to the first half of the
Period and the sales growth of lithium battery products. On
the other hand, the overseas project business was slowly
recovering and the growth in PRC market was slowing down.
Nevertheless, the continue recovery of global economy and
expected stimulation in the PRC high-tech sector provide a
strong support to the continuous growth momentum of the
Group’s reserve power business in 2024.

SLI batteries

Sales of SLI batteries for the Group during the Period
amounted to RMBS3,687.0 million (2022: RMB2,860.1
million), representing an increase of 28.9% as compared to
the same period last year. This accounted for approximately
32.2% of the total revenue from batteries sales for the Period
as compared to 27.4% in 2022. The increment in sales
revenue of SLI batteries amounted to RMB826.9 million
(2022: RMB145.9 million decrement) during the Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EBIREssm R o

In 2023, the Group continued expanding its market share in
the PRC and achieved satisfying result. Year to year growth
in terms of shipping ton reached more than 30%. Although
the overseas market recorded a negative growth rate during
the first half of 2023, market demand rebounded significantly
and shipping ton in the second half of the Period was
close to two times higher than in the first half of the Period,
resulting in more than 40% growth when compared with
the corresponding period of last year. On the other hand,
shipment to the PRC in the second half of 2023 grew by
40% when compared with the first half of 2023.

The acquisition of 70% shareholding of two SLI factories
in 2023 will further strengthen our product range and
expand our market share in the PRC market. With more
than RMB280 million turnover contribution to the Group’s
consolidated revenue in the last two months of 2023 by
these two SLI factories, the Group’s competitiveness in the
PRC SLI batteries market is expected to remain on the rise in
2024.

Being one of the major suppliers of domestic new energy
automobile lead-acid batteries, the Group has confidence to
enlarge our market share in the PRC, extend our customer
bases in car manufacturers and expand after-market sales
volume in the future. The Group will continue to deploy
resources to capture the opportunity ahead in the era of
autonomous driving of smart cars.

Motive power batteries

During the Period, motive power batteries business (which
includes but is not limited to applications in electric vehicles,
electric forklifts and other battery-driven products) of the
Group recorded sales revenue of RMB1,209.4 million (2022:
RMB1,258.3 million), representing a decrease of 3.9% as
compared to last year. This accounted for approximately
10.6% of the total revenue from batteries sales for the Period
as compared to 12.1% in 2022. The decrement in sales
revenue of motive power batteries amounted to RMB48.9
million (2022: RMB35.2 million increment) during the Period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BIREssm R

Overseas weak demand for motive power battery dragged
down the overall performance in 2023 even though the
Group recorded more than 20% shipping ton growth in the
PRC market. After experiencing 30% drop in demand for
motive power battery in term of shipping ton during the first
half of the Period in the overseas market compared with
the corresponding period of last year, the decreasing rate in
shipping ton in the second half of 2023 narrowed to 10%.
Accordingly, the overall performance of the Group’s motive
power business in 2023 slightly deteriorated. Stabilized
overseas performance in the second half of 2023 hinted that
the market was bottoming and recovery is forthcoming.

Recycled lead

Revenue from the sales of recycled lead products amounted
to RMB2,023.8 million (2022: RMB2,413.0 million) during the
Period, representing a decrease of 16.1% as compared to
last year. Before elimination of intercompany sales between
recycling and battery business within the Group, total sales
of recycling business was more or less the same during the
Period when compared with 2022. Since the consolidated
results reflected only sales to third parties, the decrease of
RMB389.2 million turnover was mainly due to increased
intercompany transactions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EBIREssm R o

Sales network

The Group maintained its widespread sales network to
distribute its products to more than 100 countries and
regions across the world and has established regional
sales offices in Beijing, Shenzhen, Zhaoging, Nanjing, Hong
Kong, Singapore, Malaysia, Australia and other ASEAN
countries, India, Sri Lanka, the United States , the European
Union countries and the United Kingdom. Together with the
domestic sales centers in the PRC, the Group has more
than 80 sales offices and centers around the world. During
the Period, the Group has newly established a wholly owned
trading subsidiary in Indonesia. Indonesia is one of the
emerging market economies in the world and the largest in
Southeast Asia. As an upper-middle income country and
a member of the G20, Indonesia is classified as a newly
industrialized country and in 2023, it is a vital emerging
economy that is taking big strides to achieve long-term
growth. It is projected to become one of the world’s seven
largest economies by 2030 and the Group believes it is the
right time to invest and grow our global footprint.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS BIREssm R

Research and development (“R&D”)

During the Period, the Group continued to research
and develop new models of lead-acid batteries, lithium-
ion batteries and new power management systems. We
have strong, rich and comprehensive R&D capabilities in
various models of lead-acid batteries for use in the network
energy, automotive and power sectors. In addition, energy
storage and smart manufacturing are the current industry
trends. Our advanced lithium-ion battery R&D centre in
Anhui province is already in operation, with a wide range of
applications including large-scale energy storage, industrial
and commercial energy storage, household energy storage,
battery cells, lithium-ion communication products, and
uninterruptible power supply systems, which are the core of
the Company’s future incremental capacity in the new energy
wave. Our innovation centre in Singapore is engaged in R&D
of new technologies such as battery management systems
and energy management systems to provide customers
with energy solutions for various scenarios. The Group will
continue to invest in its R&D team and work closely with
professional organisations and universities to conduct further
research and develop battery technologies for different
scenarios and functions.

The Group has invested in and will continue to increase the
production capacity of each model of batteries and enhance
the overall operational efficiency to achieve higher cost
competitiveness. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s
battery R&D team consisted of over 380 R&D personnel and
related development and sampling technicians.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EBIREssm R o

Production Base

During the Period, in view of expected future business
growth, the Group conducted detailed analysis and taken
strategic steps for its plan of expanding production capacity
both in the PRC and overseas. As disclosed in the last
annual report, a battery assembly plant will be established
in Mexico to strengthen the Company’s competitiveness
in the American region dominated by the United States. It
is expected operation will be started within a few months.
Furthermore, another battery production plant in Mexico is
under construction planning and is targeted to do a test run
in the second quarter of 2025. The Group is prepared to
further expand our market share in the Americas besides the
United States to Mexico and other Latin America countries.

Back to APAC, the Group is working on establishing another
SLI battery manufacturing plant in Malaysia in view of
supporting the fast growing automotive industry. Production
testing can start as early as in December 2024 or in early
2025.

During the Period, the Group’s SLI battery business enjoyed
satisfying growth. The Group’s SLI battery turnover increased
by 28.9% in 2023 as compared to 2022 and sales amount
increased to around 59% of reserve power battery business
in 2023 from around 48% in 2022. 70% equity interests of
two SLI battery plants equipped with advanced technology
were acquired in 2023 in view of expanding the Group’s
business scales and market share in the PRC market. The
Group expects SLI business in the PRC will achieve a high
growth rate in 2024.

Finally, the Group acquired a recycling lead plant in
December 2023 aiming to expand and secure its lead supply
and build a sustainable future. We are working on the re-
opening plan currently.
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Trend of lead price

Lead is the main raw material of lead-acid batteries and
accounts for a major part of the product cost for the Group’s
battery production. According to Shanghai Metals Market
(“SMM”), the monthly average lead price per ton fluctuated
in the range of RMB15,108 to RMB16,522 during the Period,
representing a change in the range of -2.9% to 6.1% as
compared with SMM monthly average of RMB15,566 per ton
in December 2022.

The monthly average SMM lead price per ton from January
to June 2023 was RMB15,167, which has decreased by
2.5% as compared with SMM monthly average in December
2022, reflecting weak recovery momentum for battery
demand in the PRC and overseas market during the first half
of 2023. The monthly average SMM lead price per ton from
July to December 2023 was RMB16,020, representing an
increase by 2.9% as compared with SMM monthly average
in December 2022, reflecting that the pace of recovery
speeded up in the second half of 2023. This was in line with
the Group’s performance in which battery turnover growth
rate was only around 2% in the first half of the Period but
increased to over 16% during the second half of the Period
when compared with the corresponding period last year.

To cope with the potential pricing risk associated with the
fluctuation in future lead price, the Group has adopted
a price-linked pricing mechanism to minimise lead price
fluctuation exposure. In addition, the Group’s centralised
procurement of raw materials enables it to trim down costs
of raw materials through favorable negotiations on bulk
purchase contracts.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EBIREssm R o

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Macro Environment

With the declining inflation rate and gradual economic
recovery, the likelihood of a hard landing has diminished,
and the risk of hindering global growth has been largely
offset or balanced out. It is expected that a relatively loose
monetary policy will better stimulate economic activities and
investments. The International Monetary Fund has revised up
its global economic growth forecast by 0.2 percentage point
to 3.1% in 2024 based on the global economic recovery
and the expected resilience of growth in major economies
including the United States and China. Specifically, the
overall economic growth rate of emerging economies in
Asia is expected to reach 5.2%, representing an increase
of 0.4 percentage point as compared with the forecast in
last October; China’s economic growth has been adjusted
upward by 0.4 percentage point to 4.6% as compared with
the forecast in October 2023; the economic growth rate of
the United States is expected to be 2.1% in 2024, being 0.6
percentage point higher than the previous forecast.

In the face of the growing confidence in economic growth,
the Group will leverage its favorable advantages of years
of deep cultivation in the global market, its ever-expanding
and improved global supply chain system, as well as the
increasingly mature global marketing network. Riding on the
global economic growth in 2024, the Group will vigorously
expand its share in the rapid incremental markets of
emerging economies on the basis of steady growth in the
major global business markets.

At the same time, the global economy will also be in an
extremely fragile state in 2024 under the influence of global
uncertainties such as the Russia-Ukraine conflict, the Israeli-
Palestinian war, the Red Sea crisis and the restructuring of
the industrial chain and supply chain. While strengthening
the risk management of the whole system, the Group
will respond to the risks posed by the such adverse
factors through strategic measures such as expanding
global production capacity, strengthening diversification
of operations and improving technological innovation
capabilities.
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Digital Infrastructure Construction Will
Driving the Growth of UPS Battery Market

With the rising demand for cloud services and data storage,
as well as the demand for the development of fundamental
advanced technologies such as artificial intelligence and
machine learning, the global data centre market size is
expected to reach US$340,000,000,000 in 2024 and climb
to over US$438,700,000,000 in 2028 at a compound annual
growth rate of 6.56%, according to a study by relevant
professional institutions. Meanwhile, the Ministry of Industry
and Information Technology of China has also clearly stated
in the 14th Five-Year Plan for the Development of the
Information and Communication Industry that it is necessary
to accelerate the construction of digital infrastructure and
promote the development of data centres in China. It is
expected that the policies and development trends of various
countries will continue to benefit the data centre industry
in the future, and the development of the UPS battery
industry supported by it will also continue to grow rapidly
with broad market prospects. Secondly, as the Internet +
UPS battery industry, big data and intelligent applications
have all entered the stage of substantial implementation,
the complexity of the system has increased significantly. As
a supplier of reserve power battery equipments for major
data centres in the world, the Group, as a leading enterprise,
will highlight its integrated business advantages in terms
of products, services and management systems, which is
expected to further increase its market share. However, at
the same time, we also see that although the market demand
for UPS batteries has reached a new high in 2023, the
rapid growth in production capacity of major manufacturers
has also intensified the competition in the industry.
The Group will further optimise its product technology,
management methods and business philosophy to capture
the replacement demand and potential opportunities in its
existing market while actively striving for more incremental
project contracts, and believes that it will be able to
leverage its industry strengths to continuously strengthen its
advantages in this business field.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EBIREssm R o

Seize New Opportunities in the
Transformation and Upgrading of
Communications Industry

The global communication industry has been developing
rapidly with the changes in fundamental underlying
communication technologies and the continuous expansion
of entertainment, media, transportation, health and
other application scenarios based on such technologies,
including artificial intelligence, autonomous driving, smart
home, and the Internet of Things. It is expected that the
battery market size of the telecommmunications industry
will grow at a compound annual growth rate of 15.76%
by US$9,240,000,000 from 2023 to 2028. It is worth
mentioning that the recent 5G-A (mid-cycle refresh of 5G)
proposed by Chinese communications services enterprises
will help global operators to enter a new race track of
industrial digitalization, creating a chain reaction with
the booming intelligent technology. As a core supplier of
energy storage batteries for equipment of the world’s top
ten communication operators, the Group will seize the
once-in-a-century opportunity brought about by the digital
transformation of the global economy and society, and
help operators to build their networks on a large scale to
consolidate their own industry competitiveness and strive for
greater market share.
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Promote Product Diversification by
Deploying the Household Energy Storage
Business

Household energy storage has become a development
track with high demand against the backdrops of the
increasingly emphasized environmental protection issues
and the increasingly fierce geopolitics. According to
Bloomberg New Energy Finance, in 2023, more than 70%
of residential solar systems in Germany and ltaly, 20% of
residential solar systems in Australia and 13% of residential
solar systems in the United States installed batteries, and
it is expected that the global residential battery installation
capacity will reach 12GWh in 2023 alone. The global market
size of household energy storage products is projected to
increase from approximately US$4,380,000,000 in 2023 to
US$16,750,000,000 in 2029 at a compound annual growth
rate of 24.4%, according to market forecasts. Specifically,
China holds a leading position in the global shipment of
energy storage batteries, accounting for approximately 87%
of the global shipment. Targeting the new opportunities
arising from the development of the household energy
storage industry, the Group has launched a variety of
lightweight and high-efficiency household energy storage
battery products suitable for household use, thereby
expanding the scale of the end-consumer market and
promoting product diversification.
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SLI Battery Opportunities under the
Automotive Industry Transformation

In 2023, according to a report by The German Association
of the Automotive Industry (VDA), the global sales volume
of new vehicles was approximately 75,000,000 units,
representing a year-on-year growth rate of approximately
10%, while the sales growth rates of new vehicles in Europe,
the United States and China were approximately 14%,
12% and 11%, respectively. Specifically, the sales volume
of vehicles in China reached a record high of 25,800,000
units, and Mexico became the fastest-growing market in the
world with a growth rate of 25%. In addition, driven by the
trend of green transformation, the global sales volume of
new energy vehicles in 2023 achieved a significant increase
of 37% year-on-year. Meanwhile, according to Automotive
News Europe, China’s automobile production in 2023 was
nearly 30 million units, accounting for more than one-third
of the global automobile manufacturing market. According
to the news from the Information Office of the State Council
of the PRC became the world’s largest automobile exporter
for the first time in 2023, with the number of automobile
exports reaching approximately 4,910,000 units. China’s
ability to achieve these results is mainly due to the growing
global demand for new energy vehicles. According to
statistics, one out of three vehicles exported by China is new
energy vehicle. The “Roadmap for Green and Low-Carbon
Development of the Automobile Industry 1.0” released by
China in December 2023 clarifies the expenditure, and the
target market penetration rate of new energy vehicles is 45%
and 60% in 2025 and 2030, respectively. The growth of the
global automobile consumption market has undoubtedly
boosted the sales volume of major SLI battery manufacturers
in China.
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It is expected that the global automobile consumption market
will continue to maintain rapid growth in 2024. In addition
to the continuous growth of new car consumption in major
economies, the sales volume of emerging economies, such
as India, Thailand and Malaysia, will increase significantly.
Among them, the new energy vehicle market will show a
better growth trend driven by various factors including policy
promotion, technological innovation and price reduction.

Based on the above development expectations, as a core
supplier of batteries for global automobile SLI battery
business, the Group is confident in the SLI battery business
of the second largest business segment, and will proactively
carry out strategic deployment. While continuously
increasing investment in the research and development of
relevant product technologies, the Group will accelerate the
integration of the production capacity and brand resources of
Tianjin GS and Shunde Yuasa, which were acquired by the
Group earlier, to seize the incremental business opportunities
brought about by the global sales of new energy vehicles,
and the existing market demand arising from the replacement
of SLI battery, so as to further strengthen the Group’s
dominant position in the SLI battery market.
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Keep up with the Global Trend of Green
Energy Development and Expand Our Global
Presence

Looking ahead, green energy transformation will be an
important means to achieve the goal of net-zero emissions, in
which charging and discharging batteries with high capacity,
high reliability and high recycling rate are key configurations
to realise green energy power storage. According to the
latest research report issued by Ember, an energy think
tank, energy emissions in the European Union decreased by
19% in 2023. Wind and solar power generation continued
to grow, with total power generation accounting for 27% of
the total power generation in the European Union, hitting a
record high. Wind power generation may exceed natural gas
for the first time. With more than 100 countries around the
world announcing carbon neutrality goals, it has become an
international consensus to respond to climate change and
promote sustainable development. According to the “Clean
Energy Market Monitoring” released by the International
Energy Agency (IEA), China continues to take a significant
lead in deploying clean energy technologies, with developed
economies and China accounting for 90% of the world’s new
solar photovoltaic and wind power stations in 2023. As the
co-construction of the “Belt and Road Initiative” has entered
a new stage of high-quality development, the cumulative
production capacity of photovoltaic and wind power
projects funded by China has exceeded 25GW, including
exploring the potential of solar energy resources to invest
in photovoltaic power stations in Southeast Asia, Middle
East and North Africa, focusing on the development of wind
power in regions with rich wind energy resources such
as South America and Europe, and building hydropower
projects in Pakistan, Cambodia and other places according
to local conditions to help local governments promote the
universal service of energy and electricity. Deloitte Insights
estimated that the deployment of renewable energy would
increase by 17% to 42GW by 2024. In order to keep up with
the development trend of global green energy, the Group
will continue to improve its own technology and production
process of green energy storage products, keep up with the
policy benefits, expand its global layout, and establish a long-
term diversified source of supplemental income.
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Keep Pace with the Times and Promote
Stability with Progress

The year 2024 is a critical year for the world to implement
green transformation in response to climate change, and the
development of the battery industry is also a key factor in
promoting global green transformation, such as renewable
energy and electric vehicles. According to the “Clean Energy
Market Monitoring” report released by the International
Energy Agency (IEA), from 2019 to 2023, clean energy
investment increased by nearly 50%, reaching US$1.8 trillion
in 2023, representing an annual growth rate of approximately
10%. Meanwhile, a McKinsey research report shows that in
order to achieve net-zero emissions by 2050, it is expected
that the global annual investment in tangible assets will reach
US$9.2 trillion, representing an increase of 60% from the
current level, of which US$6.5 trillion will be used for low-
carbon emission assets and infrastructure construction.

As a booster in the global green transformation of the energy
industry, the Group firmly believes that, in the face of such a
huge potential market, it is key to increase its market share
by continuing to deeply cultivate its main business areas,
leading technological innovation in the industry, enriching
and optimising its product portfolio and expanding its global
business footprint. It is worth mentioning that the Group’s
lithium battery production lines in Anhui, China and Vietnam
will start to accelerate the expansion of production capacity
in 2024, which will help the Group to expand its presence
in the application fields of lithium battery products such as
UPS batteries and energy storage batteries. In addition, the
Group’s battery assembly plant in Mexico is also expected
to commence production in 2024, which will enhance the
Group’s ability to provide quality products and services
to customers in the Americas and explore more potential
market and business development opportunities. At the
same time, the Group is also aware of the challenges and
uncertainties brought about by the complex and volatile
geopolitics to the business environment. Therefore, the
Group maintains a prudent and optimistic attitude towards
the development of its business and the industry, and will
adjust its business strategies in a timely manner to cope with
market changes.
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In the face of fierce competition in the industry, the Group
will always gain insight into the trend of industrial policies,
keep abreast of the development trend in the industry, and
meet the new ideas, new development and new needs of
the global market through relentless pursuit of more new
achievements, new products and new technologies, and
continue to improve its global production and sales scale,
so as to consolidate and strengthen its market position.
As always, the Group will continue to fully play to its
comparative advantages, expand and optimise the supply
chain, formulate future development policies and strategies
based on the expected growth of the industry, drive its own
growth or take advantage of mergers and acquisitions to
seize opportunities, especially in the fields of industrial battery
reuse, maintenance and recycling business.

As one of the leading energy solutions providers in the
market, the Group will continue to provide high-quality
products and services to customers in the fields of global
communications, data centres, automobiles and green
energy, and reward shareholders with better performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the Period, the Group’s revenue amounted to
RMB13,471.2 million, representing an increase of 4.9%
from RMB12,845.9 million for the corresponding period
in 2022. The profit for the Period amounted to RMB567.8
million as compared to RM502.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2022, of which the profit attributable to
the owners of the parent amounted to RMB535.4 million
as compared to RMB481.1 million for the corresponding
period in 2022. Basic earnings per share for the Period was
RMBO0.39 (2022: RMBO0.35).
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Revenue

The Group’s revenue from the power solutions business
increased by 9.7% from RMB10,432.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to RMB11,447.5 million for the
Period, while the Group’s revenue from the recycled lead
business decreased by 16.1% from RMB2,413.0 million for

W

AEBBRBASREBKGHBEE_S - °F
+ZA=t—HIFENARK104328EE T’
EIN9.7% =R AR 11,447 5B E 0 ANER
CI SRR E S _—_F+__A=1+—
BHIEFEENARK2,413.088 T/ 16.1%ZEH

the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB2,023.8 milion IR AR1E2,023.8HE T o
for the Period.
Details of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 WU TAXREBREZE ﬁ:_i)ﬁ’z_$::
December 2023 and 2022 by product category are set out +_H=+—BI-FERERENE|DRG
below: FiiN
2023 2022
Z%C= -
Percentage
Percentage increase/ Percentage
Revenue share (decrease) Revenue share
FRid R/ il
Product category EmEn 6 Bt YES Wrgs B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FR AREFTT
Reserve power batteries HREM 6,284,398 46.6% 4.6% 6,006,115 46.8%
SLI batteries RHED 3,686,988 27.4% 28.9% 2,860,088 22.3%
Motive power batteries BHED 1,209,365 9.0% (3.9%) 1,258,319 9.8%
Others Hip 266,706 2.0% (13.5%) 308,312 2.4%
Sub-total NEt 11,447,457 85.0% 9.7% 10,432,834 81.3%
Recycled lead products (B0 45 8 2 2,023,778 15.0% (16.1%) 2,413,025 18.7%
Total G 13,471,235 100% 49% 12,845,859 100%

Geographically, the Group’s customers are principally located
in the Chinese Mainland, Europe, Middle East and Africa
(‘EMEA”), Americas and Asia-Pacific (other than the Chinese
Mainland). Except for Americas, the Group recorded different
levels of growth in different markets.
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The following revenue information is based on the customer

location for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

UFABRE S KR _-_S_-_

RS

F+_H

=+ —HUEFERERAEMEE DR E

K
2023 2022
ZgC-= “BICF
Percentage
Percentage increase/ Percentage
Revenue share (decrease) Revenue share
FR{ds KR/ Pl
W ss BALE (Fre) = Wrzn BAt
RMB’000 RMB'000
AEBFR ARBFT
Chinese Mainland PR A 8,157,704 60.5% 8.0% 7,650,180 58.8%
EMEA EMEA 1,935,577 14.4% 2.3% 1,892,764 14.7%
Americas EM 2,140,455 15.9% (2.7%) 2,199,121 17.1%
Asia-Pacific (other than PRC) A&
(T aEHRE) 1,237,499 9.2% 2.8% 1,203,794 9.4%
Total At 13,471,235 100% 49% 12,845,859 100%
Cost of Sales & R 2s
The Group’s cost of sales increased by 2.5% from HNEEMNHERABRBEE_SE__F£+_A4

RMB11,251.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to RMB11,527.5 million for the Period, mainly because of the

increased sales volume.

=t+—HIEFENARB11,251 15 & 7T 1M
25%EHIRMI AR K11 527 5B 8B T EHRH
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Gross Profit

The Group’s gross profit increased by 21.9% from
RMB1,594.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to RMB1,943.7 million for the Period, mainly due to the
strong demand from the reserve power batteries and SLI
batteries business as a result of post-pandemic economy
recovery globally. The gross profit margin increased steadily
for the power solutions business while increased slightly
for the recycled lead business, resulting in the increase of
overall gross profit margin from 12.4% for the year ended
31 December 2022 to 14.4% for the Period. The increase
in gross profit margin for the power solutions business was
primarily a result of better control of manufacturing costs
compounded by the drastically decreased transportation
cost of the products.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains decreased by 17.7% from
RMB292.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to RMB240.8 million for the Period, mainly because the
gain on bargain purchase cannot compensate for the
decrease in foreign exchange gains, fair value gains on
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and
government grants during the Period.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses increased
by 19.3% from RMB389.2 milion for the year ended 31
December 2022 to RMB464.3 million for the Period. The
increase was mainly caused by the increase in import and
export fees and sales commission. The increase in sales
commission was in line with the increase in sales.
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Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by 33.7%
from RMB333.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to RMB446.1 million for the Period. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in salaries and depreciation as a
result of further expansion in the PRC and overseas.

R&D Costs

R&D costs of the Group slightly decreased by 2.9% from
RMB382.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB371.9 million for the Period.

Other Expenses

The Group’s other expenses increased from RMB14.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2022 to RMB39.0 million
for the Period mainly due to the increase in fair value loss
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
during the Period.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased by 43.1% from
RMB156.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB223.6 million for the Period mainly due to the increased
bank borrowings and a higher average interest rate during
the Period.

Profit before Tax
As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded profit

before tax of RMB643.9 million for the Period as compared
to RMB583.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense slightly decreased by 5.7% from
RMBB80.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
RMB76.0 million for the Period, mainly because assessable
profits from the power solutions business decreased while
profit from the recycled lead business was effectively not
subject to tax during the Period.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing factors, the Group recorded net
profit of RMB567.8 million (2022: RMB502.7 million) and
profit attributable to the owners of the parent of RMB535.4
million (2022: RMB481.1 million) for the Period.

Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current
assets of RMB1,160.7 million (2022: RMB580.9 million).
The Group’s current assets mainly consist of inventories,
trade receivables, debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, cash and bank balances,
prepayments, other receivables and other assets. The
Group’s current liabilities mainly consist of trade and bills
payables, other payables and accruals, and interest-bearing
bank borrowings.

Inventories

Inventories constituted one of the principal components
of the Group’s current assets. As at 31 December 2023,
the Group had inventories of RMB2,748.7 million (2022:
RMB2,136.5 million), representing an increase by 28.7%
compared with last year. Increase in inventories was partly
because of the acquisition of subsidiaries during the Period
and partly because of the strong demand from the power
solutions business.
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Trade Receivables

The Group’s trade receivables primarily relate to receivables
for goods sold to its customers and mainly comprised
customers from the power solutions business. As at 31
December 2023, the Group had trade receivables of
RMB3,247.2 million (2022: RMB2,736.2 million), representing
an increase by 18.7% compared with last year. The increase
in trade receivables was caused partly by the acquisition of
subsidiaries and partly by the increased sales from the power
solutions business during the Period.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other
Assets

The Group’s prepayments mostly relate to the purchase
of raw materials. As at 31 December 2023, the Group
had prepayments, other receivables and other assets of
RMB631.0 million (2022: RMB473.4 million), representing
an increase by 33.3% compared with last year. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in the recoverable value
added tax and prepayment for transportation fees.

Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables primarily relate to its
purchase of raw materials for production. As at 31 December
2023, the Group had trade and bills payables of RMB3,004.0
million (2022: RMB2,361.0 million), representing an increase
by 27.2% compared with last year. The increase in trade
and bills payables was caused partly by the acquisition of
subsidiaries and partly by the increase in bills payables for
short term financing. Such bills were issued on intercompany
sales transactions within the Group and discounted to banks
for short term financing.
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Other Payables and Accruals

The Group’s other payables and accruals primarily consisted
of provision for social insurance and retirement benefits,
payments for its expenditures related to construction and
renovation of its production facilities, payments in connection
with transportation charges, contract liabilities, payables
for acquisition of subsidiaries and accruals for payroll and
benefits for its employees. As at 31 December 2023, the
Group had other payables and accruals of RMB1,476.0
million (2022: RMB1,052.5 million), representing an increase
by 40.2% compared with last year. The increase was caused
partly by the acquisition of subsidiaries during the Period and
partly by the increase in the accrued payroll.

Capital Expenditures

During the Period, the Group invested RMB609.1 million
(2022: RMB339.6 million) in property, plant and equipment
for its new production facilities.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s net current assets
amounted to RMB1,160.7 million (2022: RMB580.9
million), among which cash and bank deposits amounted
to RMB2,529.1 million (2022: RMB1,230.0 million). As at
31 December 2023, the Group had bank borrowings of
RMB4,457.4 million (2022: RMB2,710.1 million), all of which
are interest-bearing. Except for borrowings of RMB956.2
million (2022: RMB68.4 million) which have a maturity of over
one year, all of the Group’s bank borrowings were repayable
within one year. The Group’s borrowings were denominated
in RMB, US dollars, HK dollars, Singapore dollars, Japanese
Yen and Malaysian ringgits, and the effective interest rates
of which as of 31 December 2023 were 2.00% to 9.60%
(2022: 1.88% to 8.17%).
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A portion of the Group’s bank borrowings was secured by
pledges over certain assets of the Group including property,
plant and equipment, leasehold lands, deposits, inventory,
trade receivables and equity interests in the Company’s
subsidiaries. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gearing
ratio was 31.6% (2022: 25.8%), which was calculated by
dividing total borrowings by total assets as at the end of each
respective period, multiplied by 100%.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as
at 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group operates globally. For the Group’s companies in
the PRC, their principal activities were transacted in RMB.
For other companies outside of the PRC, their principal
activities were transacted in US dollars. However, as a
result of the Group’s revenue being denominated in RMB,
the conversion into foreign currencies in connection with
payments is subject to regulatory restrictions on currency
conversion in the PRC. The value of the RMB against the US
dollars and other currencies may fluctuate and is affected by,
among other things, change in the political and economic
conditions in the PRC. The Group’s product sales adopted
a price mechanism by which the currency fluctuation is
basically transferred to the customers, but the Group’s
foreign currency trade receivables may still be exposed to risk
in the credit period.
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Material Acquisition and Disposal

On 25 July 2023, Leoch Battery Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
an agreement (as supplemented on 25 September 2023)
with independent third parties in relation to the proposed
acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of 70% of the registered
capital of Tianjin GS and Shunde Yuasa. The Acquisition
constitutes a discloseable transaction under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules. Details of the Acquisition were set out in the
note 23 of the financial statements and the announcements
of the Company dated 25 July 2023 and 25 September
2023, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiary, associated company or joint venture
by the Group during the Period.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no significant
investment with a value of 5% or more of the Group’s total
assets.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 14,364
employees. Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
remuneration), which comprised wages and salaries,
performance-related bonuses, equity-settled share option
expenses and retirement benefit scheme contributions,
totaled RMB1,331.0 million for the Period (2022:
RMB1,053.1 million).

The Group has a share option scheme for selected
participants as incentive and reward for their contribution to
the Group. A mandatory provident fund scheme and local
retirement benefit schemes are also in effect. The Group
encourages employees to receive continuing education
and training to strengthen their work skills and for personal
development. The Group also provides workshops for
staff at different levels to enhance their knowledge of work
safety and to build up team spirit. Staff are rewarded based
on performance of the Group as well as on individual
performance and contribution.
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Directors and Senior Management /

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. DONG Li (ZZ), aged 57, is an executive director,
chairman of the Board and nomination committee, a member
of the remuneration committee and founder of the Company.
Dr. DONG has been appointed as executive director since
27 April 2010, the date of the incorporation of our Company.
Dr. DONG is a controlling shareholder of the Company. He is
also one of the authorised representatives of the Company
and serving as director for various subsidiaries of the Group.
Dr. DONG also serves as director for various private wholly
owned companies which include investment holding and
manufacturing enterprise.

Dr. DONG obtained a Doctor of Science from Shanghai
University in 2021 and an EMBA degree from National
University of Singapore in 2015. Dr. DONG graduated from
Xi'an International Studies College, the predecessor of Xi’an
International Studies University, in 1990 with a Bachelor of
Arts degree and Northwest Textile University of Science and
Technology, the predecessor of Xi'an Polytechnic University,
in 1988 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering.

Dr. DONG personally did not hold any share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2023.

EEREREERE

HITES

EFEL 57 ARBATES EFERIES
LZEGTIF FHEETHERAMA-EFL
B-E—ZFMA -+t HiEe KRABGEMAIL
HE) BZEARNTEF SR L R/EARTERR
R TR ABRERRZ —RIEFETERE
ENBARNESR SR LTREETLERE
¥ (OEREERREEDLS) NES-

BTN T —FRE RS ESB T L
Rt —E— R F RIS IR B 1L K EBBEMBASA 1 ©
EFLRN - NNTFERAZINEES @EZ 5
BlsERAS28IR18) XRETBNA W —/\J\F
ESRItETIER (AR ITREAS2NEE) T8
B 8-

BE_Z_=—F+_"_A=+—RH E8tEAL
BRAAATIBRE

TEBEC-FFR - BXEERTERAR 39



Directors and Senior Management EE &S 4k EIEE

Ms. YIN Haiyan, aged 48, is an executive director of the
Company. Ms. YIN has been appointed as executive director
since 30 July 2018.

Ms. YIN graduated from JiangSu University of Science and
Technology with a degree in Accounting.

Ms. YIN joined the Group in 2004 as manager of the
finance department. She was subsequently promoted to
deputy general manager of administration department,
general manager, vice president of finance department,
president, and finally to the director of PRC Marketing
System Development, in which her responsibilities focus
on participating in Group Strategy developing domestic
marketing plan, and promoting the overall domestic sales
through the establishment of marketing network.

Ms. YIN personally held 150,000 shares and 1,350,000
share options of the Company as at 31 December 2023.
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Ms. HONG Yu, aged 52, is an executive director of the
Company. Ms. HONG has been appointed as executive
director since 6 April 2023.

Ms. HONG graduated from Northwest Textile University
for Science and Technology, the predecessor of Xi’an
Polytechnic University, in 1994 majoring in textiles
engineering and minoring in international economics and
sales.

Ms. HONG has almost 30 years of management and
operational experience. From July 1994 to May 2000, she
worked as the manager of the foreign trade department of
Xi'an Oumei Handicrafts Co. Ltd. From July 2000 to May
2005, Ms. HONG joined the Group as a salesperson, and
was subsequently promoted to the manager and deputy
general manager of the foreign trade department. From
May 2005 to June 2015, Ms. HONG was appointed as
the vice president of purchasing department of the Group.
From August 2015 to March 2020, Ms. HONG served as a
partner of Zhongtong Yintai (Beijing) Investment Management
Co., Ltd. From March 2020, Ms. HONG rejoined the Group
as member of enterprise management team, financial
committee officer, purchasing director and investment
director.

Ms. HONG personally held 844,000 shares and 1,800,000
share options of the Company as at 31 December 2023.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan (E75#), aged 55, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director,
chairman of the audit committee and a member of
remuneration committee of the Company since 14 October
2010.

Mr. CAO holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Accounting from
Sonoma State University and an MBA degree from the
Anderson School of the University of California, Los Angeles.
He worked at the auditing department of Coopers &
Lybrand between 1993 and 1996, and obtained his CPA
license (California, United States) in 1996. From 1997 to
2002, he worked at J.P. Morgan and Merrill Lynch in their
respective private banking divisions. Since 2002, he has
been the Executive Director of Etech Capital, a subsidiary
of Etech Securities, Inc., responsible for its Greater China
private equity advisory business. He is also currently the
Chief Executive Officer, Director and Founding Partner of
Shanghai Great Wall Etech Capital Management Company,
a joint venture between China Great Wall Asset Management
Company, one of the largest Chinese asset management
companies, and Etech Group. Mr. CAQO is also currently the
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors of Chongqging Tongli
Heavy Machinery Manufacturing Co., LTD.

Mr. CAO personally held 1,100,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2023.
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Mr. LAU Chi Kit (BI%%), aged 79, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the remuneration committee, a member of the nomination
committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company since 17 September 2014.

Mr. LAU retired from The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited (‘HSBC”) in December 2000 after more
than 35 years’ of service. Among the senior positions in
HSBC, he was the Assistant General Manager and Head
of Personal Banking Hong Kong and Assistant General
Manager and Head of Strategic Implementation, Asia-
Pacific Region. He is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (“Institute”). He was the chairman of the Institute’s
Executive Committee (from January 1999 to December
2000) and is currently an Honorary Advisor of the Institute’s
Executive Committee. He served as a member on a number
of committees appointed by the Government of Hong Kong
Special Administration Region, including the Advisory Council
on the Environment (from October 1998 to December 2001),
the Advisory Committee on Human Resources Development
in the Financial Services Sector (from June 2000 to May
2001), the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committee of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption (from January
2000 to December 2003), the Environment and Conservation
Fund Committee (from August 2000 to October 2006), the
Innovation and Technology Fund (Environment) Projects
Vetting Committee (from January 2000 to December 2004)
and the Law Reform Commission’s Privacy Sub-committee
(from February 1990 to March 2006). He also served as
Chairman of the Business Environment Council Ltd. (from
September 1998 to December 2001).

Currently, Mr. LAU is also an independent non executive
director of Royale Home Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 1198)
and Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co Ltd (stock
code: 6893). The shares of Royale Home Holdings Ltd. and
Hin Sang Group (International) Holding Co Ltd are listed on
the Main Board.

Mr. LAU personally held 1,100,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2023.
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Mr. LU Zhigiang (E&35%), aged 49, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director, a member of the
nomination committee and a member of the audit committee
of the Company since 21 March 2022.

Mr. LU was Asia Fellow in Harvard University from August
2018 to. July 2020. Mr. LU holds a Master Degree of
Business Administration from Central State University of
the United States of America in 2001, a Bachelor Degree
of Engineering and a Bachelor Degree of Industry from
Nanchang Hangkong University of The People’s Republic
of China in 1996 and 1997 respectively. Mr. LU attended
the program of a Master of Science Degree in International
Purchasing & Supply Chain Management organised by
Audencia NANTES.Ecole de Management in 2002.

Mr. LU is currently an executive director and the chief
executive officer of Hong Kong Life Sciences and
Technologies Group Limited whose issued shares were listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 8085 but
were delisted on 14 September 2020. He also served as an
independent non-executive director of ASIA TELEVISION
HOLDINGS LIMITED whose issued shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 707
from 8 December 2023. He served as an executive director
of Extrawell Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited whose issued
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
under stock code: 858 from 27 January 2017 to 26 January
2020.

Mr. LU personally held 300,000 share options in the
Company as at 31 December 2023.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. CHANG Jianwei (E#f&), aged 52, is an executive
director of the Company. Mr. CHANG has been appointed as
executive director since 10 August 2023.

Mr. CHANG graduated from Nanjing Normal University in
1996 with a Bachelor of Arts degree. He also holds a Master
Degree of Business Administration from Xi’an University of
Technology in 2004 and is a Doctor of Philosophy graduate,
doctorate in management of Jiangsu University.
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Mr. CHANG has almost 30 years of management and finance
experience. He was deputy general manager of the finance
department of Shanghai Pengxin Group and chief financial
officer of Shanghai Pengxin Agricultural Investment Group
before joining the Group. He served as finance manager
of Sinarmas Paper (China) Investment Co. Ltd., deputy
financial director of Hainan Jinhai Pulp & Paper Company
Ltd., financial director of Gold Hongye Paper Group Co.
Ltd., deputy general manager and chief financial officer of
Jinhongye Paper (Nantong) Co., Ltd. as well as director
of business development department of Bank of China
(Zhenjiang Branch) Zhenjiang. From January 2022, Mr.
CHANG joined the Company as the chief financial officer
of the Group’s battery business in January 2022 and was
responsible for the PRC and overseas financial operations.

Mr. CHANG personally hold 236,000 shares and 700,000
share options of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER AND
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHOW Kam Keung Albert, aged 59, joined the
Company as chief financial officer and company secretary in
1 November 2015.

Mr. CHOW has almost 35 years of experience in accounting,
auditing, tax, information system, corporate finance and
management. Prior to joining the Company, he had held
various senior positions with public companies listed in
Hong Kong which mostly are manufacturing enterprises.
Mr. CHOW obtained a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration with double majors in Accounting and
Management Information Systems in 1986 and a Master’s
degree in Accounting in 1987 from the University of Hawaii
in the United States. He is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a CFA charter holder
and a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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Report of the Directors
EFEEHRS

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together
with the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023 which have been audited by the
Company’s auditor Ernst & Young and reviewed by the audit
committee of the Company.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries as at
31 December 2023 are set out in note 1 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business operations
of the Group may affect the Group’s financial conditions
or growth prospects. The Group has been focusing on
the control of risks and uncertainties with the aim of
understanding and addressing the concerns of stakeholders.
Key risk factors and uncertainties affecting the Group are
outlined below:

1) Our revenue is substantially derived from batteries using
lead-acid technology. If the lead-acid battery market
does not grow at the rate we expect or at all, or if lead-
acid technology is replaced by another technology,
our business, profitability and future prospects may be
materially and adversely affected;
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The recent array of tariffs against numerous countries
by the US government, any global economic downturn,
or changes in the economic, political and social
conditions in the PRC may have an adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects;

If we are unable to successfully develop new
technology or new products, our business, results of
operations and prospects may be adversely affected;

We derive a significant portion of our income
from our major customers, particularly UPS and
telecommunications customers, and we have no long-
term sales contracts with our customers. Our results
of operations could be adversely affected if these
customers reduce their orders or cease to order from
us;

We face intense competition in our major markets and
continuing pressure to reduce our production costs to
remain price competitive;

Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials, such as
lead, could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations; in addition, we rely on our major suppliers
for our primary raw materials. Our operations could be
affected if our major suppliers are not able to supply
raw materials as scheduled. More information on
our major suppliers is set out on page 66 under the
heading “Major Suppliers and Customers” of the Report
of Directors.
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These factors are not exhaustive or comprehensive, and
there may be other risks in addition to those shown above
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could become material in the future.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 104 and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 105 to 106.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK7 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: HK10 cents per share) to be payable to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company as at 5 June 2024.
Subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the
said final dividend will be paid to the Company’s shareholders
on or about 12 July 2024.

References are made to the interim results announcement of
the Company dated 22 August 2023 and the interim report
of the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2023. The
Board has paid an interim dividend of HK4 cents per share
for the six months ended 30 June 2023 in September 2023
(six months ended 30 June 2022: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and
a discussion on the Group’s future business development,
possible risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing
and an analysis of the performance of the Group during the
year using key financial performance indicators are set out
in the headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 13 to 38 of the annual report.
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Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact
on the Group are set out below:

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES
AND PERFORMANCE
(ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION)

The Group is committed to safety and environmental
protection and has implemented stringent environment
protection policies to uphold high standards of operating
practices.

Pursuant to the applicable environmental laws and
regulations in PRC, the Group installed environmental
protection equipment in all of our production facilities for
the removal of lead dust and particles generated during
our production process in order to minimize the amount
of pollutants in the air. The equipment includes ventilation
systems, dust absorbing and removing systems, acidic mist
and lead fumes purifying machines and fresh air pipelines.

The Group installed waste water treatment facilities at our
production facilities. The water treatment facility neutralizes
the waste water and removes its lead content in accordance
with the applicable environmental standards in PRC. At our
Zhaoqging and Anhui production facilities, the purified water
is collected and reused in our production process, thus
achieving “zero discharge”.

Our PRC factories management control and monitor the
waste level regularly and consistently. Monitoring systems
that provide ontime reading is connected to local government
authorities in charge of environment protection for real-time
monitoring purpose.
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Compliance with laws and regulations

Compliance procedure are in place to ensure adherence
to applicable laws, rules and regulations, in particular,
those which may have significant impact on the Group.
The Group holds high standards of operating practices
and complies with the relevant standards. The Group has
stringent requirements to maintain high levels of quality
control and responsible business practices. Any changes in
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought to the
attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units
on a timely basis to ensure that adjustments are made in our
procedures and operations to reflect such changes.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Employees, Suppliers and
Customers

The Group believes that employees are important assets
and provides competitive remuneration packages to attract
and retain employees. The management regularly reviews
the Group’s remuneration to its employees to ensure that
they remain comparable with prevailing market standards.
Furthermore, the Group provides employee training programs
to polish their skills and knowledge and a number of staff
activities to enhance employees’ sense of belonging and to
help create a friendly and harmonious working environment.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its suppliers and customers to fulfil
its long-term goals and development. To maintain its brand
competitiveness and dominant status, the Group aims at
delivering consistently high standards of quality in the service
to its customers. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
there was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 109 to 110 and in
note 44 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to shareholders amounted to
approximately RMB799.1 million (2022: approximately
RMB1,016.6 million).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of
Association”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results of the Group and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on pages 303 to 304 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR
REDEMPTION OF SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) during the
year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. DONG Li (Chairman)
Ms. YIN Haiyan
Ms. HONG Yu (appointed on 6 April 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan
Mr. LAU Chi Kit
Mr. LU Zhigiang

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Dr. Dong
Li and Mr. LAU Chi Kit will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election, at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Subject to the applicable laws, every director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2023 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained directors’
liability insurance throughout the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF
DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management members of the Group are set out on pages 39
to 45 in the annual report of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management members of the Group was based on
qualifications, years of experiences and the performance of
individual employees and are reviewed regularly.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and five highest
paid employees are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements
about the Company’s share option schemes, at no time
during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS INTEREST IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT
OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year, nor had
there been any contract of significance entered into between
the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND EHRNAKNAE KRN - BRI
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, RE#ENER XA
UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions R_Z_=F+_B=+—H XxATESFKT
of each Director and chief executives of the Company in the EITHAERNZEAA TR  HBRERRD R (EREE
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company A (Q)IREE 5 K& EAE 16 EXVERH7 KR8E 0 &
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and X1 & ZAA S KRB FAER KR A 5 H(b)iREE
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part &5 &R E §H55352(% BaC i3 I sz & PR il A A B
XV of the SFO; or (b) were required under Section 352 of BFBZEFMAETEXE ; SC)RELTHE
the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be kept by  BIFfE» LS T ANEEETE ST S WIZEST]
the Company referred to in that section; or (c) were required  (MZ#5FR)) » SEZ BN G AN B L EHITHIRE
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange #HRKBEIIT :

pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in the

Listing Rules were as follows:

Number and Number and
class of securities class of securities
subject to options subject to options

granted under the granted under the Approximate
Name of Director/ Number and 2010 Share New Share Option percentage of
Chief Executives Position Nature of Interest class of securities™ Option Scheme Scheme Total  shareholding®
R
—§-%% RIRE
fRR R MR E
RitikiERE bt
FIRAY TR ERR IR
BS/TEORAEHSE BB EitE EHUERER EHUERER HHYERER Rt HARREILD
Dr. DONG Li Director Interest of controlled corporation 1,016,021,0001 (1) - - 1,011,548,000 74.31%
EZEL 3z REEENEE
Ms. YIN Haiyan Director Beneficial Owner 150,000(L) -0 1,350,000 (L) 1,500,000 0.11%
EllcE: 3 g% EREEA
Ms. HONG Yu Director Beneficial Owner 844,000(1) - 1,800,000 (L) 2,644,000 0.19%
ALt 3z EalAA
Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan Director Beneficial Owner - 800,000¢ (1) 300,000 (L) 1,100,000 0.08%
EERE g% EREEA
Mr. LAU Chi Kit Director Beneficial Owner - 800,000© (1) 300,0007 (L) 1,100,000 0.08%
EE Sk % EalAA
Mr. LU Zhigjang Director Beneficial Owner - - 300,000 (L) 300,000 0.02%
EFRLEL g% EREEA
Mr. CHANG Jianwei CEO Beneficial Owner 236,000(1) - 700,000 (1) 936,000 0.07%
BRERE ER#E EalAA

*

The letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the — * TLRIRERRMD PG E -
Shares.
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Notes:

(10)

56

Dr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,015,021,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Dr. DONG Li.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 1,500,000 shares
under the 2010 Share Option Scheme and exercised all of share
options in August 2023, so there is no shares options under
the 2010 Share Option Scheme. Please see paragraph headed
“Share Option” below for further details of the 2010 Share
Option Scheme.

Ms. YIN Haiyan has been granted options for 2,000,000 shares
under the New Share Option Scheme, and has exercised
400,000 and 250,000 shares options in August 2023 and
October 2023 respectively, so Ms. YIN has 1,350,000 share
options under the New Share Option Scheme. Please see
paragraph headed “Share Option” below for further details of the
New Share Option Scheme.

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 800,000
shares under the 2010 Share Option Scheme. Please see
paragraph headed “Share Option” below for further details of the
2010 Share Option Scheme.

Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan has been granted options for 300,000
shares under the New Share Option Scheme. Please see
paragraph headed “Share Option” below for further details of the
New Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LAU Chi Kit has been granted options for 800,000 shares
under the 2010 Share Option Scheme. Please see paragraph
headed “Share Option” below for further details of the 2010
Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LAU Chi Kit has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the New Share Option Scheme. Please see paragraph
headed “Share Option” below for further details of the New
Share Option Scheme.

Mr. LU Zhigiang has been granted options for 300,000 shares
under the New Share Option Scheme. Please see paragraph
headed “Share Option” below for further details of the New
Share Option Scheme.

Mr. CHANG Jianwei has been granted options for 700,000
shares under the New Share Option Scheme. Please see
paragraph headed “Share Option” below for further details of the
New Share Option Scheme.

This is based on 1,365,990,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2023.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, nor had there been any grant or exercise of
rights of such interests during the year ended 31 December
2023.

SHARE OPTION
Share Option Schemes

(i) Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 14 October 2010,
the Company approved and adopted another share
option scheme (the “2010 Share Option Scheme”)
(as amended at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 18 May 2018) for the purpose of
providing incentive or reward to selected participants
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Company and for such
other purposes as the Board may approve from
time to time. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the 2010 Share Option Scheme
as at 31 December 2023 was 21,475,000 shares
(representing approximately 1.57% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at that date). No further
options will be granted under the 2010 Share Option
Scheme.
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(i)  Pursuant to the resolutions in writing passed by all
shareholders of the Company on 30 October 2020,
the Company approved and adopted another share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards to
eligible persons for their contribution to or potential
contribution to the Group and to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group and
for such other purposes as the Board may approve
from time to time. The number of shares which may be
issued pursuant to the outstanding share options (i.e.
options which have been granted but not yet lapsed
or exercised) under the New Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2023 was 48,418,000 (representing
approximately 3.54% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at that date). The number of options
available for grant under the scheme mandate of the
New Share Option Scheme at the beginning and
the end of the Period were 77,814,466 Shares and
77,814,466 Shares respectively.

During the Period, no options granted under all schemes of
the Company.

The total number of Shares available for issue under each of
the 2010 Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option
Scheme (including options granted but not yet exercised
and options available for issue) is 21,475,000 Shares and
126,232,466 Shares respectively, representing approximately
1.57% and 9.23% respectively of the total number of issued
Shares as at the date of this report.

Details of the Share Option Schemes are disclosed in note
32 to the financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the following person (other than
the directors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions of 5% or more in the Shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company which
were discloseable under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO and recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRIRAB AT ~ 1HRFE

RN REREENERRKE

A TET=F+"HA=+—HTAL FEE
ERBEFREBTHAL) RAEAT KM 18-
i AR TP EAS% I L L IRIREE 5 R H G 1%
PISEXVER 552370 BRFT 1K B8 K ReC 8k I A A B AR
B s R EAERA B3R FENE LM ED
kA -

Approximate

Number and class percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest of securities” shareholding®
RRBTE EmtE HHHE KRR BB DL
Master Alliance Investment Limited™” Beneficial Owner 1,015,021,000 74.31%
EmEAA
RAYS Capital Partners Limited? Beneficial Owner 81,751,288 5.98%
EmEAA
RUAN David Chlng Chi@ Interest of controlled 81 ,751 ,288 5.98%
corporation
X I/£ @ E,j *%

The Letter “L” denotes long position of the shareholder in the
shares of the Company.

* MLARBRERETRBROPHIEFA -
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Notes:

(1) Dr. DONG Li is deemed to be interested in 1,015,021,000
shares held by Master Alliance Investment Limited, a company
wholly owned by Dr. DONG Li.

2) Mr. RUAN David Ching Chi is deemed to be interested in
81,751,288 shares held by RAYS Capital Partners Limited, a
company owned as to 45.60% by Mr. RUAN David Ching Chi.

(8  This is based on 1,365,990,666 Shares, being the number of
issued Shares as at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2023, the
Directors were not aware of any other person (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had, or
was deemed to have, interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the Group’s related party transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 38 to
the financial statements, some of which also constituted
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect
of the above-mentioned transactions. The connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions entered
into by the Group in 2023, which were required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules, are set out as follows:
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Continuing connected transaction subject to
the reporting, announcement, annual review
and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements

(0

Sales of Products to Connected Persons

The Company and Dr. DONG Li,
as such a connected person of the Company,
renewed the master agreement dated 16 October
2018 and entered into a new master agreement
dated 22 November 2021 (the “2021 Master Sales
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and conditions
upon which members of the Group will sell to Dr.
DONG Li's associates, and Dr. DONG Li's associates
will purchase from members of the Group, products
including connecting cables which are components of
battery products for motive power, moulds and other
miscellaneous items. The products to be sold and
purchased under the 2021 Master Sales Agreement
shall be at the prevailing market price, namely, the
price at which the same type of products is sold by
us to independent third parties on normal commercial
terms in the ordinary course of business in the PRC.
The 2021 Master Sales Agreement is for a term of
three years commencing from 1 January 2022, and
ending on 31 December 2024. Upon expiry of the term,
the 2021 Master Sales Agreement will, subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, be renewed for a
further period of three years by mutual agreement. The
annual caps for the transactions under the 2021 Master
Sales Agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2024 have been set at RMB280.0 million,
RMB364.0 milion and RMB473.2 million respectively.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the aggregate
amount received by the Group under the 2021 Master
Sales Agreement was approximately RMB74.3 million.

a director and

For further details regarding the 2021 Master Sales
Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 22 November 2021.
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(i)

62

Purchase of Products from Connected Persons

The Company and Dr. DONG Li, a director and as
such a connected person of the Company, renewed
the master agreement dated 22 November 2021
and entered into a new master agreement dated
16 October 2021 (the “2021 Master Purchase
Agreement”), which sets out the terms and conditions
upon which members of the Group will purchase
from Dr. DONG Li’s associates, and Dr. DONG
Li's associates will sell to members of the Group,
products including (a) battery related components
including chargers, connecting cables used in 5G and
reserve power application, BMS, battery racks for the
manufacturing of the Group’s battery products or sale
as accessories of the Group’s battery products; and (b)
electric vehicles and related parts. The products to be
sold and purchased under the 2021 Master Purchase
Agreement shall be at the prevailing market price,
namely, the price at which the same type of products
is sold to the Group by independent third parties on
normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of
business in the PRC. The 2021 Master Purchase
Agreement is for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2022 and ending on 31 December
2024. Upon expiry of the term, the 2021 Master
Purchase Agreement will, subject to the requirements
of the Listing Rules, be renewed for a further period
of three years by mutual agreement. The annual caps
for the transactions under the 2021 Master Purchase
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31
December 2024 have been set at RMB80.0 million,
RMB104.0 million and RMB135.2 million respectively.
For the year ended 31 December 2023 the aggregate
amount paid by the Group under the 2021 Master
Purchase Agreement was approximately RMB44.3
million.

For further details regarding the 2021 Master Purchase

Agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 22 November 2021.
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The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions above
and confirmed that the transactions have been entered
into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(8) according to the relevant agreements governing
such transactions respectively on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group above
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

The Board confirms that the Company has complied
with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in relation to the
aforementioned continuing connected transactions.
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to the term of a loan facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement”) dated 24 April 2023 and entered
into, among other parties, the Company as borrower, six of
its subsidiaries as guarantors, China Citic Bank International
Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited and The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited as mandated lead
arrangers and bookrunners, and various financial institutions
as lenders, a term loan facility of US$70,375,000 and
HK$231,075,000 (together the “Loans”) were made available
to the Group for (i) refinancing the facility agreement entered
into by the Company on 7 May 2020 and (ii) financing the
corporate purpose of the core business of the Group.

The Loans are repayable in five instalments as to 15%,
17.5%, 20%, 22.5% and 25% on the dates falling 12, 18,
24, 30 and 36 months respectively after the utilisation date of
the Loans.

If, among other matters: (i) Dr. DONG Li (‘Dr. DONG”) does
not or ceases to own, directly or indirectly, at least 51%
of the beneficial interest in the Company carrying at least
51% of the voting right, free from any security; (i) Dr. DONG
does not or ceases to have management control over the
Company; and (ji) Dr. DONG is not or ceases to be the
chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company, it will be
an event of default under the Facility Agreement, in which
event all or any part of the commitments under the Loans
may be cancelled and all amounts outstanding under the
Loans may immediately become due and payable.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

On 21 October 2010, each of the Controlling Shareholders
of the company namely Dr. DONG Li (also being the
executive Director) and Master Alliance Investment Limited
(the “Controlling Shareholders”), entered into a deed of
non-competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) with
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/
it procures that his/its associates will not engage, directly or
indirectly, in businesses which will or may compete with the
business carried on or to be carried on by the Group.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided an annual
declaration on his/its compliance with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-Competition undertaken by
them.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
were satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders has
complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31
December 2023, none of the Directors is considered to have
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is
stipulated by the Directors on the basis of the employees’
relevant experience, responsibility and qualifications. The
salaries and benefits of employees of the Group are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a
performance related basis within the general framework of
the Group’s salary and bonus system which is reviewed
annually. A wide range of benefits, including statutory
compulsory welfare plans, are also provided to the
employees.
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The emolument policy for the Directors of the Group Is
determined by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Group’s operating results, individual performance.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND
CUSTOMERS

The percentages of purchases attributable to the Group’s
major suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2023 are as
follows:

6.3%
30.2%

— the largest supplier
— five largest suppliers in aggregate

The percentages of sales attributable to the Group’s major
customers for the year ended 31 December 2023 are as
follows:

7.1%
15.1%

— the largest customer
— five largest customers in aggregate

None of the directors, their respective close associates
(within the meaning of the Listing Rules) or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest in

these major suppliers and customers.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed:

U)

(i)

from Friday, 10 May 2024, to Thursday, 16 May
2024, (both days inclusive (both days inclusive) for
the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitiement
to attend and vote at the AGM, during which period
no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order
to be eligible to attending and vote at the AGM,
Shareholders should ensure that all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, are
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 9
May 2024; and

from Monday, 3 June 2024 to Wednesday, 5 June
2024 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitlement to receive the
final dividend, during which period no transfer of Shares
will be registered. In order to qualify for receiving the
final dividend, Shareholders should ensure that all
transfer documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, are lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/
F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration by no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Friday, 31 May 2024.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up to the date of
this annual report, same as disclosed herein, the Board is
not aware of any significant events that have occured which
require disclosed herein.

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

The Company issued unlisted convertible bonds (the
“Convertible Bonds”) to three subscribers (namely, Asian
Equity Special Opportunities Portfolio Master Fund Limited,
Leung Shek Kong and Great Access Incorporation Limited,
all being third parties independent of the Company and its
connected persons in accordance with the Listing Rules)
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$91,800,000 on 9
January 2023. Assuming full conversion of the Convertible
Bonds at the initial conversion price of HK$1.53 per Share
(subject to adjustments), a maximum number of 60,000,000
new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the share capital of
the Company (the “Conversion Shares”) will be allotted and
issued, with an aggregate nominal value of HK$6,000,000.
The net proceeds (after deducting all the relevant costs
and expenses) from the issue of the Convertible Bonds of
approximately HK$91.5 million were proposed to be applied
for the acquisition of machinery and equipment for the power
solutions business of the Group. The closing price of the
Shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the
subscription agreements was HK$1.17 per Share. The net
price per share to be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the Convertible Bonds, which
is calculated by dividing the aggregate net proceeds by the
total number of the Conversion Shares based on the initial
conversation price of HK$1.53 per Share, is approximately
HK$1.53 per Conversion Share.
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The Directors consider that the raising of funds by the issue
of Convertible Bonds is justifiable taking into account the
recent market conditions which represent an opportunity
for the Group to strengthen its capital base and financial
position. Details of the issue of the Convertible Bonds are
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23
December 2022.

As at the date of this report, 100% of the aggregate net
proceeds have been utilised for the intended use stated
above.

Save as disclosed, there was no equity fund raising by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023, nor
were there any proceeds brought forward from any issue of
equity securities made in previous financial years.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as at 31 December 2023.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Ernst & Young
who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

There was no change in the auditors of the Company in any
of the proceeding three years.

On behalf of the Board

DONG Li
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2024
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Group is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

CORPORATE PURPOSE,
STRATEGY AND CORPORATE
CULTURE

The Board defines the purpose, values and strategy of the
Company and considers that the Company’s corporate
culture is aligned. The Group is committed to investing in
the power solution industry, creating value for consumers,
and to delivering attractive and sustainable returns to
the Shareholders. Despite the ever-changing operating
environment, the Group places strong emphasis on
workplace safety, employee relations and the efficient use
of materials, energy and resources, promoting a culture of
ethical conduct and integrity. A healthy corporate culture is
important to good corporate governance which is crucial for
achieving sustainable long-term success of the Group.

ESG-RELATED MATTERS

The Company adheres to improving internal sustainability
governance, strengthening the management and control of
corporate development’s impact on the environment and
society, and creating value for our stakeholders. The Board
has overall responsibility for the Company’s ESG strategy
and reporting, and oversees the overall ESG governance of
the Company. In particular, the Board conducts a regular
review of the Group’s ESG-related matters and considered,
among others, (i) the adequacy of resource, staff qualification
and experience, training programmes and budget of those
relating to Group’s ESG performance and reporting; (i) the
changes, since the last annual review, in the nature and
extent of significant ESG risks (if any); and (i) the scope
and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of ESG
risks. For further details, please refer to the Company’s
Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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COMPLIANCE STATEMENTS

The Company has adopted and complied with the relevant
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) based on the principles set out in Part 2
of Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The details of the compliance of the CG code set out in
the mandatory disclosure requirements, complied by the
Company, are shown below.

MANDATORY DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board will continue to review its corporate governance
practices from time to time to ensure that the regulatory
requirements and principles, such as “comply or explain”
regarding the code provisions of the CG Code and
mandatory disclosure requirements set out in Part 2 of
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules, are met and the corporate
governance practices of the Company is in line with
expectations of shareholders and investors.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company had complied
with all applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
contained in Part 2 of Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Company (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as the
code for dealing in securities of the Company by its directors
(the “Directors”).

The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and its
code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

Board of Directors

Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprised three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors

Executive Directors comprised Dr. DONG Li (chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”)), Ms. YIN Haiyan and Ms. HONG VYu.

Independent non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors comprised Mr. CAO
Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Mr. LU Zhigiang.

The name of each Director, as at the date of this report is
set out under the section headed “Corporate Information”
in this annual report and is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules from time to time. The independent non-
executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate
communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

There is no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between the Directors.
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Number of Board, Committee and General Meetings Held

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, and considering and
approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Additional meetings are held when significant events or
important issues are required to be discussed and resolved.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2023, 89
Board meetings, 3 Audit Committee meetings, 2 Nomination
Committee meetings, 2 Remuneration Committee meetings
and 1 general meeting were held.

Attendance at the Board Meetings, Board Committee
Meetings and General Meeting

The attendance of each Director, by name, at the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and general meeting
are set out below:
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Mr. LU Zhigjiang ESREE 4/89 3/3 2/2 - 0/1
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Notes:

(1) Being the annual general meeting of the Company held on
25 May 2023.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board, led by the Chairman, is responsible for leadership
and control of the Company and oversees the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The Board
has delegated to the senior management the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation
of the Group. In addition, the Board has established Board
committees and has delegated to these Board committees
various authority and duties set out in their respective
terms of reference. All Directors have carried out their
duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws
and regulations and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management systems, material transactions (in
particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

The Board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to the
senior management of the Company. These responsibilities
include implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and coordinating day-to-day operation and management
of the Company in accordance with the management
strategies and plans approved by the Board, formulating and
monitoring the operating and production plans and budgets,
and supervising and monitoring the control system.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive Directors possesses
different business experience, knowledge and professional
background. The Company has at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of its Board members with
at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received a written annual confirmation
regarding the independence from each independent non-
executive Director pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and the Company still considers the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Independent non-executive Directors have been invited to
serve on the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”)
and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”). Through participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees,
all independent non-executive Directors make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.
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Directors’ Continuous Training and
Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will receive a formal,
comprehensive and tailored induction on the first occasion
of his/her appointment to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and
business and full awareness of director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other legal and

regulatory requirements.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings
to all Directors to develop and refresh their duties and
responsibilities. All Directors are also encouraged to attend
relevant training courses provided by legal advisers and/or
any appropriate institutions and they have been requested to

provide the Company with their training records.

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of the latest
changes in the commercial, legal and regulatory requirements
in relation to the Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and duties as a

director of a listed company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all Directors
provided their records of training to the Company. All
Directors, namely Dr. DONG Li,
CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Mr. LU Zhigiang
participated in this continuous professional development
mainly by reading various material regarding corporate
governance guide for board and directors. Ms. HONG Yu

attended a training course provided by lawyer.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Dr. DONG Li, the Chairman of the Board, is the founder
of the Group and has extensive experience in the lead-
acid battery industry. With effect from 10 August 2023, Mr.
CHANG Jianwei has been appointed as the chief executive
officer of the Company.

The roles of the Chairman and chief executive officer of
the Company are separate and performed by different
individuals.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan and Mr. LAU Chi Kit are engaged for a
term of three years commencing from their respective dates
of appointment and is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election pursuant to the Articles of Association.

Mr. LU Zhigiang is engaged for a term of two years
commencing from the dates of appointment and is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant to the Articles
of Association.

Board Committees

The Board has established three Board committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees have been
established with defined written terms of reference, which are
available to shareholders on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. All Board committees report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.
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Remuneration Committee

The principal role and function of the Remuneration
Committee are to (a) make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure of the remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; (b) assess the performance
of the executive Directors and approving their terms of their
service contracts; (c) review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the Board'’s
corporate goals and objectives; (d) make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive director and senior management of the
Company which include benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;
(e) make recommendations to the Board of on the
remuneration of non-executive directors of the Company;
() review and approve the remuneration payable to the
executive directors and senior management of the Company
for any loss or termination of office or appointment to ensure
that it is consistent with relevant contractual terms and is
otherwise fair and not excessive; (g) review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and (h) ensure that no director of the Company
or any of his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
involved in deciding his own remuneration; and (i) review
and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee
comprised three members, namely, Dr. DONG Li (the
executive Director), Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan and Mr. LAU Chi
Kit, the latter two being independent non-executive Directors.
Mr. LAU Chi Kit is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Remuneration Committee held two meetings to discuss,
review, analyse and consider any change of the remuneration
policy of the Company and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The records of attendance of committee
members, by name, at the meetings held are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Dr. DONG Li 2/2
Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan 2/2

The Remuneration Committee adopted the model of
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
are to (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board
and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) which aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board; (b) identify individuals suitably
qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (c) assess the independence
of the independent non-executive directors; and (d) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.
The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee
comprised three members, namely, Dr. DONG Li (executive
Director), Mr. LAU Chi Kit and Mr. LU Zhigiang, the latter two
being independent non-executive Directors. Dr. DONG Li is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings and performed all functions as
disclosed above. The attendance records of each member at
the meetings are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Dr. DONG Li 2/2
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 2/2
Mr. LU Zhigiang 2/2

All Board members’ appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. According to the Board Diversity
Policy adopted by the Nomination Committee in 2013,
selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will
be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board consists of both male and female members.
The Nomination Committee and the Board recognises the
importance and benefits of gender diversity at the Board
level, and shall strive to take initiatives to identify more female
candidate(s) to further enhance gender diversity at the Board
level. The Board Diversity Policy will be updated to ensure
the potential successors to the Board can achieve gender
diversity.
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group employed a total of
12,155 full time employees in the PRC who included senior
management, management staff, technicians, salespersons
and workers. The gender ratio in the workforce was 62.8%
male and 37.2% female.

The Company will continue to take gender diversity into
consideration during recruitment and increase the female
proportion at all levels over time with the ultimate goal of
achieving gender diversity, such that there is a pipeline of
female senior management and potential successors to the
Board in the future.

Audit Committee

The principal role and function of the Audit Committee are
amongst others to (a) review the financial statements and
reports and consider any significant or unusual items raised
by the staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function or external auditor before submission to
the Board; (b) review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of external auditor; and (c) review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system and
associated procedures. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

As at 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee comprised
three members, namely, Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan, Mr. LAU Chi
Kit and Mr. LU Zhigiang all of whom are independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. CAO Yixiong Alan is the chairman of
the Audit Committee and he possesses relevant accounting
and financial management expertise.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2023 together with the Company’s
external auditor and the senior management and performed
the following major tasks:

- Reviewed the scope of 2022 annual audit and 2023
interim review work, auditor’s fees and terms of
engagement; and

- Review and discuss the 2022 annual and 2023 interim
financial statements, results announcement and report,
the related accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and the relevant audit findings.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the
Board regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditors.

The attendance records of each member at the meeting are
set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Director Number of Meetings

Mr. CAQ Yixiong Alan 3/3
Mr. LAU Chi Kit 3/3
Mr. LU Zhigiang 3/3

In addition, the Audit Committee has reviewed the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 and has discussed with the management and the
external auditor of the Company on the accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group and the internal controls
and financial reporting matters of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties as required under the CG
Code:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory

requirements;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year, the Board performed the following corporate
governance matters:

° review of the corporate governance duties under the
CG Code; and

° review of the compliance with the CG Code.
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MECHANISM TO ENSURE BEREFEILIE RIET

INDEPENDENT VIEWS FROM
DIRECTORS

During the year, the Nomination Committee also reviewed ERIELEECNBHARFRESTS O ESRS
the implementation and effectiveness of mechanisms to  IZAVERZL R B B AV EIAY S HE B3 AR X% o 48 B UL
ensure independent views and input are available to the TR IEHEZEEERAARATEHEHEFAEN
Board. Taking into account the following channels, the MIEHIERESEE EBRNIIBIL T - AHER
Nomination Committee considered that the Company had in  EESFANEENB YRS LER EF2EHIE
place mechanisms which remain effective to ensure a strong LU

independent element on the Board. To ensure independent
views and input from any Director, the following mechanism is
established by the Board:

1. Independence Assessment 1.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors shall
provide a written annual confirmation of independence
to the Company on their compliance with the
independence requirements as set out under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee
shall assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors upon appointment and annually
to ensure they can continually exercise independent
judgement.

2. Composition of Board 2.

Currently, 50% of the Board members are executive
Directors while 50% of the Board members are
independent non-executive Directors, which exceeds
the requirement of the Listing Rules that at least one-
third of the Board are independent non-executive
Directors.
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Board Proceedings and Decision
Making

At least 14 days’ formal notice of regular Board
and Board committee meetings will be given to all
Directors, and all Directors are invited to include any
matters for discussion in the agenda. By at least three
business days in advance of every regular Board and
Board committee meeting, Directors are provided
with the meeting agenda and the relevant board
papers containing complete, adequate and timely
information to enable full deliberation on the issues to
be considered at the respective meetings.

All Directors are required to declare their direct/indirect
interests, if any, in any business proposals to be
considered at the meetings and, where appropriate,
they are required to abstain from voting on any Board
resolution concerned.

Independent non-executive Directors should attend alll
regular meetings of the Board and Board committees
on which they serve. They should also attend general
meetings of the Company to acquire understanding of
the views of the shareholders.

Remuneration of Independent Non-
executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors receive fixed
fee(s) for their role as members of the Board and Board
Committees and no equity-based or incentive based
compensation program is granted to independent non-
executive Directors as this may lead to bias in their
decision-making and compromise their objectivity and
independence.
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Access to Professional Advice and Up-
to-date Information

The Company Secretary provided induction pack
and orientation program for all new recruits to the
Board. Such program would familiarise the newly
appointed Director with the nature of the business,
the corporation’s strategy, the internal control and
corporate governance practices and policies, and
directors’ duties and responsibilities. Subsequent
information packages are regularly provided to the
Directors to keep them abreast of their responsibilities
and infuse them with new knowledge relevant to the
Group’s current business and operating environment.

To facilitate proper discharge of Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, all Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) are entitled to seek advice
from the Company Secretary as well as from
independent professional advisers at the expense of the
Company.

Independent Views and Inputs
Treasured and Valued

During the Board and Board committee meetings, the
independent non-executive Directors are encouraged
to express freely their independent views and inputs
in an open and candid manner. The Chairman also
encourages questions and challenges from Directors,
in particular independent non-executive Directors and
their comments and concerns are closely followed up
by the management.

In addition to Board meetings, the Chairman schedules
a meeting annually with independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors to
discuss the affairs of the Group.
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The Company Secretary is required to prepare minutes
that record not only the decision reached but any
concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by
Directors. Draft versions of the minutes are circulated to
all Directors for their comment and confirmation before
it is finalised for records. Minutes of all Board and
Board committee meetings are available for Directors’
inspection.

The implementation and effectiveness of the above
mechanisms have been reviewed by the Board on an annual
basis and the Board believe these measures would allow
Directors to contribute effectively and independent views and
input are available to the Board and Board committees.

Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

Anti-corruption

The Group formulates the “Business Ethics Control
Procedure” which requires both employees and suppliers
to sign the agreement for integrity. In addition, the “Anti-
Corruption Procedure” is also formulated to cover lawful
business, avoidance of conflict of interests, and fair
competition, etc. The Group requests all employees to
abide by the business ethics, employees must not ask for or
receive any improper form or other improper benefits, which
include but not limited to rebates, commissions, improper
gifts or hospitality; avoidance of conflicts of interest at work.
All employees are required to avoid any activities which might
involve potential conflict of interests and they are required to
receive regular training on anti-corruption.
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Whistleblowing Policy

Employees are encouraged to report any non-conformity or
violation of the anti-bribery and corruption policy in writing to
management directly or to our dedicated response team. All
cases will be investigated in a timely and confidential manner
and the personnel who are involved in whistleblowing will be
protected.

The Group formulates the “Regulations for Management
of Whistle-blowing and Appeals” which stipulates in detail
the procedure of whistle-blowing, the methodology of
investigation and the way of appeal by the person under
investigation. Employees can complain or report in a
confidential manner to the Group’s senior management
through the General Manager’s letterbox, telephone, and
face-to-face communication, etc. The Group protects the
personal privacy and the related rights of the whistle-blower.

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in Respect of the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation
of financial statements of the Company with a view to
ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant
statutory and regulatory requirements are met and applicable
accounting standards are complied with. The Board has
received from the senior management the management
accounts and such accompanying explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment for approving the financial statements.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining
effective internal control and risk management systems to
safeguard shareholder investments and the Group’s assets
on an ongoing basis and for reviewing the effectiveness
of such system on an annual basis. Internal audits were
carried out on all significant operation units of the Group
on an ongoing basis. The senior management reviews and
evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis and reports to the Audit Committee on
any findings and measures to address the variances and
identified risks.

During the year under review, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the internal control and risk
management systems of the Group including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. The Board is of
the opinion that the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group are effective and adequate. The Board
is also reasonably satisfied that there are sufficient resources
of staff with appropriate qualifications and experience in its
accounting and financial reporting team and that sufficient
training and budget have been provided.

External Auditor and Auditor’'s Remuneration

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
report responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on
pages 95 to 103 of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration
paid/payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditor, for annual audit services provided to the Group
and for non-audit services which comprise professional tax
services, amounted to RMB3.4 million and RMB0.5 million,
respectively.
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Dividend Policy

The Company has a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute dividends to
the Shareholders of the Company by way of (i) cash or (ii)
shares. The profit distribution policy of the Company shall
achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy from
time to time and there can be no assurance that dividends
will be paid in any particular amount for any given period.
When considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
the Board will take into account the Group’s financial results,
business conditions and strategies and future operations and
earnings.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions
under the Laws of Hong Kong, the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company

Shareholders’ Rights
Convening an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM’)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association,
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to move new
resolutions at general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law or the Articles of Association. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to
convene a general meeting following the procedures set out
in the preceding paragraph.
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Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders are welcome to send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board addressing to the Company Secretary
of the Company through the following channels with contact
details as set out below:

i) by mail to the Company’s place of business at Unit C,
33/F, TML Tower, No. 3 Hoi Shing Road, Tsuen Wan,
New Territories, Hong Kong; or

i) by email to ir@leoch.com.
Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
shareholders’ meetings.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ mestings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each shareholders’ meeting.

Changes to Constitutional Documents

The adoption the second amended and restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
(the “New M&A”) was approved by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting held on 25 May 2023 incorporating
amendments made for, among others, (i) bringing the relevant
provisions in line with the amendments made to Listing Rules
and applicable laws and procedures of the Cayman Islands;
(i) permitting a general meeting of the Company to be held
as, in addition to a physical meeting, an electronic meeting or
a hybrid meeting where Shareholders may attend the general
meeting remotely through electronic means in addition to
physical attendance in person; and (i) making certain minor
house-keeping amendments for the purpose of clarifying
existing practice and making consequential amendments in
line with the proposed amendments. Accordingly, the New
M&A came into effect on 25 May 2023.
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Relationship with the Controlling
Shareholders

The Company has received, from each of the Controlling
Shareholders, an annual declaration on his/its compliance
with the undertakings contained in the Deed of Non-
Competition entered into by each of them in favour of
the Company pursuant to which each of the Controlling
Shareholders has individually, jointly, unconditionally and
irrevocably undertaken and represented to the Company and
each member of the Group that, among other things, he/it
and his/its associates will not engage, directly or indirectly,
in businesses which will or may compete with the business
carried on or to be carried on by the Group. Details of the
Deed of Non-Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus
under the section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling

Shareholders”.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
have been satisfied that each of the Controlling Shareholders
had complied with the Deed of Non-Competition for the year

ended 31 December 2023.

Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Board believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations
and investors’ understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable shareholders and

investors to make the best investment decisions.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts
a shareholders’ communication policy which sets out
various communication channels for establishing a two-
way relationship and communication between the Company
and the Shareholders. The policy is reviewed on an annual
basis to ensure its effectiveness. The Company maintains a
website at www.leoch.com as a communication platform for
shareholders and investors, where information and updates
on the Group’s business developments and operations,
financial information and other information are available for
public access. Shareholders and investors may write directly
to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
for any inquiries.

The Board considers that general meetings of the Company
provide an important channel for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairmen and/or other members of the Board
committees have endeavored to be available to answer
questions raised by the shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication
and relationship with its investors. Designated senior
management maintains regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.

During the year, the Company has reviewed the
implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy through discussions amongst Board
members during board meetings. The Company has
reviewed communication activities and engagement with
Shareholders conducted in 2023 and was satisfied with
the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy which allowed Shareholders to engage
actively with the Company.
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Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. CHOW Kam
Keung Albert, is the chief financial officer and one of the
employees of the Company.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the Company
Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training in each financial year. Mr. Chow has
provided his training records to the Company indicating that
he has not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
by means of attending in-house briefings, attending seminars
and reading relevant guideline materials.
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Independent Auditor’s Report /

s
EY:

To the shareholders of
Leoch International Technology Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Leoch International Technology Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 104 to
302, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also
include International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

MEEZER &

FREZSRE (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EZ2EBRNMFAIRERREZSEE

Inventory provision

FEAEE

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture,
development and sale of lead-acid batteries and other
related items. Since technology develops rapidly in the
lead-acid battery industry, the Group’s inventories were
subject to significant risk of obsolescence. Significant
judgements and estimates were involved in determining
the amount of provision of slow-moving and obsolete
inventories by management. As the inventory balance
amounting to RMB2,749 million was significant to the
Group, which represented 20% of the total assets of the
Group, and the provision of inventories was made based
on subjective estimates and assumptions concerning
future consumption or sales of inventories, we identified
this as a key audit matter.

EEEFENENS FHENMHEHLEREEMREM
HEAER BRBEREEBNZRNERAR SEE
FEARZSBEANBEEE NEEEETHHKEE
FEMHREBZSBE P REARFIE Rt H
REBHEGREARKE7T4IOBETHEEEMEHBE
K HEEEBELBEZ20% BEEREIRESRM
HBHENFEHER TGt RE&RFL > BLL
EFR UL RRAREZEE

The disclosures about inventories are included in notes 3
and 20 to the financial statements.

ERTFEZRBESH N BRERME3K20°

We obtained an understanding of management’s
process about how to identify the slow-moving and
obsolete inventories and to calculate the amount of
provision.

EEETHEEEARMUNARE FIERREEFS
STEBBTREZEF

We evaluated the sales orders in hand for the
purpose of identifying the slow-moving and obsolete
inventories by checking, on a sampling basis,
the sales orders and agreements, and assessing
the estimated sales taking into account previous
estimations, the historical evidence supporting
underlying assumptions and current market
conditions.
EEEMGEFRHEE] B ETRaMmRZHIEE
STERpEREEFIE;RERFS  WAEEAlh
5 X EBARR 2 ELER RIRITHRHE G5
SHEEER

We also checked on a sampling basis the ageing
reports of inventories and the production records and
sales of inventories made after the year end.
EENEHEFEZREBRERFREZEEL IR
Rz FEIHEETHRER -

For the net realisable value of the slow-moving and
obsolete inventories identified, we checked samples
of recent sales invoices for the value.
M E Z miERBREFEZ R EFEFEMS &
EERHTREESERRAZBE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

ik 3 7 Rt =

FREZSEIR (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EZ2BRNMFAIRERREZSEE

Impairment of trade receivables

B 5B IE R

The trade receivable balance was significant to the
Group, which amounted to RMB3,247 million and
represented approximately 23% of the total assets as at
31 December 2023. Assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables involves a high level of management’s
judgement and estimation. During the year, management
used a provision matrix to calculate expected credit
losses for receivables. The matrix was initially based
on the Group’s historical default rates, and specific
factors that management considered in the estimation
of the rates including the type of customers, ageing of
the balances and recent historical payment patterns.
Management then calibrated the matrix to adjust the
historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information, such as forecasted economic conditions.
BoRRARBEHEEEERMENBER HEHER
AR 247TEB T RN T =F+="A=+—H
2B EMREN23% ¥ B 5 RUGRIE 2 o] YR [E M E WH
AR REAREEE A st £ EIEERA
BHEEEERKANIBZ BEAEEHE - ZEMEY A
DEREEENBTENXRREEBIMETZEEN
KFERNARRAEZ SET AL EeRIRE KT
BEZNEN -HE > SEEHNIEMRETRE  BiBA
BEMER EASERR) ARBEEEHIBAR-

The relevant disclosures are contained in notes 3 and 21
to the financial statements.

B RSB EN M B IR M 321 -
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We evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls which
govern credit control, debt collection and estimate of
expected credit losses (‘ECLS”).
EFEMEEEGEEES EREIRAREERS
18 ((FRERE ER58)) (E5t 2 B BB HIAYRR 5
BifESEBMIE-

We assessed, on a sampling basis, whether items
in the trade receivable ageing report were classified
with the appropriate ageing bracket by comparing
individual items in the report with the relevant sales
invoices.

EEREAAEEF BRSSPI FEIEE HEERH
EEE IHEZRURANBRERSFANEERS
FABENIRE RS

We assessed the adequacy of the ECL provision by
() evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
assumptions used in establishing the ECL provision
matrix; (i) examining the information used by
management to form such estimation, including
testing the accuracy of historical default data,
evaluating whether the historical loss rates were
appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information; and (iii)
examining the actual losses recorded during the
current financial year.
EERBUTAHAFGEREESEERZRRE
MM EEBN R EREEBEEEEREE
RARKRzEES (MEEEBERULF MG
REAZEMN aFBABTENRBIEZ BB M K
L BT EBEXES BRBIRE AL R AT
BERETEERE ; KiMEAREEERFZE
FriEatE o

We checked the relevant disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
EEEREEN GV ERER2BREARE-
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED
IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF

THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs which
comprise standards and Interpretations issued by the
IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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EEHREVBREFHNERIRREZERME
#h BESF RIS REATABXESR

MEFHEREMHREZEZMS  EFHNEE
TRBEHEMEKD WELLBRERERBEMERE
RRGEUBRRAEFEELEETEENE
FHFREERNT ST FEEAERERL 5

ERNEFERTHIF BB R/HEMBERHIE
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF

THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

100
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

ZHEMMBL G EUHRERZAE
TEE Cl'ﬁ)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

ZEIMEZGEMBRRZE
1t (&)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use o HESFRARFECSSHHERZBEHEL

102

of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is M.L. Chau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

o A4S 2L
:£u7FI:I H fm

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_—F+"A=+—HILEE

2023 2022

== TECF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B 5 AR®TT ARETT

(Restated)*

(=& H)*

REVENUE U= 5 13,471,235 12,845,859

Cost of sales THEM A (11,527,528)  (11,251,085)

Gross profit EH] 1,943,707 1,594,774

Other income and gains H A B Wz 5 240,766 292,494

Selling and distribution expenses HERDIEES (464,279) (389,151)

Administrative expenses THREXZ (446,084) (333,676)

Research and development costs IREE R A 6 (371,868) (382,868)
Reversal of impairment/ BERB#EBL,

(impairment losses) on assets, net CRIERS1R) 7$%E 6 4,134 (27,516)
Other expenses HihBasz 7 (38,968) (14,443)
Finance costs B TSRS 8 (223,554) (156,222)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX MarEF] 6 643,854 583,392
Income tax expense T8 11 (76,018) (80,648)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REE @A) 567,836 502,744
Attributable to: LUF AL :

Owners of the parent BREVEE A 535,372 481,075

Non-controlling interests JEVER S 32,464 21,669

567,836 502,744
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B ARIE @A A

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF  FE(h &SRR A

THE PARENT 13
Basic =i RMBAE!¥0.39  RVBAR0.35
Diluted e RMBA E#0.38 RMBA E%0.35
# Details of the restatements are set out in note 2.2 to the * BIFBRNGREHBRRME2.20

consolidated financial statements.

104  Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2023



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HEEENmR

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_—F+"HA=+—HILEE

2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥TT AREF T
(Restated)*
(LB
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEERF] 567,836 502,744
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ Hthem (518 WaE
INCOME
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that  FBEREARIEHHEEE
may be reclassified to profit or loss in BaNEMEE (518)
subsequent periods: g
Debt investments at fair value through NAEEEEE AEHM
other comprehensive income: 2EWENERKLE .
Changes in fair value NREEEE) 22 9) (835)
Income tax effect FRSME 30 2 209
(7) (626)
Exchange differences on translation of S IZIN EFSAVE R =58
foreign operations (20,597) 5,992
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income BRI EFHEE
that may be reclassified to profit or loss (8@ AIE M2 E (518)
in subsequent periods /W sk BB (20,604) 5,366
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 435

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z_—F+"_A=+—HILEEE

BEEN=R

2023 2022
—E= B F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR¥TFT AREF T
(Restated)*
(BRE:H)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income that R EER AR A E = D48
will not be reclassified to profit or loss ERTNEMEM!
in subsequent periods: (B518) /W
Equity investments designated at fEERANEEBEES
fair value through other AHMEER @ ER
comprehensive income: HRE
Changes in fair value NAEEED (17) 172
Income tax effect e E 30 4 16
(13) 188
Exchange differences arising on HINEEEBKREAZYE
translation of functional currency to BELNERERE
presentation currency (4,987) (56,135)
Net other comprehensive loss that will not F2B&E1# HifS & 2948
be reclassified to profit or loss EHRDNEME@E
in subsequent periods B8535 (5,000) (55,947)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR ~ AEEHMEHEEE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HRIRIE (25,604) (50,581)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME REFE 2 E I AR &
FOR THE YEAR 542,232 452,163
Attributable to: DU AT
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZZ=PN 509,720 430,634
Non-controlling interests FEER S 32,512 21,529
542,232 452,163
# Details of the restatements are set out in note 2.2 to the *# B FBHENGEMERRMF2.20

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= .2 H
o=

AA TS AR R

31 December 2023
2=+ RB=+—H

31st 31st 1st
December, December, January,
2023 2022 2022
—ECCE _EICF ZETCF
+=ZB=+—H +-B=+—H —A—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
fysE ARETFT AREFTT ARETT
(Restated)* (Restated)*
(E5)* EEN
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME--BERERE 14 2,963,936 2,289,686 2,291,795
Investment property BEME 15 324 334 345
Right-of-use assets @)ﬂ BEE 16(a) 472,511 239,026 152,860
Goodwill RS 17 2,405 2,405 2,213
Other intangible assets Hitmip g 18 822,674 783,241 771,009
Equity investments designated at fair value I & 12/A A BEEEN 5t A
through other comprehensive income  Eth 2 E G ER 1
| 19 11,967 11,834 11,015
Financial assets at fair value through profit A BB & &5t AR
or loss SHEE 24 303,219 243,210 171,665
Deposits paid for purchase of items of ~ FHUENE  BE KRR EE
property, plant and equipment EF-2EtHES 78,534 63,964 34,650
Deferred tax assets ELRIBEE 30 68,968 71,213 66,263
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 4,724,538 3,704,913 3,501,815
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories =8 20 2,748,720 2,136,470 2,019,256
Trade receivables B S EWHIE 21 3,247,241 2,736,224 2,725,702
Debt investments at fair value through AR EEEB AEME
other comprehensive income AWENEREE 22 189,258 161,405 106,349
Prepayments, other receivables and other FE{370IE At FIE R
assets HitnEE 23 631,017 473,432 223,469
Financial assets at fair value through profit A BB & &5t ABRHH
or loss EHEE 24 25,360 51,951 67,798
Pledged deposits BIRHER 25 965,767 793,806 602,513
Cash and cash equivalents RBeMRESEY 25 1,563,343 436,194 349,229
Total current assets REEERE 9,370,706 6,789,482 6,094,316
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEaE
Trade and bills payables EREMNRERENER 26 3,003,992 2,361,044 2,319,251
Other payables and accruals HMERTIERESER 27 1,476,026 1,052,461 1,077,303
Financial liabilties at fair value through ‘AR EEE H 5t ABHH
profit or loss THER 24 10,340 13 851
Interest-bearing bank and HERTRAEMBEE
other borrowings 28 3,501,194 2,641,654 2,042,493
Lease liabilities HEaR 16(b) 14,254 6,504 4,046
Income tax payable FERTFRTE 204,241 146,923 108,576
Total current liabilities REaEeE 8,210,047 6,208,599 5,552,520
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 1,160,659 580,883 541,796
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEREATDHAR
LIABILITIES 5,885,197 4,285,796 4,043,611
# Details of the restatements are set out in note 2.2 to the BIFBFENEEMBRERWE2.20

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 454 BAf& kR 3R

31 December 2023
TE=F+"HA=+—H

31st 31st 1st
December, December, January,
2023 2022 2022
- St T E S
+ZA=+-H +ZA=t+—-H —A—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Mgzt ARETR ARETT ARETT
(Restated)* (Restated)*
(mE5)" (mE5)*
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES E|TEIN=NE
Convertible bonds R ES ] 29 61,132 - -
Interest-bearing bank and HERTRAMBEE
other borrowings 28 956,169 68,433 329,713
Lease liabilities HEaR 16(b) 32,888 22,667 16,422
Deferred tax liabilities EERIESE 30 99,739 64,180 53,282
Deferred government grants EEBT H G 146,629 94,281 65,129
Total non-current liabilities FRBARER 1,296,557 249,561 464,546
Net assets BERE 4,588,640 4,036,235 3,579,065
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the parent /A G A A (L #R
Share capital N 31 116,971 116,250 116,241
Equity component of convertible bonds BT REE&RI 25 29 26,623 - -
Reserves #iE 33 4,055,568 3,706,028 3,270,396
4,199,162 3,822,278 3,386,637
Non-controlling interests R ER 389,478 213,957 192,428
Total equity T 8% 4,588,640 4,036,235 3,579,085
# Details of the restatements are set out in note 2.2 to the *# B FBEHENGEMBRRMF2.20

consolidated financial statements.

Dong Li

BF

Director

)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in gqU|ty
YL

Year ended 31 December 2023
HEZZT=_F+"A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

SATERAEE
Share Share Statutory ~ Exchange Non-
Share premium Merger option  Fair value reserve fluctuation Retained controling Total
capital account fesenve reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
AR ER
BE RDBEE AREE BRECE BEEE ITHE:  RBEE  RIEN CEENE(ZEE 0 S
RMB'000  RMBO00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBETE ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Note (note 31) (note 33) (note 33) (note 33) (note 33) (note 33) (note 33)
i3 (Mars1)  (ME33)  (Wekss)  (WERSS)  (W&ss)  (Wakss)  (W&SO)
At 31 December 2021 as RIEZ-E+ZR=1-
previously reported B B5RI2R 116,241 1,149,365 281,301 37,932 33,029 183,520 24615 1,560,634 3,386,637 192428 3,579,085
Prior year adjustments (note 2.2) BEEEEE (H:H22) - - - - (34,545) - - 34,545 - - -
At 1 January 2022 (restated) RI2-Z&-F-H
(=5 116,241 1149365 281301 37,932 (1516) 183520 24615 1505179 3386637 192428 357965
Proft for the year (restated) REEHT (L) - - - - - - - 81075 481075 20660 502,744
Other comprehensive income REERMRENE
for the year:
Changes in fair value of equtty BEERANEEETHA
investments designated Hh2ENEmERE
at fair value through other RENAREEZE N
comprehensive income, net of tax WifE ()
(restated) - - - - 188 - - - 188 - 188
Changes in fair value of debt AREESEHT A2
investments at fair value through ARENEEREAR
other comprehensive income, net EEEE NHE
oftax - - - - (626) - - - 626) - 626)
Exchenge difierences on renslation BB EBHER EE
of foreign operations - - - - - - (50,003) - (50,003) (140) (50,143
Total comprehensive income rEERENELE
for the year (restated) (EE5) - - - - (438) - (B0003) 481075 430,634 21529 452,163
Exercise of the share options iEBRE 9 136 - (54) - - - - 9 - 9
Lapse of the share opfions BRERY - - - (578 - - 25745 - - -
Trensfer of fair value resenve of equty ~ BERAMEEEHHAL
investments at fair value through R ERENERERE
other comprehensive income NAREERRE - - - - (236) - - 236 - - -
Appropriations to reserves i1 - - - - 45,709 - 45,709) - - -
Equity-settied share option MNeREENERERS
arangements - - - 4916 - - - 4,916 - 4,916
At 31 December 2022 (restated) RIBZZE+ZA=+-H
(& EF) 116,260 1,149,501 281,301" 17,049 2,190 229.229° (25,388 2,056,526 3,822,278 213957 4,036,235
—Eo 5% - BrEERMEREAE 109



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 4F&tEmEH T

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-=-F+-_A=+—HIHFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATRA N
Equity
component
Share of Share Fair  Statutory  Exchange Non-
Share  premium Merger convertible option value reserve fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  account reserve bonds reserve reserve fund reserve profits Total interests equity
hikES AR ER

BE RivaEk AR NDEZDS BRERE GERE iEHGE  RBEE  RREY Ait FEREE RELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR ABETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARRBTR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
Note (note 31)  (note33) (note33)  (note29)  (mote33)  (note33)  (note33)  (note 33)
(i3 (WsE31)  (F&83)  (H3E98)  (Wskoo)  (H&ss)  (Wss)  (M&ss)  (Hfass)

At 31 December 2022 as RZE_"%+_R
previously reported =+-B &%p2
# 116,250 1,149,501 281,301 - 17,049 70,658 229,229 (25,388) 1,983,678 3,822,278 213,957 4,036,235
Prior year adjustments (note 2.2) BEEEBE (H22) - - - - - (12849 - - T288 - - -
At 1 January 2023 (restated) RZZZ=%-5-H
(55 116,250 1,149,501 281,301 - 1104 (2190 229229  (25388) 2056526 3822278 213957 4,006,235
Profit for the year KEERT o = = = - - - - 535,372 535,372 32,464 567,836
Other comprehensive income for FEEHMRERE
the year:
Changes In fair value of equity BERANEBEES
investments designated FARMRERESN
at fair value through other EnlRENAAE
comprehensive income, net of BEE ke
tax - - - - - (13) - - - (13) - (13
Changes in fair value of debt BARBEEGHA
investments at fair value through Ht2mUENES
other comprehensive income, RENAREEE
net of tax g MikE - - - - - U] = = = m = m
Exchange difierences on BEBINEBNER
tranglation of foreign operations B - - - - - - - (25632 - (25632 48 (25584)
Total comprehensive income for FEERANREE
the year - - - - - 20) - (563%2) 5372 50970 32512 542032
Acquisition of subsidiaries KENBAG - - - - - - - - - - 143009 143,009
Exercise of the share options iERRRE 721 9,207 - - (2,825) - - - - 7,193 - 7,193
Dividends paid S - - - - - - - - (171,660)  (171,660) - (171,660)
Issue of convertible bonds BmaRES - - - 26,623 - - - - - 2668 - 26,623
Appropriations to reserves BERE - - - - - - 75,319 - (15319 - - -
Equity-settled share option NEREENERE
amangements 2 - - - - 5,008 - - - - 5,008 o 5,008
At 31 December 2023 RIEI=f
+ZA=1-H 116,971 1,158,798  281,301* 26,623 19,232* (2210  304,548* (51,020 2,344,919* 4,199,162 389,478 4,588,640
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * L EREBEROEFEUBRRNERAZEEHE
of RMB4,055,568,000 (2022: RMBS3,706,028,000) in the AR #4,055,568,0007t (ZE - _F : AR
consolidated statement of financial position. 3,706,028,0007T) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

E%ﬁzﬂusgéé

Year ended 31 December 2023

BE_Z_=—F+_"_A=+—HLEE

2023 2022
—ECC=F ==
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT AREF T
(Restated)*
(feEH) *
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING K& XEFIBIRESRE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax A R A 643,854 583,392
Adjustments for: MTFNZBEEHRE .
Finance costs 2R InIN 8 223,554 156,222
Interest income FEWA 5 (19,929) (16,451)
Fair value loss/(gain) from financial NAEEEEFT ABRZNE

assets at fair value through profit or ~ BB ERI QA REE
loss, net B8 (W) iP5 6 12,110 (42,418)
RABEEHFTABENS

mEBEnNAEE W)

Fair value (gain)/loss from financial
liabilities at fair value through profit

or loss, net /518 38 6 (1,074) 13
Loss on disposal of items of property, EEEYIH HEKRKEEE

plant and equipment HIES 18 6 14,079 1,492
Gain on lease modifications HEBRINE - (135)
Depreciation of property, plant and ¥ ¥ - BE K&K EITE

equipment 14 323,369 351,048
Depreciation of investment property & B FEITE 15 10 11
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREETE 16(a) 19,991 9,610
Amortisation of intangible assets W B EH 18 237,800 200,873
Amortisation of deferred government 15 ZEIE T /i B 8 24

grants (17,253) (8,281)
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment & 7 FEUFRIE

of trade receivables CRERED]) /RE 21 (4,134) 27,516
Impairment of inventories EFERIE 20 20,812 5,553
Dividend income from financial assets % \ﬁbtﬁﬁ’”@] S ABTN

at fair value through profit or loss TRBEENRKRERA 5 (8,288) (7,343)

Equity-settled share option expenses U4t E YRS R Z 6 5,008 4,916
Gain on bargain purchase BB S 6 (75,835) -
1,374,074 1,266,018
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 48 IRE&HER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE_Z-=-F+-_A=+—HIHFE

2023 2022
—E=F ==
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT ARBT T
(Restated)*
(feEH)
Increase in inventories FEEM (397,805) (126,072)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 WGBS I (452,384) (27,889)
Increase in debt investments at fair A DEBEEE T AEMMEE
value through other comprehensive WXz FIEF5 3% E 10
income (27,862) (55,890)
Increase in prepayments, other BAFIE HtEWRIERE
receivables and other assets fhE EE (141,591) (241,092)
Decrease in financial assets at BAREEERE ABGR
fair value through profit or loss NEREE 9,623 -
Increase/(decrease) in financial liabilities 12 A A BEZE T ABENE
at fair value through profit or loss RheEEm S Gl 636 (851)
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 FE{T R0 IE K FE (S 45120 528,807 36,033
Increase/(decrease) in other payables Efth & FRIE K fE 5+ & FH
and accruals @, GRi) 133,807 (24,842)
Cash generated from operations KRETFAAFIRE 1,027,305 825,415
Income tax paid BIFER (63,607) (37,251)
Net cash flows from operating activities &8 & R BIFT 1218 & R 85 58 963,698 788,164
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING KREZHAERESME
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B & 19,929 16,451
Purchases of items of property, plant BES Y% - MEKZHEIEB
and equipment (623,664) (368,929)
Proceeds from disposal of items of ~ BEEYXE -HWEMREEEN
property, plant and equipment FTigsIE 5,589 3,170
Dividend income from financial assets ‘A B EEE =t ABHEH
at fair value through profit or loss STHEENREWA 5 8,288 7,343
Proceeds from disposal of financial ~ HERTERAADBEEE T A
assets at fair value through BmlETHEE
profit or loss BIPT1SRIE 6,066 468
Additions of financial assets at EINEER AN BEEBETA
fair value through profit or loss BaNEmEE (60,000) (20,000)
Additions of intangible assets BmnErEE 18 (275,362) (211,027)
Additions of right-of-use assets BINEREEE 16(a) (5,538) (81,555)
Acquisition of subsidiaries/a subsidiary WM EBAS
—E B AT 37 62,776 (3,320)
Increase in pledged deposits B IRERRIE 0 (171,961) (191,293)
Receipt of deferred government grants U EX 3 AiE F T 4 Bb 69,601 37,433
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 45 IRE&HER

Year ended 31 December 2023
BHE_ T =—F+_A=t—HILEE

2023 2022
—EBC=F == —
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT AREF T
(Restated)*
(B H) *
Net cash flows used in investing KEEBTRARESREFEE
activities (964,276) (811,259)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ~~ REEEFMERERE
ACTIVITIES
Issue of shares, net of issuance B 1n 21T BREEITHIS
expenses 31 7,193 91
New bank borrowings MERITEE 6,369,079 4,521,004
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRITEE (4,918,582) (4,279,024)
Interest paid BAFHE (223,554) (156,222)
Principal portion of lease payments ~ HERAEE 2 (12,194) (4,920)
Dividends paid BETIRE (171,660) -
Proceeds from issue of convertible BT AR B BIPT IS IE
bonds 87,755 -
Net cash flows from financing activities BAE SEBNFT1SIR &R =548 1,138,037 80,929
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH IR& KIRSEBYIL I 58
EQUIVALENTS 1,137,459 57,834
Cash and cash equivalents at REVNRESRIEEEY
beginning of year 436,194 349,229
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXEHNTE 35
changes, net (10,310) 29,131
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MEXRMNIESKIBEEHEBY
END OF YEAR 1,563,343 436,194
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH  IR& KIREEBYLEERDIT
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B MIRIT4EER 25 1,563,343 436,194
# Details of the restatements are set out in note 2.2 to the * BIFBEHENGEMHBRERMF2.20

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

R 75 ¥ 2= Y 5E

31 December 2023
—EC=£+-A=+—H

1.

114

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Leoch International Technology Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 27 April 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act, Chapter 22 (Act 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s shares have been listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 16 November 2010. The
registered office of the Company is located at the office
of Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, and the
address is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) are principally engaged in power solutions
business and the recycled lead business.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), the immediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Master
Alliance Investment Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Dr. Dong
Li.

Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

1. REREEEN (&

BRMEBATZERN
AABEEMBATNFBLNT -

as follows:
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and  Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
AL/ R
WEAR ML/ EMAH REEHI BETRARES  FARREEEEAN W FERH
Direct Indirect
B GfE
% %
TERETEMAR/AE (Leoch Battery 11 March 2003 PRC/Chinese RMB577,909,382 - 100 Investment holding and
(Jiangsu) Corp.) (*Jiangsu Leoch”) () Mainland* manufacture and sale of lead-
acid batteries
IHETENARAS NI&BL) () "FF=F=A+-H  HE/RERM  AR¥5779093827 REZR RENHERREE
ZFETERRMARAFZhaoging Leoch 9 May 2005 PRC/Chinese 1US$103,780,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Battery Technology Co., Ltd.) Mainland* manufacture and sale of lead-
(Zhaoging Leoch”) (i) acid batteries
EFETERMERAT “ZTRFRANA HE/ E Rt 103,780,000% 7t RERR RENHERRESY
(TEEEL)) (i)
ZHNEARERRITERAR 26 July 2006 PRC/Chinese US$10,000,000 - 100 Menufacture and sale of lead-acid
(Anhui Uplus Energy Technology Co., Ltd.) Mainland* batteries
(‘Anhui Uplus’) (i)
ZHNBURERRMARAD IETRELAITRE  RE/RERN 10,000,000% 7 RENBERREEN
(ZBAEHE) ()
AITELMERERERAD 26 April 1999 PRC/Chinese RMB882,030,381 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(Leoch Shenzhen Renewable Energy Mainland* lead-acid batteries
Co., Ltd)) (‘Leoch New Energy’) ()
AIBELHERERERAR —NANFEAZ+ARE  E/RERN  ARK8820303817% RERRAHENREEH
(TBLHAER) ()
BRMETMERERAT 27 November 2002 PRG/Chinese RMB3,500,000 - 100 Leasing of properties
(Dongguan Leoch Battery Technology Mainland*
Co., Ltd)) ()
RRmELHERERAT) ZEZTET-ACHER RE/RERMT ARHES500,0007 RENE
Leoch International Sales Ltd 31 December 2010 Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch International Sales’)
ErERHFEERAT (BLERHE) —T-T£+°F=+-B &3 BT HERMBESH
Leoch Power Supply (H.K.) Limited 18 August 2004 Hong Kong HK$12,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Power Supply’) lead-acid batteries
ErER (E%) ERAS (BLEF) _TEMEN\B+AA 5 12,000,000 7 REERMHFERRESH
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR Mtz

31 December 2023
TEI=F+"HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ANEAIKREBRBER #)
INFORMATION (continued)

. e e e = = AN =1
Information about subsidiaries BERMBABZER (8)
(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and  Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ML R
WEAR ML/ HREH REENY BETREEES  FRARGEZESNL  TEEH
Direct Indirect
BE G}
% %
Leoch Battery Corporation 17 June 2003 USA™ UUS83,256,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Corp.’)
Leoch Battery Corporation ZZE=ERATER 2@ 3,256,000% 7T HERMETH
(TLeoch Battery Corp. )
Honour Label Investments Limited 28 February 2005 BV Us$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Honour Label’)
Honour Label Investments Limited ZERECACHA\R  EBRUBE™ BT RERR
("Honour Label })
Peak Year Investments Limited (‘Peak Year’) 25 January 2007 BVl USS1 - 100 Investment holding
Peak Year Investments Limited ZZtF-A+EH  EREUHEE™ BT RERR
("Peak Year )
Shieldon International Limited (‘Shieldon”) 19 January 2007 BVl USS1 - 100 Investment holding
Shieldon International Limited “ZZtE-BTARA HRELHE™ BT RERR
(" Shieldon J)
Leoch Battery Company Limited 25 April 2007 Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
(‘Leoch Battery Company’) lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery Company Limited “TEHERA-+RA EE 1,000,000 7 REARAHERRESH

(TLeoch Battery Company |)

ARELRERRITERAR 15 March 2006 PRC/Chinese RMB300,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Nanjing Leoch Battery Technology Mainland*
Co., Ltd) ()
BRETRERRTARAH) “ZEE=RA+RA RE/REIRH AR 300,007 HERREEH
FRETRERRMGERAG 14 December 2004 PRC/Chinese RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Beijing Leoch Engineering Technology Mainland*
Co., Ltd) ()
FRBLRERRITERAH) “E2IME+ZATmA REAERY AE#1,000,00070 HERBEEH
FBLENREMERAR 27 September 2007 PRC/Chinese RMB1,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Leoch Battery Shenzhen Corp.) (i) Mainland*
B EMIERAR) ZZZLEARZHEE  RE/RERMT AR 1,000,007 HERBEEH
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31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ANEAIKREBRER #)
INFORMATION (continued)

. T = = =221y =1
Information about subsidiaries BRMBABZER (8)
(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and  Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ML/ R
WEAR ML EMAH REEHH BETRARES  FAAREERERAN W TERH
Direct Indirect
BE GfE
% %
Catherine Holdings International Company 3 May 2010 BvI™ Us$4 100 - Investment holding
Limited (‘Catherine Holdings")
Catherine Holdings International “Z$-ZERRZH EBEUBE™ 4ET Bty
Company Limited
(T'Catherine Holdings |)
Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. 5 Apri 2010 Singapore 8G$2,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(‘Leoch Battery Pte.’)
Leoch Battery Pte. Ltd. “2-FENAEH g 2,000,0003 1% 7 HENMETH
(TLeoch Battery Pte. |)
Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. 21 April 2011 Singapore SG$1 - 100 Investment holding
(‘Leach International Holding’)
Leoch International Holding Pte. Ltd. “E——EMA"+-H  HME ko RERR
("Leoch International Holding |)
UL ERRITBRAT 26 October 2010 PRC/Chinese RMB625,817,381 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(Anhui Leoch Power Supply Corp.) Mainland* batteries
(‘Anhui Leoch Power’) ()
ZHETERRIEERAT “Z-RELACTAR EMERMT  ARM625817,3817% RENHERRERH
(ZHEBLER)()
Leoch Lanka (Private) Ltd. 26 January 2012 Sri Lanka LKR337,712,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
batteries
Leoch Lanka (Private) Lid. “BCE-A45H BEFT 337,712,000 REMBERRIEN
HEEREL
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited 31 October 2012 India INR305,988,330 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Batteries India Private Limited “2_&£+f=+-H B 305,988, 330N E L HENREEH
Big Help Group Limited (‘Big Help”) 19 May 2011 Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
Big Help Group Limited (T Big Help 1) ZZ——FRAt+NHE i 1B REEK
BIRERE (RY) BRAF 23 June 2014 PRC/Chinese RMB1,607,458,555 - 100 Investment holding
(Leoch Investment Development Mainland*
(Shenzhen) Limited) (i)
BIEREERE (R BRAD) “2-mERAZT=A REMERMT  AR1607,4586557 wark
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31 December 2023
TEI=F+"HA=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

1. REIRERER (&)

ERMBATZER (&)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and  Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ML R
WEAR ML/ EMAH REENY BETRARES  FAAREERERAN W FERH
Direct Indirect
BE G}
% %

AN URERRITERAD 29 November 2012 PRC/Chinese HK$10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Shenzhen Lihang Battery Technology Mainland*

Co., Ltd.) (i)

RNIMBRREERAT() ZZ2-ZFt-AZTNE HEAEMN 10,000,000% 7% RELER

Leoch Super Power India Pvt 7 August 2015 [ndia INR259,110,200 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Leoch Super Power Indlia Pvt ZZ-AF\BtH fE 259,110 20080 E E HENMBENRESH

Energymax Power (M) Sdn Bhd 10 July 2016 Malaysia MYR40,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(‘Energymax’) batteries

Energymax Power (M) Sdn Bhd “Z—EtATH BERAT 40,000,000 RENHEARESH
(TEnergymax ) ERFEELE

ZHASNEHAEBRMNBEBRAT 9 September 2016 PRC/Chinese RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
(Anhui Uplus New Energy Material Mainland”*

Technology Co., Ltd.)
(‘Anhui Uplus New Energy’) ()

ZUNBNEHERMNEEERAS  ZE-REABAR RE/REIRH AR 15,000,007 REER
(MEHAEREIER)

AABREEFRKBERAT 9 January 2017 PRC/Chinese RMB110,000,000 - 60 Recycling and remanufacture of
(Taihe Dahua Energy Technology Co., Ltd.) Mainland* lead from batteries disposed of
(‘Taihe Dahua’) ()

AMBEAEERHRBRAT “Z—tE-FhA HEAERST  AR#110,000,0007T BEEENENRBLEN
(TKHMEXE) ()

Tele Power Sdn. Bhd. (‘Tele Power’) 28 July 1999 Malaysia MYR1,000,000 - 51 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Tele Power Scn. Bnd. (I Tele Power 1) “AANELAZTNE  BRER 1,000,000 HEMNHENRETY

ERATLYE

Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vigtnam UUS83,750,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Leoch Battery (Vietnam) Limited ZtFAAZTAE  H#E 3,750,000% 7% RENHEAREE

Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited 29 September 2017 Vigtnam US$2,100,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid

batteries

Leoch Super Power (Vietnam) Limited “Z—tEARZTAR R 2,100,000%7 HEMBHENRESH
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries

31 December 2023

B =F#+"H=+—H

1. REIRERER (&)

ERMBATZER (#)

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries registration and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ML/ R
HEAF ML/ HREH REENY BETREEES  FRARGEZESNL  TEEH
Direct Indirect
BE 5}
% %
Leoch France 23 November 2017 France EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leach France “E—tE+-AZ+=H #E 100,0008%7¢ HESRERM
Leoch Nordeuropa GmbH 22 February 2018 Germany EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Nordeuropa GmbH “E-\£”A_+-H £ 100,0008%7¢ HENMETH
Leoch Italia s.r. 11 October 2018 Italy EUR100,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch ltalia s ZZ-)\F+At-B  EBAA 100,007 HERRERH
Leoch DBS Limited (‘'LDBS’) 28 June 2017 United Kingdom GBP751,000 - 100 Investment holding
Leoch DBS Limited (TLDBS ) TEtERAITNRE HE 751,00048% REER
Leoch Battery UK Ltd. (‘LBUK’) 20 October 2015 United Kingdom GBP3,163,929 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery UK Ltd. (FLBUK J) “Z-RE+AZ+A HE 3,163,020 5% HENBEEH
FIETERERERAD 21 September 2020 PRC/Chinese RMB10,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
(Shenzhen Leoch Power Development Mainland”*
Co., Ltd) ()
RAIELEREEERAT) “Z2EEAAZH-HB  EMFEMAM  AKH10,000,0007 HERREEH
ZHETHAERERERAT 3 September 2018 PRC/Chinese RMB350,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of lithium
(Anhui Leoch Renewable Energy Mainland* batteries
Development Co., Ltd.) (“Anhui Leoch
Energy’) ()
ZHETIERERERAT “Z-\ENA=H RE/AERT  ARHES50,000,0007T RERHERSH
(MZHEBLHAER) ()
ZHEEHEERAF 11 August 2021 PRC/Chinese USD45,000,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Mainland”*
ZYEEEZERAF “2”-E\At-H RE)/ARE P 45,000,000% 7T HERMERH
TERETHAERRRERA ) 9 December 2021 PRC/Chinese RMB304,965,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Mainland”*
THEH IR EERA) “2T-E+ZRANA RE/APEMMT  ARHE304,965,0007 HERMERH
Leoch Battery Australia Pty. Ltd. 20 September 2019 Australia AUD200,000 - 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Leoch Battery Australia Pty. Ltd. “2-NENFZTH bl 200,008 7 HENREEH

“EBEC-FFR - BEXERKNERAS
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1. REREEEN (&

ERMBATZER (&)

Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2023

(continued)
Place of
incorporation/
Date of incorporation/ registration Issued and  Percentage of equity interest
Subsidiaries and business paid-up capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
ML R
WEAF ML/ HREH REENY BETREEES  FRARGEZESNL  TEEH
Direct Indirect
BE 5}
% %
FIETEXERERAT PRC/Chinese RMB10,000,000 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Mainland*
BT ELEERRAT FRE)/ AR E R AE10,000,0007C HERMETH
ERELHEERAF PRC/Chinese RMB200,000,000 100 Raw material procurement of lead-
Mainland* acid batteries
BEEIREERAR RE/FRERMT ARE200,000,0007 I EB MR RHRE
LEOCH IBERIA SL. (‘IBERIA") Spain EUR512,020.24 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
LEQCH IBERIA SL. (TIBERIA J) -AAZERAZ+-H AT 512,020.24E8 7T HERBERH
FEALENERAT PRC/Chinese USD92,400,000 70 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(Tianjin GS BATTERY Co., Ltd) Mainland* batteries
(‘Tianjin GS”)
FEALBNERAR (XEAL) —“WA—E+ZAZ+N\B FE/FRERY 92,400,000% 7T HEREENREEN
s et (EE BRAR PRC/Chinese USD26,000,000 70 Manufacture and sale of lead-acid
(Yuasa Battery (Shunde) Co., Ltd.) Mainland* batteries
(‘Shunde Yuasa’)
maas (B2 BRAS (EERE) FRE AR E 26,000,000 7t RERHERRERY
RERNMRREERAT PRC/Chinese USD57,991,000 9582 Recycling and remanufacture of
(Tianjin Juli Material Technology Co., Ltd.) Mainland* lead from batteries disposed of
(“Tianjin JuLi’)
FERNMERRERAT (XERA) —ZTRE-REA RE)/ARE Pt 57,991,000E 7 BEETHOUNLELES
BRELHERNRERAR PRC/Chinese Ni 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Mainland*
EREHHERRRERAT ZERIZERAZHRE REAFERM & HERMESH
IHETBEERERAT PRG/Chinese Nil 100 Sale of lead-acid batteries
Mainland*
IHETBEERERAT RE)/ARE Pt & HERMESH



Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries
(continued)

* PRC represents the People’s Republic of China which
excludes, for the purpose of this report, the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the PRC, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan.

* USA represents the United States of America.

**  BVI represents the British Virgin Islands.

(i) The company is registered as limited companies under
PRC law.
(i) These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned

enterprises under PRC law.

During the year, the Group acquired Tianjin GS, Shunde
Yuasa and Tianjin JuLi from third parties. Further details
of these acquisitions are included in note 37 to the
financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

31 December 2023
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31 December 2023
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2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION

122

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), (which include all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB”), and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income, debt investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION

(continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangement;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

31 December 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR Mtz

31 December 2023
—E-=f+-H=+-0H

2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of subsidiaries, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over subsidiaries, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill)
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the exchange
fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.2RESTATEMENT

Restatement in relation to the Group’s equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

In previous years, the Group classified certain
investments as equity investments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income upon the
first adoption of IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” effected
in 2018. During the year, the Group has reviewed the
terms and condition of these investments and noted
that these investments should have been classified
as “Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss”. Accordingly, adjustments have been made
retrospectively to reclassify these investments from

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

2.2 8%

BAEEIEERANBEEF S ARLMERE
WampIEEM IR ERRMES]

RBREE RIZE— \FETRBERM
HREEFSR M TR R AEERK
ETRENERIBERRANBEZSFA
HiteHWmNEREERE - NAFE > A
EEEHASRENFRRFHETES
IWEREZEREREDER ANEEE
st ABmz ERMEE) o EIb BETEY
RE RBZEFREHTEERANEEED
StARMEEE @R EREIENDES
MARBEEFHABa . ERMEE

“Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income” to “Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss”.

The impact of the prior year adjustments to the financial

BEFERAEHAEEMHRROTEHT

statements of the Group are set forth below. ke
31 December 1 January
2022 2022
S - 5
+—A = —
=+—H —H—H
RMB$’000 RMB$’000
AR®FT AREF T
Consolidated statement of financial position: 48 & B F5AR R
Decrease in equity investments IEERANBEEFHFA
designated at fair value through other Hih 2wz
comprehensive income EmMERE R 243,210 171,665
Increase in financial assets through AR ERIEEEN
profit or loss 243,210 171,665
Decrease in reserve-fair value reserve EERL— R EBEHE 72,848 34,545
Increase in reserve-retained profits HEEN—REER 72,848 34,545
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31 December 2023
—E-=f+-H=+-0H

2.2RESTATEMENT (continued)

126

2285 (&

Year ended
31 December
2022
8E
—ECCF
+=8
=+—H
IEFE
RMB$’000
ARETT
Consolidated statement of profit or loss ~ GREEmXMIFEEMEZEEER
and Consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income:
Increase in other income and gains B AU A B Wz 1 0 50,767
Increase in income tax expense FriS iR B 218 0 12,464
Decrease in other comprehensive (loss)/  REEREBAGEHRDIEEETH
income that will not be reclassified to Hith2m| (58 Wam
profit or loss in subsequent periods 38,303

The adjustment has been applied as of the beginning of
the earliest period presented and has been consistently
applied throughout all relevant prior periods. The
cumulative effect of the adjustment is reflected in
the opening balances of equity for the earliest period
presented.

Management believes that this change provides a more
faithful representation of the consolidated financial
position of the Group and of its consolidated financial
performance. The impact on the comparative financial
statements is disclosed for the benefit of stakeholders
and to ensure transparency in our financial reporting.
This adjustment does not impact the current year’s
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.2RESTATEMENT (continued)

The following tables disclose the adjustment that have
been made by the directors of the Group to each of
the line items in the consolidated statements of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022 and 1 January 2022.

Year ended 31 December 2022
ﬁ:l:— = ——ﬂz
+ZB=+—HILEEFE

31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

228FE5| (#)

TREEAEEESHBE S "F+=
B=+—HLEEENGEERR HKE2E
WamRURR S _F+_A=+—HK
T A —HGEEUBRRRPE

#0575 B PR AgsREE o
As previously Prior year
reported  adjustment Restated
BEFE
S Al 23 AE el

RVMB$'000  RMB$'000  RMB$'000

AEBTT ARBTT ARETT

Other income and gains HAWA R W= 241,727 50,767 292,494
Income tax expense FTEfR> (68,184) (12,464) (80,648)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RNEERF 464,441 38,303 502,744
Attributable to: DR AL,

Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZZ=PN 442772 38,303 481,075

TR R - BTEREHARAR 127



Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR Mtz

31 December 2023
TE=F+"HA=+—H

2.2RESTATEMENT (continued) 2.2&E% (4)
As previously Prior year
reported  adjustment Restated
BEFE
Gl E HE KB
Year ended 31 December 2022 RMB$'000 RMB$000  RMB$000
S
+ZB=1+—HLEE ARBTT AREKTT ARBTT
Equity investments designated at BEBRANBEEESFTAEM
fair value through other S2EBENERERE .
comprehensive income:
Changes in fair value @ﬁﬁ@ =) 50,939 (50,767) 172
Income tax effect T2 (12,448) 12,464 16
38,491 (38,3093) 188
Net other comprehensive (loss)/income FBERBEASEHDEE
that will not be reclassified to profit or ~ 1E8&HMEMEE (F18)
loss in subsequent periods W s % 2R (17,644) (38,303) (55,947)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS))  AEEHMZEE (§518) /
INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF Wi o BRIRIE
TAX (12,278) (38,303) (50,581)
As previously Prior year
reported  adjustment Restated
BEFE
Gl E AR KE5|
31 December 2022 RMB$’000 RMB$'000 RMB$'000
“E"F+"RB=1+—H ARBTT ARETRT ARBTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Equity investments designated at fair ~ IEEI&A A BEZE A
value through other comprehensive H 2R amERERE
income 255,044 (243,210) 11,834
Financial assets at fair value through A #ABEES st ABEH
profit or loss TRMEE - 243,210 243,210
Total non-current assets FERBBEELE 3,704,913 - 3,704,913
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31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

2.2RESTATEMENT (continued) 2285 (#8)
As previously Prior year
reported  adjustment Restated
BEFE
Gl E AR RE7|
1 January 2022 RMB$’000 RMB$’000 RMB$’000
- "F—HF—H ARETT ARBTT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Equity investments designated at far 15 A A BEZEFT A
value through other comprehensive Hth2EmWENER TR E
income 182,680 (171,665) 11,015
Financial assets at fair value through ARABEEH ABRN
profit or loss TREE - 171,665 171,665
Total non-current assets FERBEERE 3,501,815 - 3501815

2.3CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two

BIFRE st 2R E 1S RER

HBREERERRS

BERRVERT AR

Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Model Rules

BN 5t 2R EesREvER ] A
BIRESt2RBI2RMEEI A HE-CFELZ

Bl & 51285 1289195 K

20 8 HEARR BRI

FEREAFEFHREETRA T THR
SIRAMESTBIBIPR R B 3R S Rl

ESHRRE

B EHTE

BERGREBZ

BB E —

B HRERIRA
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31 December 2023
—E-=f+-H=+-0H

2.3CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

130

The nature and impact of the new and revised IFRSs
that are applicable to the Group are described below:

(@)

Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements, it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
provide non-mandatory guidance on how to
apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the
material accounting policy information in note
2.5 to the financial statements. The amendments
have had an impact on the Group’s disclosures of
accounting policies, but not on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the
Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
Since the Group’s approach and policy align with
the amendments, the amendments had no impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.3CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(©)

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no
longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to
recognise a deferred tax asset (provided that
sufficient taxable profit is available) and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions.

The Group has applied the amendments on
temporary differences related to leases as at
1 January 2022, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the balance of
retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the Group
has applied the amendments prospectively
to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations that occurred on or
after 1 January 2022, if any.

31 December 2023
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31 December 2023
—E-=f+-H=+-0H

2.3CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(©)

(continueq)

Prior to the initial application of these
amendments, the Group did not apply the initial
recognition exemption to lease transactions
and had recognised the related deferred tax,
except that the Group previously determined
the temporary difference arising from a right-
of-use asset and the related lease liability on a
net basis on the basis they arise from a single
transaction. Following the amendments, the
Group has determined the temporary differences
in relation to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. The change primarily impacts
disclosures of components of deferred tax assets
and liabilities in the annual financial statements,
but does not impact the overall deferred tax
balances presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position as the related deferred tax
balances qualify for offsetting under IAS 12.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.3CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
(continued)

(d)

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform
— Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development, The amendments
also introduce disclosure requirements for the
affected entities to help users of the financial
statements better understand the entities’
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes, including
the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two
income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar
Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of
known or reasonably estimable information of their
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in
which the legislation is enacted or substantively
enacted but not yet in effect. The Group has
applied the amendments and the mandatory
temporary exception retrospectively. Further
disclosures are included in note 11 to the financial
statements.

23%E
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2.4ISSUED BUT NOT YET

134

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements. The Group intends to apply
these revised IFRSs, if applicable, when they become
effective.

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current (the 2020
Amenadments’) !

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 1

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the “2022 Amendments’)!

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7
and IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements’

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability”

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025
8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption
Further information about those IFRSs that are

expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.
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2.4ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
was removed by the IASB. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of
IFRS 16 (.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.4ISSUED BUT NOT YET
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EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that
a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of
a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability
as current or non-current. Additional disclosures are
required for non-current liabilities that are subject to
the entity complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period. The amendments are
shall be applied retrospectively with earlier application
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments
early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based
on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.4ISSUED BUT NOT YET

EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows
and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of
the amendments is permitted. The amendments
provide certain transition reliefs regarding comparative
information, quantitative information as at the beginning
of the annual reporting period and interim disclosures.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity
shall assess whether a currency is exchangeable
into another currency and how it shall estimate a
spot exchange rate at a measurement date when
exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of
financial statements to understand the impact of a
currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application
is permitted. When applying the amendments, an
entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate
component of equity, where appropriate, at the date of
initial application. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income, debt
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

142

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques

for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2023

25 BEREGETHER (&

R[RBESE (B

FRE ARBERAYHRKFTETIRENE
EREEDBERBANEEFEZRME B
BERNRBEHABELUTANBERR
par I

E—Hk — BERBERBENEENE
BTIZRRE CRIEHE)

B2 — ERHAABESEMS
BEANAEER EZE
B RMEERABERNGEE
T3

E=H - ERHQAIABESEMS
BEANAIHRERERE
BABBENGEES X

IR B LR EN A HREEDNEER
BEME > ~EEBBNRSREMAREMT
moE ERHRAABEFEREMNSEBE
ANRBEBOAMER EERSEETRF
AREERS o



Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets and
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated
as the higher of the asset’'s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a
portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on
a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to the
smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
()  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(il

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection
is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property,
plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years
Tooling and equipment 3-5 years
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.
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31 December 2023
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

148

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis over
the estimated useful life of 48 years.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition as cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the fair
value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
intangible assets are assessed to be finite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are
reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements BA7& Rk =Rz /

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Computer software

Computer software of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship of the Group is amortised on the
straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 10
years.

Trademark

Trademark of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 8 years.

Licence

Licence of the Group is amortised on the straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 10 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit
or loss as incurred.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

150

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Research and development costs (continueq)

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised using the straight-
line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from
the date when the products are put into commercial
production.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(@

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Properties
Plant and machinery

46 to 50 years
2 to 9 years
3 to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

152

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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Notes to Financial Statements B4 7 #R = Mi:E /

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

154

POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and

rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

156

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business
model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss and computed in the same manner as for financial
assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair
value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value
change recognised in other comprehensive income is
recycled to the statement of profit or loss.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

158

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds
as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on the equity
investments are also recognised as other income in the
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2.5
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
(continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

162

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs
are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information. The Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are one year past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

(continued)

General approach (continued)

A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual

cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
trade receivables and contract assets which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which
credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but
that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

164

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings or payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
bills payables, other payables and accruals, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and interest-
bearing bank borrowings.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in
the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group
that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

166

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS
9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, except for the gains or
losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which
are presented in other comprehensive income with no
subsequent reclassification to the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the statement of financial position, net of transaction
costs. On issuance of convertible bonds, the fair
value of the liability component is determined using a
market rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond;
and this amount is carried as a long term liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised
and included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction
costs. The carrying amount of the conversion option
is not remeasured in subsequent years. Transaction
costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on
the allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

168

POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as commodity future contracts to hedge its price
fluctuation risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of

derivatives are recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis. The costs of raw materials comprise
the purchasing costs of the materials and other costs
incurred in bringing the materials to their present
locations and conditions. The costs of work in progress
and finished goods comprise direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of manufacturing
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices, less estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of
generally within three months that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined
above, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

170

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.

When the effect of the time value of money is material,
the amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the
sale of certain industrial products for general repairs of
defects occurring during the warranty period. Provisions
for these assurance-type warranties granted by the
Group are initially recognised based on sales volume
and past experience of the level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present values as appropriate. The
warranty-related cost is revised annually.
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions (continued)

A contingent liability recognised in a business
combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of (i) the
amount that would be recognised in accordance with
the general policy for provisions above and (i) the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
amount of income recognised in accordance with the
policy for revenue recognition.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

25 BEREETHER (&

Btk (B

REBEHPHESHNIARBIRRANE
B5tE-H& ®()/RE LI —AR B IR
009 5 B8 K (i AR 5 W e B SR B SR A 4R BE BB BY
TEUR BT A TR WER) ReES

=
EO

FRiFis

PSR BN AR R AR SEAR TR AR A, - BARE SRR
mINVIE B ABRABIFRISHN > BTEIE m SNERD
mEMEEWN @ BT AR

BIEARRIEE B & B B TRRMEIR B = E 56FT
RIENES TR E - IRAORE (k
ME) RINREARSEMIAR LEEM
RE (KRE) > BHEEBAEREEFE
& RITHIERE R BERIEE-

FIEMIBRABEEZE Y HRESBRIM
= HATAR SRS HARMEEN AR
EEEFRERTRIMS SRt EE
R

ZEI=FER - BTEREMERAT 171



Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR Mtz

31 December 2023
—E-=f+-H=+-0H

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable

temporary differences, except:

172

where the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

174

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which is intended
to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
government grant account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration

to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised
under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period
between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in IFRS 15.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

176

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(@) Sale of industrial products
Revenue from the sale of industrial products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the industrial products.

(b) Sale of properties
Revenue from the sales of properties is
recognised at the point in time when control of the
ownership is transferred to the buyer.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including Directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
in exchange for equity instruments (‘equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial lattice model.
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178

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of the reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of
profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other
conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised
as if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. This includes any award where
non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it
is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

180

POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Chinese Mainland are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the Directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when
they are proposed and declared.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

182

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB. In prior
years, the Company’s functional currency was RMB.
As at 1 July 2018, the Directors had re-evaluated
the economic environment of the Company and
determined that the functional currency of the Company
has been changed from RMB to USD given its major
funding and financing activities were raised increasingly
in USD. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than the RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and
liabilities of these entities are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into RMB at the exchange rates that
approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.5MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

184

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continueqd)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease
term not constituting a major part of the economic
life of the commercial property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments not amounting
to substantially all the fair value of the commercial
property, that it retains substantially all the significant
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.

Tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Group
to make judgements on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates
tax implications of transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and practices and makes tax
provisions accordingly.

The Group’s determination as to whether to recognise
deferred tax liability for withholding taxes from the
distribution of dividends from the subsidiaries in the
PRC according to the relevant tax jurisdictions is
subject to judgement on the timing of distribution of
dividends. The Directors had assessed whether it is
probable for the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to distribute
dividends out of their profits earned after 1 January
2008. For details, refer to note 30 to the financial
statements.
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186

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial years, are described
below.

Impairment of gooawill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2023
was RMB2,405,000 (2022: RMB2,405,000). Further
details are given in note 17 to the financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of
credit insurance).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (continued)

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of a customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 21 to the
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwil|)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

3.

31 December 2023
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31 December 2023
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Usetul lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations, competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles or unforeseeable change in legal
enforcement rights in future. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write off or write
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that
have been abandoned or sold.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related amortisation charges for its intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of intangible assets of similar
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations. Management reassesses the
useful lives at each reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of an inventory is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. These estimates are based on the current
market conditions and the historical experience
of selling products of a similar nature which could
change significantly as a result of competitor actions.
Management reassesses these estimates at each
reporting date. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the amount of inventory provision charged
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss was
RMB20,812,000 (2022: RMB5,553,000) (note 6).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The amount of unrecognised tax losses as
at 31 December 2023 was RMB806,620,000 (2022:
RMB575,069,000). Further details are included in note
30 to the financial statements.

31 December 2023
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31 December 2023
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with
the accounting policy for research and development
costs in note 2.5 to the financial statements.
Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires
management to make assumptions regarding the
expected future cash generation of the assets,
discount rates to be applied and the expected period
of benefits. At 31 December 2023, the best estimate
of the carrying amount of capitalised development
costs was RMB743,294,000 (2022: RMB707,412,000).
Further details are included in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in power solutions
business and the recycled lead business.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal
reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker (“CODM”) in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance. The
information reported to the executive directors of
the Company, who are the Group’s CODM for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of
performance, does not contain profit or loss information
of each product line and the executive directors review
the gross profit of the Group as a whole reported
under IFRSs. Therefore, the operation of the Group
constitutes one reportable segment. Accordingly, no
segment information is presented.

No segment assets and liabilities and related other
segment information were presented as no such
discrete financial information is provided to the CODM.

Information about products

An analysis of revenue by product is as follows:

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

REDEER

FEBTBUFERBRD ZFZFLUREIR
FESEL

[ PR Bt 75 R o5 22 I SE8SRAS ' 0 BB AR E AR
BAREBRIPIZRERER S HAEEDER
BRINERREHTZEERRE (X EEE
RRE) EMER UDEERT D E KT
HOBRIF - BEARTDNTES BIXEH
FELERRE) 2HRUB DL E R KT
KENENAEESERGHEBEmER #
TEFERRBEERMBREERN 2R A
EEEEEN A AEBREEQE—E
RIZ2WD B0 BAARZES D BEPE R

WEE25)DEE ERERUKREMBREN D
BEK REATEEERRERERHESR
BB E R o

LI

i

REMRBI DB ORI T

2023 2022

—E=HF = —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Power solutions business EIRRR S ZRE 11,447,457 10,432,834
Recycled lead business U N TS 2,023,778 2,413,025
13,471,235 12,845,859
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31 December 2023
TE=F+"HA=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT

4. BEDHER (#B)

INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

(@)

©)

Revenue from external customers

& B

@ KEINEBEF I a

2023 2022

—EBCC=F —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREF T
Chinese Mainland A B 9 3t 8,157,704 7,550,180
Europe, the Middle East and Africa BRI ~ 58 K2 JEM 1,935,577 1,892,764
Americas ES| 2,140,455 2,199,121

Asia-Pacific (other than the Chinese B AMIE (A~ €13E B Ay ith)

Mainland) 1,237,499 1,203,794
Total revenue 4B 13,471,235 12,845,859

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

Non-current assets

b) FRBEE

Lt m BRI RN B RFRE- D

2023 2022

—BIzHF =TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREF T
Chinese Mainland H [ PR 3 3,925,553 2,957,883
Other countries/areas HMER #hE 414,831 420,773
Total non-current assets ERBEEME 4,340,384 3,378,656

The non-current asset information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes
financial instruments and deferred tax assets.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT

4, %

nI

INFORMATION (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue of approximately RMB1,316,042,000 was
derived from sales to one customer, including sales to a
group of entities which are known to be under common
control with that customer, exceeding 10% of the

Group’s total revenue for the year 2022.

No revenue from sales to any customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue for the year

31 December 2023

B =F#+"H=+—H

ENEER (&)

EREXTEZRINEHN

£ A\ R 181,316,042,00070 2 W 2 22 58 B 14 B8
—EFEMHE (BT aEHEMEzaER
SHEEFINERERNIEE)  BRAE
EHE_T— — FHAREEHI10%

mEAFEFHEENRESREErERRE"
T = FRIMRIREBI10%IA £ o

2023.
A WA
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME 5. Wam ~ HMIRA KU
AND GAINS
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WEDITuT -
2023 2022
kit SO —
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
Revenue from contracts with customers &R &4 13,471,235 12,845,859
Revenue from contracts with customers BEREHWE
() Disaggregated revenue information () BRI
2023 2022
—_E=F =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARF T
Types of goods Gy
Sale of industrial products HETES 13,471,235 12,845,859
Timing of revenue recognition Wt 25 B 52 B5
Goods transferred at a point in time N EE R ELEE 2 5Y) 13,471,235 12,845,859
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31 December 2023
TE=F+"HA=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME 5. Wz~ Ht A K= (#B)

AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers EEREHWE (4B)
(continued)
() Disaggregated revenue information (continued) ) WmERAD &

TRITRBRERVSAASTHEER

The following table shows the amount of revenue

recognised in the current reporting period that M ERI RSB 2 WmEEE
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period:
2023 2022
—E-=F ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREF T
Revenue recognised that was FFARSHYENEEN
included in contract liabilities at the ~ BB E !
beginning of the reporting period:
Sale of industrial products HETHEERD 284,339 194,424
(i) Performance obligations (i) EBREE

196

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations is summarised below:

Sale of industrial products

The performance obligation for the sale of
industrial products is satisfied upon delivery of the
industrial products and payment is generally due
within 60 to 90 days from delivery, except for new
customers, where payment in advance is normally
required.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

AND GAINS (continued)

31 December 2023

“EC=F+"A=+—H

5. Wa~ HtWRA R a (4

2023 2022
—E== . ———
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
(Restated)
(B EH)
Other income and gains Hhg A K &=
Bank interest income RITAI S WA 19,929 16,451
Government grants* B 4 ™ 45,713 85,711
Dividend income from financial assets at A ABEZHH T ABTH
fair value through profit or loss SHREEREWA 8,288 7,343
Sale of scrap materials THERER 17,174 6,264
Foreign exchange gains, net 4N BE BB 2 Ui 3 0 V3 RE 42,687 80,639
Other lease payments, including fixed HMBENH S8EEEM®
payments 3,290 3,900
Gain on bargain purchase (note 37) EHEWEE (I5E37) 75,835 -
Fair value gains, net: NABEWTD FE
Financial liability at fair value through NABEEHFTAERZ
profit or loss ETHERE 6,996 36,600
Financial assets at fair value through NABEEHFTAERZ
profit or loss TRIEE 5,876 50,767
Others Hih 14,978 4,819
Total other income and gains EAMUR A e W s 42 28 240,766 292,494

The government grants represent various cash payments *
and subsidies provided by the local government
authorities to the Group as encouragement for its
investment and technological innovation. There are no

unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

subsidies.

B A R TS $5 31 75 UM 2R P48 T R E BB
BRI S ARG > USRI B K BT Rl
Mol EA MR ST MR RBEEMIF R
RER-
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31 December 2023
—E-=f+-H=+-0H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

6. MAEDL@RF]

REENMANEF TN GTA) U TIE

(crediting): B®EH -
2023 2022
—E-=F ==
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bk AR®FT AREF T
(Restated)
GeE=2l)
Cost of inventories sold FrEFE M 10,112,627 9,795,721
Employee benefit expense (including 1EE@F|Ex (B
directors’ remuneration (note 9)): EEME (I5H9)) -
Wages and salaries IER#HE 1,209,759 940,852
Equity-settled share option expenses 1 & 45 E Y
FERC R 5,008 4,916
Pension scheme contributions BIRE B 116,220 107,316
Total 4Bt 1,330,987 1,053,084
Amortisation of other intangible HittmpE =S
assets except for deferred (R IE BT 2 B AR SN
development costs 18 12,654 9,426
Research and development costs:  FFEERLAS ¢
Deferred development costs I IIE R 55 Y Ak 2
amortised” 18 225,146 191,447
Current year expenditure FRREX 371,868 382,868
Total 4BST 597,014 574,315
Auditor’s remuneration ZEENE = 3,400 3,100
Financial liabilities at fair value NABEEEFAERZ
through profit or loss: Bt =N
Unrealised (gain)/loss #I8 (Km) 518 (1,074) 13
Realised gain BEIF W E (5,922) (36,613)
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31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. Al (48)
(continued)
2023 2022
—E=HF B
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR®TT AREF T
(Restated)
(RREH)
Fair value gain from financial NABEEEFTABRLZ
liabilities at fair value through THaEANEE
profit or loss, net W as > 3 EE (6,996) (36,600)
Financial assets at fair value through A A BEZS st AER
profit or loss: BREE
Unrealised loss/(gain) REHEE/ (Km) 12,110 (42,418)
Depreciation of property, plant and ~ #JZ - BE KRR FEITE
equipment 14 323,369 351,048
Depreciation of investment property & & ¥ & 15 10 11
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FFREEEITE 16(a) 19,991 9,610
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of & 5 FE IR R I8 (i (& #[2])
trade receivables, net S RE PR 21 (4,134) 27,516
Write-down of inventories to net WoREFEE &R E
realisable value* 20 20,812 5,653
Loss on disposal of items of property, FRE¥)¥ HE K& E
plant and equipment, net TBENEIE F5E 7 14,079 1,492
Foreign exchange differences, net tERERE 35 (42,687) (80,639)
Lease payment not included inthe ~ At ATHE&/EEZ
measurement of lease liabilities MEM™M 16(c) 33,662 14,028
Bank interest income RITH B WA (19,929) (16,451)
Gain on bargain purchase HBU IR (75,835) -
* The amortisation of deferred development costs and * EIERE A EIS R B FEEE o 8173

write-down of inventories to net realisable value are Bt NS BE RIS ERA Ho

included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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31 December 2023
TE=F+"HA=+—H

7. OTHER EXPENSES

7. Hipx

An analysis of other expenses is as follows: HMFEZ 2T -
2023 2022
—E=F s F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Loss on disposal of items of property, BEEYE BENREER
plant and equipment, net B518 > 73R8 14,079 1,492
Fair value loss from financial assets at NAEEEEF ABTN
fair value through profit or loss, net ETMEENRANEERE
FEA 17,986 8,349
Others Hith 6,903 4,602
Total et 38,968 14,443
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BAFEALA
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MR ADITAT
2023 2022
—EBI=f T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT ARBET T
Interest on bank loans (including IRTTER (BETBRKRES)
convertible bonds) FE 184,192 119,779
Interest arising from discounted bills IR EENF S 36,618 34,846
Interest on lease liabilities HESEFE 2,744 1,697
Total 4Bt 223,554 156,222
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EEFM=E

RiE EHRA FAREEMIE383(1)(@)
(o)~ ORfF AT IREEEFEN mER) 2B
FEMNEE  FAEEMEIT ¢

31 December 2023

B =F#+"H=+—H

2023 2022

—E-=F ==l
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREF T
Fees HBwE 648 575

Other emoluments: HAEN % -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & 2B R EYEF 2,476 1,677
Equity-settled share option expenses DS A BRI 202 192
Pension scheme contributions RIKBEHEIMHRE 83 76
Subtotal INEF 2,851 1,845
Total 4Est 3,499 2,420
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31 December 2023
TE=F+"HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EFME (&)
(continued)
(a) Independent non-executive (@) BIEMITES
directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive PEIEMITES M2 HEWT
directors were as follows:
Salaries,
allowances Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
Y
e 2h L) Bik&
s BMERN BT BRERX HEae et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETR ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR
2023 k- St 3
Mr. Lau Chi Kit i 216 - - 22 - 238
Mr, Lu Zhiojang ESHEE 216 - - 2% - 24
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan EMERE 216 - - 2 - 238
Total st 648 - - 69 - 7
2022 “BICE
Mr. Lau Chi Kit ey 207 - - 28 - 235
M. Lu Zhigjang* ESRAE 161 - - 23 - 184
M. Cao Vixiong Alan EMELE 207 - - 28 - 235
Total b 575 - - 79 - 654
* Mr. Lu Zhigiang was appointed as an independent * ESREERN T "F=F"+—
non-executive director of the Company on 21 HEZEAR R BUIFNITES-

March 2022.
There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the
year (2022: Nil).
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31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EFME (&)
(continued)
(b) Executive directors (b) MITES
Salaries,
allowances Performance-  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind bonuses expenses  contributions Total
Wigs
A 4 &Em &g
g REWEY BREHTL  BRER HEEEA g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETR ARETr  ARETn  ARETR  ARET:
2023 7=
Executive directors: HiTES !
Dr. Dong Li EXfit - 870 - - 67 937
Ms. Yin Haiyan IRyt - 906 - 102 16 1,024
Ms. HONG Yu * EagT - 700 - 121 - 821
- 2,476 - 223 83 2,782
2002 “ETCE
Executive directors: HTEE:
Dr. Dong Li i - 77 - - 59 836
Ms. Yin Haiyan MERat - 800 - 113 17 930
- 1,677 - 13 76 1,766

*

Ms. HONG Yu was appointed as an executive

director of the Company on 6 April 2023.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration

during the year (2022: Nil).

* HARTN _ZE_=F£WNAAHEZ
ERERBERITES-

FRAMETAABEFREXRATR

A% HE (
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31 December 2023
TEI=F+"HA=+—H

10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included two (2022: one) director, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining three
(2022: four) non-director, highest paid employees are as

10. A EmaES

FRLLEeFNEES BEmR (CTF
TTF %) B HEBNEE BRSO
O FM HEg=% CZT "4 1 %) F
EFRzEREHMNESFHEFBENT -

follows:

2023 2022

it St - S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AR¥TF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ 2B R EYIEF] 3,152 4,408
Equity-settled share option expenses D m i E R ER 229 304
Pension scheme contributions RBAE B 40 46
Total 4Bt 3,421 4,758

The number of non-director, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:

G

HINE T HE 2 IFEEHNRSHMEEA

Number of employees

BE A
2023 2022
Nil to RMB1,000,000 AREETTE
A B #1,000,0007T 1 2
RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000 AE#1,000,00175E
A EE#1,500,0007T 2 1
RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000 AR #1,500,00170E
A E#2,000,0007T - 1
RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000 AR #2,000,00170E
AER#2,500,0007T = -
Total st 3 4
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11.INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands, the Company is not subject to any income tax
in this jurisdiction.

The subsidiaries, Honour Label, Peak Year, Shieldon
and Catherine Holdings, which were incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands, are not subject to income tax
as these subsidiaries do not have a place of business
(other than a registered office only) or carry out any
business in the British Virgin Islands.

Leoch Battery Corp., incorporated in the United States,
is subject to corporate income tax in the United States.
The applicable federal corporate income tax rate is
21% (2022: 21%) on taxable income.

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is based
on the statutory rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%) of the
assessable profits of subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong.

The Singapore authority approved the application of
LLeoch Battery Pte. for the Global Trader Programme on
24 May 2014 and it was renewed on 30 August 2019,
the effective period of which is from 1 January 2019
to 31 December 2023. The provision for the current
income tax of Leoch Battery Pte. is based on the tax
rate of 10% (2022: 10%).

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

1. FF15#%

FEBBNAEERE R DNEEMAAEE
PRERNEN A EEEFTEL BHEAYENRE
REE PSR-

RIEFR 28 SRR KRG R AT BAER
ZE)EEE BN ERFTSR

HREEBRELEEFMAIINHE B AT
(BPHonour Label ~ Peak Year* Shieldon
Catherine) R IEBR B EMES &S
Bh GEM SRR B EMER FIt
ZE M B A B EEBMFTISR o

Leoch Battery Corporation/3 A £ B 5% AL AL »
AR EB AN TR 2 PTSH o BLFER R U aR T
= BEANBBEEMERER21% T
TTEI21%) o

BENGRIN EBZMARIAINE AT
BUFEERIRm A OEEIRE1656% (CTT -
F 1165%) st

MINEERNR _E—NERARB - +MA#
ERRZE—AFENB =+H&EHLeoch
Battery Pte. Lid. BRAZIKE Z st 28I
FHAMBAIZE-NF—A—HEEZZE
—=%F+"8=+—HIk°Leoch Battery Pte.
Ltd. BREAPRSIR LRI E10% (T2 24H ©
10%) sHEE M o
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31 December 2023
—E-=f+-H=+-0H

1.FR1ISH (&)

11.INCOME TAX (continued)

The provision for PRC current income tax is based
on the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable profits
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC as determined
in accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax
Law which was approved and became effective on 1
January 2008, except for certain subsidiaries of the
Group in the PRC which are taxed at preferential rates.

Jiangsu Leoch, Zhaoging Leoch Battery, Anhui Leoch
Power, Anhui Uplus and Anhui Leoch New Energy were
designated as high-tech enterprises by the PRC tax
authorities and were entitled to a preferential tax rate of
15% for the year 2023.

Taihe Dahua, which engages in qualified recycling
businesses, is entitled to a 10% deduction of revenue
from manufacturing qualified products with main
qualified raw materials.

The major components of income tax charge for the

BREEERTENETHBARERBER
S REIRNERPT S I B T AR SR P B 1 25 PR
BSiE (M2 N\E-—F—HERERE
) A EE R PRI E A BB ERR
FLA2B%REEMR KRS E

R =F o IHREBEL ERELER %
BEEL TR ZE D ERHT R ZHIELTHEE
RERRRGEREIASMEHREE =
EERBREMER15%

AMBAERFTEGEREWES I=EN
ERETECEREMHEEGERERF
FUERBI10%

FRPMSMAXNEZEME DN :

year are as follows:

2023 2022

= . ——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT AREF T
(Restated)
(B EH)
Current - PRC BIHA—h 25,283 29,428
Current — Hong Kong BNER—&H8 929 716
Current — Singapore BN ER—FT h038 52,479 37,963
Current — USA BIHA— = 8,853 2,824
Current — Vietnam BREA— R (232) 440

(Over)/under provision in prior years BEFE (BEEE)

BHERE (9,924) 3,583
Deferred tax IEIEFR I (1,370) 5,694
Total tax charge for the year FARIEZ HAERE 76,018 80,648
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31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

11.INCOME TAX (continued) 1. FR1S11 (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory tax rates for the jurisdictions
in which the majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at effective tax rates, and

BRANBIREB OB AR EMPAERLEEE
BAVEAEMRK T EREAIRIR A SN BRI
PSR BRI RSt EBIRIRR S AU AR L
FBRARE EEERE) BERREFVHIR

a reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory Le(Il
tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:
2023 2022
=S =S
RMB’000 % RMB’000 %
ARETR % ARETT %
(Restated)
(& E=75)
Profit before tax RENEF] 643,854 583,392
Tax at the applicable tax rates  ##5EBIREEMN
1| 115,620 18.0 135,114 23.2
Tax concession for certain aETHRB LB
subsidiaries MBEES (42,291) (6.6) (70,614) (12.1)
Additional deductible research  Z849M B30
and development expenses  FTEERE (44,095) (6.8) (41,339) (7.1)
Income not subject to tax BERRBA (18,959) (2.9) - -
Expenses not deductible RANMRFES
for tax 15,931 2.5 8,049 1.4
Adjustments in respect FhiE T HARI BN HA
of current tax of MIBIEH 2 A
previous periods (9,924) (1.5) 3,583 0.6
Tax losses utilised from HABTHRREZ
previous periods MIEE1E (3,627) (0.6) (1,482) 0.3)
Tax losses not recognised KREERRIBREE 63,363 9.7 47,337 8.1
Tax charge at the REBRIFEN
effective rate MIBF 76,018 11.8 80,648 13.8
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31 December 2023
—E-=f+-H=+-0H

11.

208

INCOME TAX (continued)
Pillar Two income taxes

As stated in note 2.3(d), the Group has applied the
mandatory exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities
arising from Pillar Two income taxes, and will account
for the Pillar Two income taxes as current tax when
incurred. Pillar Two legislation has been enacted or
substantively enacted in certain jurisdictions in which
the Group operates, and the legislation will be effective
for the Group’s financial year beginning 1 January
2024,

The Group is in scope of the new tax legislation.
However, the legislation was enacted close to the
reporting date. Therefore, the Group is still in the
process of assessing the potential exposure to Pillar
Two income taxes. Potential exposure, if any, to
Pillar Two income taxes is currently not known or not
reasonably estimable.
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13.

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

31 December 2023
“ECZf#+-A=+-H

DIVIDENDS 12. 12 B
2023 2022
—E=HF =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Proposed final -HK7 cents BEARBA-SRTEWL
(2022: HK10 cents) per share (TEBEZZF 10EL) 86,790 121,302

The proposed final dividend for the year of 2023 is
subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the parent, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 1,362,202,493
(2022: 1,357,854,935) in issue during the year, as
adjusted to reflect the rights issue during the year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year attributable
to ordinary equity holders of the parent, adjusted to
reflect the interest on the convertible bonds, where
applicable (see below). The weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation, and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed
to have been issued at no consideration on the deemed
exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

TR -FEESRIREATAATRE
RIEERFBFREGHIES FIFE

BRATEEETRITE AR

LEREF

SREXBHSEN GRS BERRT
BARGEE RN RFEANEEITEBRM
R 5801,362,202,493 (ZE__F :
1,357,854,9350%) B AT E > WA AL IR
FRHAE-

EREERMNERIEEAREEREDA
NEEAFEar) BEE > (EARER
BUURBRAERESFHE (RT3 55T
RS ERIIEFIEHRIEFREETERR
#H EHESREFENFIAERR) > U
RIR=N 2 Ep B S BB RG I RITE
WER S B ERERERTTH S RRAIIE
F198e
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31 December 2023
TEI=F+"HA=+—H

13.

210

EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. 3 AR EBEmFFA AIE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY hEREF (&)

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE

PARENT (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share BREAREERNTIRE TIISIRE

are based on:

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T AR®ET T
(Restated)
(LE7)
Earnings &7
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders ﬁﬁﬁ’:‘%ﬁ'%iﬁ%%zﬁﬁﬁuz
of the parent, used in the basic earnings BATE@ETTAE A
per share calculations FE(L & A 535,372 481,075
Interest on convertible bonds A ESEFE 10,017 -
Profit attributable to ordinary equity 0 ﬁ_ﬁﬁiﬁ%i FHERFAT]
holders of the parent before interest on BB ARGRT
convertible bonds 545,389 481,075

Number of shares

B8
2023 2022
—E=F = S—

Shares B
Weighted average number of ordinary ARstBEEREARF 2

shares in issue during the year used in the FERE&TEZER

basic earnings per share calculation INREF 1981 1,362,202,493 1,357,854,935
Effect of dilution — weighted average BETE-ZTER

number of ordinary shares: MR8 .

Share options PR 30,971,108 3,878,398

Convertible bonds PIARIES 60,000,000 -
Total 4Bt 1,453,173,601 1,361,733,333
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31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. )% - B KRB
EQUIPMENT

Plant and Tooling and Construction
Buildings machinery  Office equipment  Motor vehicles equipment in progress Total
i £ BERKHE HAZRME AE IERZE ERIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEETR N AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR AEBFR AEETR

31 December 2023 ZRIZEIAZT-R
Cost; A
At 31 December 2022 and RIBZZEFZAZT-HR

1 January 2023 “E-ZE-F-H 1,183,983 3,137,955 55,841 55,638 285,364 100,271 4,819,052
Addtions it 093 196,665 821 3973 3048 336,798 609,094
Transfers E 2212 16,962 311 20 34 (19,900) -
Acquisiion rom subsiciaries (note 37) B BBAT (H337) 544,116 456,894 20579 5,131 - 5,544 1,042470
Disposdls £% (15,505) (#5223 (591) (2.961) (4,20) - (68,485)
Exchange reaignment ERE% 956 (2,501) % (49) 185 ™) (1,457)
At 31 December 2023 PIEZ=E+ZA=1-H 1,747,355 3,760,752 93,442 62,358 314,136 422,631 6,400,674
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAE:

impairment:
At 31 December 2022 and RIEZZE+ZF=+-Ak

1 Jancary 2023 ZE-sE-B-A (#16769) (1,777,699 (#4309 (¢5,161) (243854) (1,569) (2,529,366)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ ERITEE( (53,526) (251,239) (7,408) (2,509) 8,701) - (323,369)
Acquisifion rom subsiciaries (note 37)  WEEBBAT (H337) (321,533) (293,405) (15,350) (1,572) - - (631,860)
Disposals EE 10,137 33,159 432 1817 3212 - 48,817
Exchange realignment ERHBE (936) 100 (19 11 (116) - (960)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=5+-A=+-A (782,621) (2,289,078) (66,651) (47,354) (249,459) (1,569) (3,436,738)
Net carying amount: KEE:
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=%+-A=+-A 964,728 1,471,674 26,791 15,004 64,677 421,062 2,963,936

ZEI=F8R - BTEREMERAT 211
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31 December 2023

—_—

F+ZB=+—H

14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

212

14. 9% - BEM&RE (&

Tooling and Construction
Buldings  Plant and machinery  Office equipment Motor vehicles equipment in progress Total
18F BREREE FRERE e TERZE fERIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEETT NEEFT NEBTT NEETT NEETT NEHTT NEETT
31 December 2022 it gt el
Cost; Ak
At 31 December 2021 and RIBZ-E+ZA=+-HRk
1 January 2022 Z%I2E-F-H 1,167,759 2923910 54,049 53,313 288,305 32510 4,509,906
Addtions HE 20,730 196,161 2,043 2458 21,259 96,964 339,615
Transfers o 2206 26,504 7 53 562 29332 -
Acquisiion rom subsiciaries (note 37)  WEEBHIBAT (H337) - 850 - 172 504 - 1616
Disposals RE 66) (16,784 (398) ) (25,69) - 371)
Exchange realignment ERBE 3,304 7314 140 45 334 69 11,626
At 31 December 2022 RIBZZE+ZA=+-H 1,183,983 3,137,955 55,841 55,638 285,364 100,271 4,819,092
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAE:
impairment:
At 31 December 2021 and RIEZ-E+ZE=+-HR
1 January 2022 “%--F-fA-H (366,500) (1,500,391) (30,783) (01,344) 259,524) (1,569 2218111)
Depreciation provided during the year £ E R (49,769) (283,715) (4,768) (4072 8,724) - (351,048)
Acquisiton from subsidiares (note 37)  WEEEMBAR (3237) - (575) - (115) (255) - (045)
Disposals BE 51 13,291 282 589 24,836 - 39,049
Exchange realignment EREE (551) 2,691 (39 (225) (187) - 1,689
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZE+RA=+-A (416,769 (1,777,699) (64,308) (#5,167) (243,854) (1,569 2529,366)
Net carying amount: RESE
At 31 December 2022 PIEIZEFZAET-H 767,214 1,360,256 11,533 10471 41510 98,702 2,280,686
At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s A B =F+_A=1+—0 > AEEKRE

buildings and machinery with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB534,260,000 (2022:
RMB734,964,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group. For details
of the pledged assets, please refer to note 35 to the
financial statements.
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31 December 2023
“ECZf#+-A=+-H

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTY

15. 1B

2023 2022
—E=F =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREF T
Cost: A
At 1 January and 31 December R—B—H&
+=ZA=+—~H 561 561
Accumulated depreciation: REHITE -
At 1 January w—B—H (227) (216)
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE (10) (11)
At 31 December R+-—BA=+—H (237) (227)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZBA=+—HmREE 324 334

The Group’s investment property represents one (2022:
one) industrial property in Chinese Mainland which
was subsequently measured using the cost model.
The Directors have determined that the investment
property consists of one class of assets, i.e., industrial
property, based on the nature, characteristics and risk
of the property. The Group’s investment property was
revalued on 31 December 2023 based on the valuation
by management. Management has reviewed the
valuation assumptions and valuation results once a year
when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

FEENKREYEETEAMN—E (CF
TTF B IEYFE ZFEYEERBER
PRAIREET B - EREIRBEZMERMEE
BRI R BRREYFEH—BEE B
TEYFR E - ~EEEREEERFR
BWiE R-E_=F+"A=+—HH%K
BEYEETEG -HEEDNAEFEMBRS
Rt AIEEESF R AERRMGE
MR
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31 December 2023
TEI=F+"HA=+—H

15.INVESTMENT PROPERTY
(continued)

The investment property is leased to a third party under
operating leases.

Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment
property:

15. REYE (BB

ZERBMERBEEHER G —RE=

Fo

[REERER

TRPIEEBREVENRAAEEERE

R

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2023 using
RIEZ=5+ZA=+—BNAAEEHEFER

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EHE TR EXTHE EBEAFIER

RE BWARE BAHE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B18) (%278) ($3E) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEFT AE®ETFR AE®ETFR AE®TR
Industrial property TEYE - - 14,236 14,236

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2022 using
RIB__H+_A=+—HNAABEHEFEH

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EETIS BEAHE BAFUEE

wRE BAHE WAYE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E18) (F2) (538) st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBTT
Industrial property THEME - - 14,142 14,142
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Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

INVESTMENT PROPERTY
(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).

The fair value of the investment property is determined
using the comparison method with reference to
comparable sale evidence as available in the relevant
market. Comparable properties of similar size,
character and location are analysed and selected
for the investment property in order to arrive at a fair
comparison of its fair value. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the market unit sale rate.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
property, plant and machinery and other equipment
used in its operations. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the
owners with lease periods of 46 to 50 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of
these land leases. Leases of properties generally have
lease terms between 2 and 9 years, while plant and
machinery generally have lease terms between 3 and
10 years. Other equipment generally has lease terms
of 12 months or less and/or is individually of low value.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

15.

16.

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

BREYE (&

[ABERESR (E

FRE—REE KB ADNEEST
SWEEE FERARBHE=ZHK (CZ
TTE o

REMELAAEEHSRAERDS LAH
EEE 7 SHEE /REE - A LLBUAETE - HER
ARABEZATHER SREVFEREES
LURE SRR U BRY R B LB EEITD
e AnBEFERTHBENEE2ERH
Mo

HE
AEEFREAA

KREEARNEEFESENYE B
BUREMREZEEENHEEGH B
AR — R EWEEE L
THHEA 462505 > MiREZ S L iE ERIF
R A B ES R RITRIE - EHERY
TEHERE S22 0F » MR Kk 25 BV IEHAE
FEASE10F - Hit BRIAIEE 212188
ST e/ BB Bl R B BV B E BRI - — AR T
5 AEENARARERMIINTEERERD
HIREEE-
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31 December 2023
TEI=F+"HA=+—H

16.LEASES (continued)

216

The Group as a lessee (continued)

16. 710 E (&)
AEBEAERBA (B

@ Right-of-use assets (@ 1EHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use AEBFEAEEENRAERNERN
assets and the movements during the year are as REBINT -
follows:
Leasehold Plant and
land Properties machinery Total
HELH ME BREXRKES st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTR ARETRT ARETxT
As at 1 January 2022 R_E__F—HA—H 133,545 19,124 191 152,860
Additions NE 81,555 22,706 - 104,261
Disposal HE - (9,197) - (9,197)
Depreciation charge EER (3,999) (5,505) (106) (9,610)
Exchange realignment ERAE 280 425 7 712
As at 31 December 2022 A
and 1 January 2023 +ZB=+—-HX%
& =F-F—H 211,381 27,553 92 239,026
Additions B 5,538 26,449 - 31,987
Additions as a result of WEIRBABENAE
acquisition of subsidiaries 217,536 3,358 - 220,894
Depreciation charge NEER (6,313) (13,630) (48) (19,991)
Exchange realignment [ERAE (198) 795 @) 595
As at 31 December 2023 RZE-=F
+ZBA=+—-H 427,944 44,525 42 472,511

At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s
prepaid land lease payments with a net carrying
amount of approximately RMB106,835,000
(2022: RMB45,859,000) were pledged to secure
general banking facilities granted to the Group.
For details of the pledged assets, please refer to
note 35 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

16.LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

®)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilites and the

16. 705 (#&)

FEBEREBAN (B

b) MHEEE

HERENREERIEANESHN

movements during the year are as follows: I
2023 2022
== =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBTFT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—B—HNREE 29,171 20,468
New leases MHEE 26,449 22,706
Additions as a result of acquisition ~ WERBABENARE
of subsidiaries 3,113 -
Accretion of interest recognised FABREEHN SILHE
during the year 2,744 1,597
Payments NEN (14,938) 6,517)
Revision of a lease term arising from 85 1~ 7] i #4 HA B RO £ E)
a change in the non-cancellable Firi& A RYFE BR1E 5T
period of a lease - (9,332
Exchange realignment b R EE 603 249
Carrying amount at 31 December ¢ +Z A =+—HBREE 47,142 29,171
Analysed into: DA
Current portion BN 14,254 6,504
Non-current portion JETRBYEL 2 32,888 22,667

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is
disclosed in note 41 to the financial statements.

HESENEIHE D TIRER R

KMyEEAT 0
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31 December 2023

TEI=F+"HA=+—H

16.LEASES (continued) 16.
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation
to leases are as follows:

HE &
HEBERRBA

) IR m AT AT B BRI BT -

2023 2022
—EC=F s
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Interest on lease liabilities HEadd s 2,744 1,597
Depreciation charge of right-of-use RS EITEE R

assets 19,991 9,610
Expense relating to short-term leases E25SHATR &S B RIAIRISX

(included in cost of sales, selling, Gt AHER A THE

administrative expenses and TR RDHEES)

distribution expenses) 33,662 14,028
Total amount recognised in REmAERNIE

profit or loss 56,397 25,235

() The total cash outflow for leases and future cash
outflows relating to leases that have not yet
commenced are disclosed in notes 34(c) to the
financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its production and office premises
consisting of three production premises and fifteen
office premises under operating lease arrangements.
The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was RMB3,290,000
(2022: RMB3,900,000), details of which are included in
note 5 to the financial statements.
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16.LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants
are as follows:

31 December 2023
“Z2=F+"A=+—H
16.THE (&
TEEEARDBEAAN &)
A TEF+Z“HA=+—H BHEXEHR

RIBEHEE P 2 T s &R E M EIR
RIS

2023 2022
—E-= —ECCF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Within one year —F R 1,038 1,915
After one year but within two years —F L EEMEUNRN 1,005 1,350
After two years but within three years MEM EEBE=FEMUR 1,002 1,153
After three years but within four years —F U EBEFEUR 1,000 1,149
After four years but within five years ME FBREMUR 1,000 1,047
After five years AEME 5,551 6,551
Total 485 10,596 13,165
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31 December 2023
TE=F+"HA=+—H

17.

220

5
GOODWILL 17. 88
2023
—EC=F
RMB’000
ARETT
Cost and net carrying amount: A R AR A
At 1 January 2022: RWZZE-—HF—HF—H:
Cost BN 10,636
Accumulated impairment REHEE (8,423)
Net carrying amount EREFE 2,213
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of N TE—F—B—HmE
accumulated impairment R EHRE 2,213
Addition NE 192
Impairment during the year FARIE -
At 31 December 2022 RW_EZZF+B=+—H 2,405
At 31 December 2022: N ZETTHF+ZA=+—H":
Cost BN 10,828
Accumulated impairment RKETRE (8,423)
Net carrying amount BRERE 2,405
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of R _EZ=—F—F— B
accumulated impairment HRREHRE 2,405
Impairment during the year FRIE -
Cost and net carrying amount at MAER _E_=F+_F=+—H
31 December 2023 FBREF(E 2,405
At 31 December 2023: A TE=F+"HA=+—H":
Cost D% 10,828
Accumulated impairment A (8,423)
Net carrying amount ERERE 2,405

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations
is allocated to the respective cash-generating units

(“CGUs”) for impairment testing.
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31 December 2023

17.GOODWILL (continueqd)

Impairment testing of goodwill
(continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated to
CGUs as follows:

“EC=F+"A=+—H

BmEREAR (@)

NEERTETEMZHEREMENT -

2023 2022

—EBCZ=F -2
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ANRET T
Energymax Energymax 237 237
Taihe Dahua RMFHAKE 39 39
LBUK LBUK 1,937 1,937
IBERIA IBERIA 192 192
Total a5t 2,405 2,405

The recoverable amounts of the above CGUs have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management.

The key assumptions adopted on the growth rate and
discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations
are based on management’s best estimates. The
terminal growth rate of 3% (2022: 3%) is determined by
considering both internal and external factors relating to
the CGUs. The discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections are 15% (2022: 15%) for Energymax, 16%
(2022: 16%) for Taihe Dahua, 11% (2022: 11%) for
LBUK and 14% for IBERIA (2022: 14%).

Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount of goodwill is based would not
cause the carrying amount of goodwill to exceed its
recoverable amount.

REELEBUNAWOIESERDBBEREME
BALRIEREES S MR RE
BRI USREEEBHEN D FHRMHRE
FEEE

STEAIEREEMREIIE RERITIREN
FERRBNDENEEBHNREGEST 3%
T T 1 3%) KA ERLEEEHEE
SEEEMARMINIRINIREZBETE -
Energymax » ZH1f4 K 2  LBUKIBERIATR &
METEAMEANITIRES N A15% (T

TTFE I 15%) v 16% (CEZFE 1 16%) &
M% (CEZ2F 1%) K14% (TEZZ
1 14%) o

EEERS ?ﬁ@TH&@ﬁgﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁza‘:E
BREREASELE) TEEXFHENR
EEBEEA TR
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31 December 2023
2 =H+ZHB=+—H

18.0THER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

HAth#E

BE

Deferred
Computer  development Customer
software costs relationship Licence Trademark Total
iR
BiESH AR ERR% ik [l b
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETE  AREFfn ARETR ARETT ARETR  ARET:
31 December 2023 & =#+"A=1+-H
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of RZB-_=E-F—H
accumulated amortisation HIRA MRt 6,043 707,412 14,673 47,573 6,640 783,241
Additions e 14,334 261,028 - - - 215,362
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37)  WEEMIB/AT) (H:£37) 1,402 - - - - 1,402
Amortisation provided during the year R 5 (4,167) (225,146) (1,853) (6,488) (146) (237,800)
Exchange realignment ERBER 5 - 464 - - 469
At 31 Decermber 2023 R=F-=£+-B=+-8 18,517 743,294 13,284 41,085 644 822674
At 31 December 2023: “BCCEfZAZt-R:
Cost ﬁmﬁ 42,809 1,915,871 24,003 108,126 26,154 2,116,963
Accumulated amortisation Rt (24,292) (1,172,577) (10,719) (67,041) (19,660) (1,294,289)
Net carrying amount REFE 18,517 743,204 13,284 41,085 6,494 822,674
31 December 2022 —Z-F+-ZA=+-H
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of RZE-"£-F—H
accumulated amortisation W MR EH 5,153 690,888 14,131 54,061 6,776 771,009
Additions B 3,050 207,971 - - 6 211,027
Acaisition of subsidiaries (note 37)  WE—RIBAR (1537) - - 2,384 - - 2,384
Amortisation provided during the year R sE (1,258) (191,447) (1,538) (6,488) (142) (200,873)
Exchange realignment ERRE @ - (304) - - (306)
At 31 December 2022 RZB-__&+"B=+-H 6,943 707,412 14,6783 47,573 6,640 783,241
At 31 December 2022: WE2-ZZ#+-A=1+—-H:
Cost ﬁmﬂ 27,039 1,664,843 22,988 108,126 26,154 1,839,150
Accumulated amortisation REHEH (20,096) (047,431) (8,315) (60,553) (19,514) (1,055,909)
Net carrying amount RASE 6,943 707,412 14,673 47573 6,640 783,241
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31 December 2023
—EC=F+ZA=t+—H

19.EQUITY INVESTMENTS 19. 5 ER A ABEEHNTA
DESIGNATED AT FAIR Hih2mEU e 1%
VALUE THROUGH OTHER B
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2023 2022
—E=F “EITHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AR®ET T
(Restated)
(RE7)
Equity investments designated at IEERANBEESETA
fair value through other Htt2mkma
comprehensive income: RRMERE
Unlisted equity investments, FFLEmEEMERE
at fair value BAREBE 11,967 11,834
The above equity investments were irrevocably HRAERRAZEREBRBERE R
designated at fair value through other comprehensive LR E R AR IE E R A NMEEE
income as the Group considers these investments to FEtAEMEERE -

be strategic in nature.
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31 December 2023
—E-=f+-H=+-0H

1=

20.INVENTORIES 20. %8
2023 2022

—E-=F =

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT
Raw materials il 765,176 581,131
Work in progress ERH 895,422 742,248
Finished goods Lyt 1,088,122 813,091
2,748,720 2,136,470

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense
during the year in respect of write down inventories
to net realizable value was RMB20,812,000 (2022:

ENRABEEMRE TSR FEMERS
Bz IEE A4 A RH520,812,0007T (Z&
—&F : AR85553,0007T) °

RMB5,553,000)

At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s
inventories with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB100,000,000 (2022: RMB100,000,000) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group. For details of the pledged inventories,
please refer to note 35 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

21.TRADE RECEIVABLES B EIFRIE
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR¥TF T
Trade receivables & 5 e EE 3,320,369 2,817,996
Impairment BE (73,128) (81,772)
Net carrying amount BREFE 3,247,241 2,736,224

The Group grants different credit periods to its
customers. Credit periods for individual customers are
considered on a case-by-case basis. Certain customers
are required to make partial payments before or upon
delivery. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and closely monitors them
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
of RMB995,565,000 (2022: RMB424,787,000) were
under short term credit insurance and RMB59,352,000
(2022: RMB81,857,000) were under letters of credit.
In addition, the Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group pledged certain
trade receivables amounting to RMB410,880,000
(2022: RMB407,147,000) to banks with recourse
in exchange for cash (note 35). The proceeds from
pledging the trade receivables of RMB327,160,000
(2022: RMB300,102,000) were accounted for as
collateralised bank advances until the trade receivables
were collected or the Group made good of any losses
incurred by the banks. The details of the transfer of
factored trade receivables are included in note 42 to the
financial statements.

AEEBEREFFIAANEER SERE
FHEEHZ—EE - &TEREARKN
AR TR EHEB DR A EESRKREH
RIEEZENENRIBAE R BRES R
BERZEFRT BB EERK SR EER
[Bg T HERA RTINS BSRIER
IEF A R #8995,565,0007% (ZEBE__F | A
E&424,787,0007T) 5] B R RS Rk M
AR#59,352,0007t (ZEZZF . AR
81,857,0007t) AIETBEAE o tboh» ANEME
BRI 2 AR A AR 1R R SR ER E A
EERAEN - B R EUGEIEA TR

N _=F+_RB=+—H AEEHIR
TERETHEERENEZEINTIE £58
A AR410,880,0007c (CEZZF: AR
407,147,0007T) * #ELUREUERE (15535) <K
198 7 FEUGRIERFT 1S 7B A R 15327,160,000
7T (CEZ 5 ¢ AR#300,102,0007T) 755
EEIRIRIRITREI EERSE S ERAIE
B O AEBBRIETEENTAERES
LE o RIZE 5 BN IBSH R 2 s IBE N B 75
HRFRMIEF420

R ER - BTEREHARAR 225



Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR Mtz

31 December 2023
TEI=F+"HA=+—H

21.TRADE RECEIVABLES

(continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 based on the invoice date,

21. B HZ EWRIE (8)

‘=B =ER-Z-—&#+-A=+—0
19 P RGBSR R (ISR 1)

net of loss allowance, is as follows: ERE A0 ¢

2023 2022

=5 g
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR¥TF T
Within 3 months 3MEA R 2,569,245 1,991,360
3 to 6 months 3ZE6ME B 469,362 392,070
6 to 12 months 6E121EH 164,491 222 677
1 to 2 years 1224 30,152 81,352
Over 2 years 2FED 13,991 48,765
Total 4Bt 3,247,241 2,736,224

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of

85 RIRIRER BB R AR EEEHIMN

trade receivables are as follows: T

2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETF T
At beginning of year RER] 81,772 55,703

(Reversal of impairment)/impairment losses, GE{ER[E]) R{EEE  F48
net (note 6) (L)) (4,134) 27,516
Amount written off as uncollectible EE R eTUg Bl & 28 (4,510) (1,447)
At end of year RER 73,128 81,772
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21.TRADE RECEIVABLES

(continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage
by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement
activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

21. BZRWRRIE (&

RE®RSBPRORARFEEREETRED
o LGt BFRHEEBR - BEXRLERE
MEABRLBEREANZERT R D EETD
A2 (BIIE@IE ~ EmiER) &P 8RR kst ARk
KERENEMEERETE N RESLE)
AR B #EHE - 25T 8 R R MRS
R EBRERNRS AP SNERBE
FI8 BRR M AR RIS E R FRAN G
KEISFEER - —fRME > B 5 BWEIAINE
HRiBE —F Bt B sy 1TER) T LUMES -

TREFIAEREABFEEESAENESE
WRIEREERRER

W_E_=F+_"_A=+—H

Current Past due Total
Ep#A bl ] st
Customers Customers
with credit Ordinary with credit Ordinary
enhancement customers enhancement customers
EERAN EERAN
%R LBER EF LEER
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBEX 0.34% 1.20% 25.35% 100.00% 2.20%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB’000) (NEEF ) 2,610,401 608,858 59,133 41,977 3,320,369
Expected credit losses BHEERE
(RMB’000) (NEEFT) 8,830 7,331 14,990 41,977 73,128
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31 December 2023
TE=F+"HA=+—H

21.

22.

228

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21.

(continued)

As at 31 December 2022

B S EURIR (B

KRB _F#+—"H=+—H

Current Past due Total
0 gt st
Customers Customers
with credit Ordinary with credit Ordinary
enhancement customers  enhancement customers
EERAN EERAN
b4 BERR ES BEER
Expected credit loss rate BEEEREX 0.59% 0.93% 9.97% 100.00% 2.90%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(RMB'000) (NEETFT) 2,028,030 595,551 144,532 49,883 2,817,996
Expected credit losses BHEERE
(RMB'000) AE#F ) 11,924 5,550 14,415 49,883 81,772
DEBT INVESTMENTS AT FAIR  22. ARBEEE T AHME

VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The balances as at 31 December 2023 and 31
December 2022 represent bills receivable held by the
Group which were measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income, since the bills receivable were
held within the business model whose objective was
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the financial assets, and the contractual cash
flows were solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.
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22.DEBT INVESTMENTS AT FAIR

VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(continued)

The ageing analysis of bills receivable presented
based on the issue date at 31 December 2023 and 31

31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

22. pRBEEZHE AHME

HR@mMNRHFRE (&

F+_A=+—HBKR-T__F
T RA=+—RBREBTHRZIZEBREE

December 2022 is as follows: IRECOMTIOT -
2023 2022
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FTT ARETF T
Within 3 months 3MEH R 148,854 143,465
3 to 6 months 3E6(E A 32,368 12,589
6 to 12 months 6ZE121EH 8,036 5,351
Total 4Bt 189,258 161,405
The net loss on changes in the fair value of the debt FRAREEES T AEMZEREHN

investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income amounting to RMB9,000 (2022: RMB835,000)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income during the year.

o= ——

= —

EHRRENAABESHERFEARKE
F 1 AR K835,0007T) h4x
SHMEEmWERPRER -
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31 December 2023
TE=F+"HA=+—H

23.PREPAYMENTS, OTHER

230

23. FRIS NI « E{th FEULRRIE

=t

RECEIVABLES AND OTHER Hth&EE
ASSETS

2023 2022

=== —ECF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT AREF T

Prepayments SEENEE 341,296 342,207

Deposits and other receivables Sl R EMEWRRIE 279,255 121,143

Interest receivables FEWH] B 6,066 5,738

Loans to employees BEEFHNER 4,400 4,344

631,017 473,432

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31
December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.
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24.FINANCIAL ASSETS/

31 December 2023

B =F#+"H=+—H

24. RREEZ T AB@AY

LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THEE 8@
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
2023
—E-=
Assets Liabilities
&E =R
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
CURRENT ik
Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ _EHH#ERMERE  RADEBE 76 -
Commodity future and option contracts, 7 @HIE RERE S 4]
at fair value BAREBEE 1,078 -
Other unlisted investment, at fair value ~EMIE EHRE A RNEE 24,206 =
Put option, at fair value SOnEAE B AREE - 10,340
Total 4BEt 25,360 10,340
NON-CURRENT IR
Non listed investments, at fair value FEEMRE BANEE 303,219 -
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31 December 2023

—B=F+"RB=+—H

24.FINANCIAL ASSETS/
LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

232

24. RREEZ T ABmAY

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

ERMEEBE#@)

(continued)
2022
Assets Liabilities
&BE af&
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBEFT
(Restated)
(&E75)
CURRENT B
Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ _EHH#EFMEE IR ANEBE 136 -
Commaodity future and option contracts, B mEIE RIS A RE
at fair value = - 13
Other unlisted investment, at fair value ~EMIE EHERE A RNBE 51,815 -
Total 4wt 51,951 13
NON-CURRENT JERH
Non listed investments, at fair value ELTRE BAREE 243,210 -
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24.FINANCIAL ASSETS/

LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

The above listed equity investments were classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
they were held for trading.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as commodity future and option contracts, to manage
the lead price fluctuation risk, which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting and are measured at fair
value through profit or loss.

The above other unlisted investment was the right to
receive the proceeds from future sales of the properties.
It was mandatorily classified as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss as its contractual cash flows
are not solely payments of principal and interest.

The above non listed investments were fund
investments that have defined investment period and
there is contractual obligation to distribute.

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

24. RREEZET ABmAY

ﬁnﬁ:ﬁlz/%f /l'ﬁ)

HHIEAL/(J:J:FME“’IE&;%EHVE x5 Al
SHFERERDEALAABEEHTA
?E SHISRIE E o

KAEEGRTESRTE flmRPER
RSN BEEHINERSRAR 2514 S
MTAERREH A 2RE HFAE25%
BRIEANMEBEEF I AIBTETEe

LXJ:ET’@?FLFE&%TEH&HQ%X%%%’%%

SRIERER] - ZFREWRFIDES A
@fbﬁﬁ“@]ﬁ)\?@ﬁﬁ’]%mﬂﬁf&f > B TS H
REGHNRSNEBNW IR/ R T RA BN

o

LI EREAEAREREREE DK
MENEENETRSE-
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31 December 2023
—E-=f+-H=+-0H

25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

25. IR KR 1T 45 BR A B B B

=+,
AND TIME DEPOSITS EZA
2023 2022
—E=F = —
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARETT
Cash and bank balances BE RIRIT4E R 1,563,343 436,194
Time deposits EHITERR 965,767 793,806
Subtotal INEE 2,529,110 1,230,000
Less: Pledged for interest-bearing A BERLEt BIRITEEIRE
bank borrowings (25,766) (5,397)
Pledged for bills payable B L ER IR (597,220) (415,947)
Pledged for letters of credit ERLE AFEIRT (342,781) (372,462)
Subtotal g (965,767) (793,806)
Cash and cash equivalents BERIEEEY 1,563,343 436,194
Denominated in RMB MARESHE 1,825,346 1,015,042
Denominated in HK$ KB TEHE 382,622 31,583
Denominated in US$ METTsHE 205,911 134,421
Denominated in Euro (‘EUR”) MEr7t (TBk7Ty) 5HE 56,371 13,278
Denominated in Australian Dollar (‘AU$”)  LURTT (FRT)) 5HE 11,881 13,990
Denominated in Indian Rupee HENEELLEHE 11,324 8,090
Denominated in GBP M EiEEHE 9,070 -
Denominated in Malaysian Dollar (‘MYR”) MBS S
(TBRAEEZELH) 5HE 8,594 3,485
Denominated in THB DU Z=EREHE 7,646 -
Denominated in Sri Lankan Rupee DU B R ELLLSHE 5,190 2,958
Denominated in Vietnam Dollar MEmEEsHE 3,991 6,076
Denominated in Singapore Dollar (‘SG$”) LU (MT#rTl) sHE 1,082 1,077
Denominated in JPY HBTEHE 82 -
2,529,110 1,230,000

234  Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2023



25.

26.

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
AND TIME DEPOSITS
(continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

25.IRF KR 1T4EBR A B B B

7™ (48

ARBRGEBRRRIEING > 28T > Rz
R SNE B RIR B R AS0E ~ BEE R EE
BIRE  AEREMERBEERTRAR
T I EINBE LUETTINE TS

FRIRTRIR SR E B IRTERAIRATE)
BRBEF S G RERER ZFREAR—
BE=ZERA % RYEERZERREE
RME & BIREHFEMARERA B iR
TR IR R EE R BIE
BRFAVIRTT -

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26.BSEMHIELENERE
2023 2022

—E-=F =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT AR®T 7T
Trade payables B ENIE 1,054,764 782,273
Bills payable FEAT = 1,949,228 1,578,771
Total 4Bt 3,003,992 2,361,044
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31 December 2023
—E-=f+-H=+-0H

26.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 26. B EHIBNENELE

(continued) (#)

RIREIR > B R AIRBRE RIERE

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at

the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

date, is as follows:

FHHARERRE DTN -

2023 2022

—E-=F ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREF T
Within 3 months 3MEA R 1,624,793 833,140
3 to 6 months 3E6E S 784,223 608,572
6 to 12 months 6E121EH 572,495 906,326
1 to 2 years 1224 13,628 8,092
2 to 3 years 2E3FE 5,937 2,247
Over 3 years BiB3F 2,916 2,667
Total st 3,003,992 2,361,044

236

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 90-day terms. All the bills
payable have maturity dates within 365 days. As
at 31 December 2023, bills payable amounting to
RMB698,900,000 (2022: RMB684,236,000) were
issued on intercompany sales transactions within the
Group and these bills were discounted to banks for
short term financing.

As at 31 December 2023, certain of the Group’s bills
payable were secured by the pledge of certain of the
Group’s time deposits amounting to RMB597,220,000
(2022: RMB415,947,000) (note 35).
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—E=F+"HA=+—H

27.0THER PAYABLES AND 27. i E(N R IBE K fEst & F
ACCRUALS
2023 2022
—E-=HF =
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

PysE ARBTFRT ARETT

Provision for social insurance R BRI EH B

and retirement benefits 203,559 191,124
Contract liabilities BREE @) 303,500 284,339
Accrued expenses FEEH B 120,758 86,192
Accrued payroll fEsT T E 152,332 51,128
Payables for purchase of items of BB HE K

property, plant and equipment %18 B I FE(T R IE 151,573 114,382
Provision for product warranties R {R1E & B s 23,486 22,891
Tax payables other than current  FE{T#RIE (BIHAFR1EHR

income tax liabilities =SRGS0 76,404 94,087
Payables to non-controlling ANEIS2 0k e

shareholders 98,500 72,371
Payables for acquisition of W B B BB A Bl B FE (T FRIE

subsidiaries 131,824 -
Provision B 5 (b) 73,882 -
Others Hith (© 140,208 135,947
Total 4Bt 1,476,026 1,052,461
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=F+-RA=+—H

27.0THER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS (continued)

238

Notes:

(@)

Leoc!

27. Hith BN RIB KR EStE A
(%)

FEsE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: @ BEGNEGEHFBENOT:
31 December 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
—EI=H “EICF k=S S
+ZB=+—H +ZA=+—H —FB—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBF T AREBFT
Short-term advances received from customers B E /5 fZHT#
Sale of goods HEEY 303,500 284,339 194,424
Contract liabilities are short-term advances received to BHNEEAURNIXERB W ZRRR
deliver industrial products. e
The provision of RMB81,012,000 was recognised at () RUEEWKELSXZHETEHERABRK
the acquisition date of the acquiree Tianjin GS Battery KAEBRIMEREBRARZ B 3G
Company Limited and Tianjin Juli Material Technology Co., AR 181,012,000t ° Z# & ARSI
Ltd. The provision is related to discharging the obligations BEETEERMEAEMIEHISRER
to remediate pollution made over certain production plant FR AEEEFEAARTE?,130,0007T
locations. During the year, the contingent liability has been RiIEMF > HEBFEARNET3,882,000
utilised RMB7,130,000. At the end of the reporting period, TTe
it has been decreased to RMB73,882,000.
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have no fixed ) HMENREBEARE BXREEEEA-

terms of repayment.
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B =F#+"H=+—H

28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 28.:tEfR{TREMMES
OTHER BORROWINGS

31 December 2023 31 December 2022
Z3IZEIBEt-A ZECTEFIESH-R
Effective Effective
interest Interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturtty RMB'000
EGHEGD) i ARBTR BEHZY) 38 NS
Current it
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, secured HEROEE BER 25610845 2024 1,061,086 188108.17, 223 998,295
HIBOR+2.75 k-3 HBOR:2.76 to IEIzE
256%845 HBOR+5.17
HIBOR+2.75 1885817,
HBOR+2.76
E
HBOR+5.17
Collateralised bank advances, secured BRESAIN B 2320500 2024 327,160 20010457 2023 300,102
2328500 ZECME LIBOR+2 kSt -3
2002457
LIBOR+2
Interest-bearing bank borowings, quaranteed st EEFEE BER 20010837 2024 2,005,625 200107.26 2023 1,066,414
HIBOR+3 ZECME HBOR+2.5 kSt -3
200%8.37 LIBOR+2
HIBOR+3 200£7.26
HBOR+2.5
LIBOR+2
Current portion of long term bank borrowings, RERAEERBEY AR HIBOR+ 2024 106,423 LIBOR+2.70 2023 276,843
quaranteed Applicable ZE-mE LIBOR+2.70 “ETCE
margin
HIBOR
HEREE
Total - curtent FF il 3,501,194 2,641,654
Non-current S
Interest-bearing bank borowings, SHEREE BHA 33010830 2025-2038 283,266 188106.00 20242028 28626
secured 3.30%8.30 ZECREE 1.88%6.00 “ENEE
ZESN\E TEO0\E
Interest-bearing bank borowings, quaranteed St EEFEE BER 2,00 10 9.60 2025-2026 69,840 30010460 2004-20%5 30807
2002960 ZECREER 3002460 Z3IMER
ZEIRE S 13
Interest-bearing bank borrowings, guaranteed SHEBRTHEE BRER HIBOR+ 2025-2026 603,063 LIBOR+2.70 2004 -
Applicable ZECREE 13
margin ZECRE
HIBOR
HERSE
Subtotal - non-current P i | 956,169 68433
Convertble bonds maRES 1811 2025-2026 61,132 - - -
ZECREER
ZIINE
Total - non-current FE R i) 1,017,301 68433
Totd 5 4518495 2,710,087
Denominated in RMB HARBsHE 3035419 1,730,454
Denominated in US$ &7t 809,511 600,630
Denominated in HKS WAt 602,634 338,494
Denominated in SG$ MfatE 9,694 24,962
Denominated in MYR WERAEGLEHE 43,134 13,938
Denominated in EUR Mt E 897 1,709
Denominated in THB Pesity % -
Denominated in JPY WAt 17172 -
4,518,495 2,710,087
“E--F58% - BXEERMEREAR 239
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28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK
AND OTHER BORROWINGS

28.

stRIRITREME

g (&

(continued)
Analysed into: DT
2023 2022
—E-=F ==
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREF T
Bank loans and advances repayable: AR THREIEN
IRITEMMEBER .
Within one year —FR 3,501,194 2,641,654
In the second year F_F 405,190 22,620
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEZEEFRE
BEEEME 438,111 44,547
Beyond five years AFE 174,000 1,266
Total KaEt 4,518,495 2,710,087

The Group’s bank borrowings are secured by the
following pledge or guarantees: 7

()  Pledge of the Group’s assets with a total value of
RMB1,177,741,000 (2022: RMB1,293,367,000)
for the bank borrowings as disclosed in note 35.

1,177,741,0007T (

MEE35H BE) ©

(i)  Cross guarantees executed by companies within (i)
the Group.

During the year, The Group renewed a three-year term
loan facility agreement (the “Facility Agreement”)
amounting to US$70,375,000 and HK$231,075,000.

240
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28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK

AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(continued)

Under the Facility Agreement, there are specific
performance obligations on Dr. Dong Li, the controlling
shareholder of the Company, not to cease to own,
directly or indirectly, at least 51% of the beneficial
interest in the Company, carrying at least 51% of the
voting right, free from any security. Further, Dr. Dong Li
shall not cease to have management control over the
Company or cease to be the Chairman of the board
of directors of the Company. At the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023, such obligations have been
complied with.

Several of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries
were parties who act as guarantors, and the entire
equity interests in two wholly-owned subsidiaries were
pledged, to guarantee punctual performance of the
Group’s obligations under the Facility Agreement.

As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding term loan
balance under the New Facility Agreement amounting
to US$70,375,000 and HKD231,075,000 (total
equivalent to RMB709,486,000), which is repayable
within three year. The term loan bears interest at
HIBOR-+Applicable margin per annum.

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

28. 5t RIRTTREMBEE (&)

RERERZ BRERVEME BEFEL

(T REERIRR) TR IEER EENE
B ARBEDS1 %N EmERE (HELD51%
AR (REHMERIRR) o ttoh EFE L
MR IR ARNE RIS BT
FABNEFEERE -NMEZFHE"T
T=H+ T R=1t—HLLFEREMTHRE
B ERSEERIIET

KARETEENBARIERERA—TT
WA WMEE2ENBEARNEHREFRE
B ERAEREREITRERRE TS
£o

N2 =F+-B=+—H mEH=
ETMNHREETHERLEFA70,375,000
E T %231,075,0008 7T (BsHEER AR
709,486,0007T) @ BN ZFRELE - THIE™
SEHHBOR+EREEtB o
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29.CONVERTIBLE BONDS

242

On 9 January 2023, the Company issued unlisted
convertible notes (the “Convertible Notes”) in principal
amount of HK$91,800,000, carrying interest at the rate
of 5.5% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrears,
and will mature in 2026. The offering price was at 100%
of the principal amount of the Convertible Notes.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated
at the issuance date using an equivalent market interest
rate for a similar bond without a conversion option. The
residual amount is assigned as the equity component
and is included in shareholders’ equity.

29.

Al ESS

R_Z_=F—RBNR AREETEEE
#%91,800,00078 T F ] Z5.5%51 B > FER
BHFEM Wi ’f:?:/\fﬁ HHE’J?FJ:
Rl RE (AR RE)) - SHEERR
MR RIB AN EART100% ©

BEHHZANBEDNERESREZEE
B2 ERTHNRELRTERT UGS -
RerTEREI R A D I 5t AR R o

The convertible bonds issued during the year have FREBETHIBRRESEDITRABEIS D&
been split into the liability and equity components as R AT -
follows:
2023
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Nominal value of convertible bonds issued FRTBITNA R ESEE
during the year 80,262
Equity component 1 2 B0 (26,623)
Liability component at the issuance date RETHENEBES D 53,639
Interest expense M ERX 10,055
Interest paid BFE (4,581)
Exchange realignment PE A E 2,019
Liability component at 31 December R+ZBE=+—HHEAaEIS 61,132
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30.DEFERRED TAX

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

31 December 2023

30. iEIEFRIE

FRELERBEEREBENEFHERNT

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

—_=

=F+-A=+—H

Change in fair Change in
Depreciation Value of debt fair value of
and Equipment investments financial
Provision for impairment invested in atfair value liabiliies
impaiment of property, subsidiaries  through other Unpaid ~ Provision for Deferred atfair value
of trade plant and with revalued  comprehensive payrolland  impairment of Unrealised government through Lease
receivables equipment Taxlosses amounts income aceruals inventories profit grants ~ profitor loss liabiliies Total
RrBELY LAEERD
LR SBUBRN  HARN2E itABEH
RARUE  BREFER RENHERT WENEERE  ANIER SHAMAN
HERE i AR RG] BHER  FEAERE  AERE  DENAER  DABEED HEAR &t
RMBO00 RVBO0D RVBO00 RVB000 RVB000 RVBO0O RVBOXO RMBOXO RVBO00 RVBO00 RVBO0D RVB000
NE#TR NEETR NEETR NEETR Nt NEBTT NEBTT NEBTR NEBTR NE#TR NEETR NEETR
At 31 December 2021 RE-Et2EZt-B "5 128 2219 667 12 10423 5228 9401 6229 & - 66,263
Efectof adopton of amendments 0 AS 12 FAEREHERIF125
te23) (B575) M (H3i23) - - - - - - 08 8
At 1 January 2022 restated) KBCZE-A-BEE5) " 1208 2209 667 12 10423 5228 9401 6229 & 443 70506
Defomed ta cedtedcharged tothe.— EAHA/ (18 BREN
statement of poftor oss dung teyear  iEERE (€7
[restateq) 7854 (286) 10052 (667) 1,009 833 540 715 84 1963 6706
Defere e credited o oher comprehensive. - EAETAZ 2 ENED
ncome durng the year i - 08 - - - - - 08
(Gross defered faassets &t 3t December ~ “FZZE+ZA=-RH
2022 [retated) EEHEARLE @1E5) 1431 1012 nar 3% 11432 6,061 14821 694 1 6,206 49
(Gross Cefored faassetsal 3t December -~ “FZZEFZA=-BH
222 EhERRLE 19381 1012 "2 3% 11432 6,061 14821 6944 1 - s
Efectof acoption ofamendments o HKAS  SRAE B &3 ERIB 1R
1229 (B375) MEE (H3i23) - - - - - - - 6206 6206
At 1 January 2023 restated) RIFIZE-F-E) 19381 1012 "2 3% 11432 6,061 14821 6944 1 6206 49
Defomed tacedtedlcharged tothe. EAHA/ (IR E) BREN
stetement of poitor oss dung e year  EERE 6439) (325 96 1363 217 298 2666 (109) 3212 m
Deferted ax charged fo offer ERAEHREREN
comprerensienoome durng teyer R - 2 - - - - 2
Guoss deered taxassets ot 31 Decenber ZRC=EZAZ-BH
228 FEHERRLE 1296 687 1218 3% 1278 8178 183 9610 (108) 9418 7%
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30.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

244

Deferred tax liabilities

30. IEIETR IR (#8)

Change in fair

IH&E

N~

value of equity Change in fair
investments value of
designated Fair value financial
atfairvalue  adjustments assets
Capitalised ~ through other  arising from at fair value
interest  comprehensive  acquisition of through  Right-of-use
expense income  subsidiaries  profit or loss assets Others Total
R
RAEEZH
AL
REKEN hig  AREEED
BaftRE MEAFEE  HABREN
BEATLH WARBE  ZAABE eREEN
GEL 28 2 MABEZE  (REEE it Azt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NEHTT AEETR  ARETR NEETT  ARETR NEETT  ARETR
At 31 December 2021 PIEI-E+ZA=t-H 2,546 8801 17,196 16915 7824 53,282
Effect of adoption of amendments o IAS 12 (note 2.3)  FRAEIE &5+ 28512 (B314) g2
(H&23) - - - - 423 - 4243
Prior year adjustment (note 2.2) BHEERE (H22) - 9,181) - 9,181 - - -
At 1 January 202 (estated) KZE-Z£-F-A (EE)) 2546 (3%0) 1719 2,09 4043 7804 57525
Deferred tax charged/[creclted] to the statement of EREA/ (E) BRRNELRE
profit or loss during the year (restated) (fE5) (1,298 - (1,652) 10376 1963 3010 12399
Deferred tax credited to other comprehensie income  F R AR M2 EREIELHRE (BE7)
during the year (restated) - (16) - - - - (16)
Exchange realignment EREE - - 478 - - - 478
(Gross deferred tax liabiltes at ZRTTETIRST-EM
31 December 2022 (restated) ELREEERE (887) 1248 (3%6) 16,022 36472 6,206 10,83 70,386
(Gross defered tax liabiltes at 31 December 2022 ZECCE+CAZH-AM
ELHEEENE 1,248 21,49 16,022 14827 - 10,834 64,180
Effect of adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 fnote 2.3  SRAVE S & 31 E 8151258 (B314) 52
(H&23) - - - - 6,206 - 6,206
Prior year adjustment (note 2.2) BHEERE (H22) - (21,645) - 21645 - - -
A1 January 2023 festatec) RZE-=£-B-A (8E) 1048 (3%) 16,022 36472 6,206 10834 70,386
Deferted tax charged!(credited) to the statement of ERGEA/ MBE) BERNETRE
proftt or loss during the year (1,248) - (2,402) (2,92 2,624 2958 (993)
Deferred tax credited to other comprehensive income £/t A B 2 ERGERETLHE
during the year - 4 - - - - @]
Acquisiton of subsidiaries (note 37) WENBAT (Hfz37) - - 3727 - - - 8727
Exchange realignment ERSBE - - 453 - - - 453
(Gross deferred tax liabltes at 31 December 2023 ZECCE+TRAZ-AH
ELHEEESE - (400) 52,800 33647 8830 13792 108,569
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30.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset in the statement
of financial position. The following is an analysis of
the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:

31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

ESERIA (48)
BB E (4

PEHNME  ETELERBEEREREN
AR RIREE - U T A AR BIRE
BH Z EIEFRRAERR DA

2023 2022
= =SS
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT AERETT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in REEM B RRERZ
the consolidated statement of financial FERIEE E/$E
position 68,968 71,218
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in ~ RER G MR R RERZ
the consolidated statement of financial IR IESEFEE
position (99,739) (64,180)
(30,771) 7,033

The Group has tax losses arising in Chinese Mainland
of RMB806,620,000 (2022: RMB575,069,000) that will
expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chinese
Mainland in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008. The applicable rate is 5% or 10% for the
Group.

AEEBRTEAMELERBEBERAR
#806,620,0007 T (ZEZZF : AR
575,069,0007T) * &R A B F A AT
RERFERIR @A - AN ZFBRIVAERIE
—EREF AR B A RIFTEL » U E LR
SBIELEMIBEE > MBI PI B A FERR
A B) AL N AR AR TR RS IR AL

FREBBHE RN IIAIMN B AR E
“EEN\F-A-HEEENWE D IKEY
IR B EARTEIIR - R E B BARITR R 25%
10%°
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30.DEFERRED TAX (continued) 30.IRIEMIA (&)
Deferred tax liabilities (continued) RERIEEE (B)
At 31 December 2023, no deferred tax has been RIEZ=F+"RA=+—H EmK
recognised for withholding taxes that would be £ B 7E P B P9 3t B 32 B9 B B R B AN AR BE L
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject BF) CESMTEINR) AT TREINIR MEDIE
to withholding taxes of the Group'’s subsidiaries LERIB-EER R ZEWNBAREA B
established in Chinese Mainland. In the opinion of the RAKASEDEBA - R_TE_=F+_"4
Directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries —+—HB BERFERMNEABNKRER
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable FRE T ol % ?fﬁtﬁﬁuuLkﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ’J%ﬁ’L&L#
future. As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate BBARFR S HAA AR 15959,999,0005T (=
amount of temporary differences associated with — & AR#8899,203,0007T) ©
investments in subsidiaries in Chinese Mainland for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled approximately RMB959,999,000 (2022:
RMB899,203,000).
31.SHARE CAPITAL 31. 7
Shares B0
2023 2022
—E-=F ==
Authorised: EE
10,000,000,000 (31 December 2022:  10,000,000,000 (& _——
10,000,000,000) ordinary shares of +ZBA=+—8":
HK$0.1 each (HK$'000) 10,000,000,000) A& 5 A& i &
0.1 BTTHE B (FET) 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
1,365,990,666 (2022: 1,357,954,666) 1,365,990,666f% (— & _4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each 1,357,954,6660%) B EE
(HK$’000) 0. 1B THEER (FEmT) 136,599 135,795
Equivalent to RMB’000 HERARET T 116,971 116,250
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31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

31.SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 31. 187 (4B

Shares (continued) 1R (48)
A summary of movements in the Company’s share KABIRAEE U T -

capital is as follows:

Number of
shares in
issue  Share capital
ERITRNEE fgzs
Note RMB’000
B EE AERETFT
At 1 January 2022 W_E2__F#—F—H 1,357,854,666 116,241
Exercise of share options TR 100,000 9
At 31 December 2022 and W_EF+"A=+—H
1 January 2023 2 =F—F—H 1,357,954,666 116,250
Exercise of share options TR (i) 8,036,000 721
At 31 December 2023 R_E_=F+"A=+—H 1,365,990,666 116,971
()  The subscription rights attaching to 8,036,000 )  8,036,00017 & RERE YRR AE #E B 12
share options were exercised at subscription NFER0.56ETETK.768THIER
prices ranging from HK$0.56 per share to BBE1TH » B EE2178,036,0000 B AL ™
HK$1.76 per share, resulting in the issue {BE0. 108 7T RIS » RINPREAZ AVARIR
of 8,036,000 shares of HK$0.10 each for a ERBEA AREE7,193,0007T o BB IR HEE
total cash consideration, before expenses, of 17181% > AR152,825,00070R0 B #EAR #E
RMB7,193,000. An amount of RMB2,825,000 FEERERMDAERRN
was transferred from the share option reserve to
the share premium account upon the exercise of
the share options.
Share options HE A 1
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and KA B IRIEZ ST BT 2 B
the share options issued under the schemes are IR HE 2 SEIB BN A TS IR AR M FES2 0

included in note 32 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2023
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32.

248

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
Share Option Schemes

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the
“2010 Share Option Scheme”) which was approved
and adopted by the written resolutions of all the
shareholders of the Company passed on 14 October
2010 (as amended at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 18 May 2018) for the purpose
of providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to
promote the interests of, the Group and for such other
purposes as the board of Directors may approve from
time to time. Eligible persons of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme include any director or employee (whether full
time or part time), consultant or advisor of the Group
who, in the sole discretion of the board of Directors, has
contributed to or will contribute to the Group. The 2010
Share Option Scheme expired on 13 October 2020.
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued)

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the
“‘New Share Option Scheme”) which was approved
and adopted by the written resolutions of all the
shareholders of the Company passed on 30 October
2020 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards
to eligible persons for their contribution to or potential
contribution to the Group and to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group, and
for such other purposes as the board of Directors may
approve from time to time. Eligible persons of the New
Share Option Scheme include any executive or non-
executive director including any independent non-
executive director or any employee (whether full-time
or part-time) of any member of the Group, any trustee
of a trust (whether family, discretionary or otherwise)
whose beneficiaries or objects include any employee
or business associate of the Group, any adviser or
consultant (in the areas of legal, technical, financial or
corporate management) to the Group, any provider of
goods and/or services to the Group who the Board
considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed to the
Group. The New Share Option Scheme will expire on
29 October 2030.

All schemes of the Company are available to the
Directors and employees (whether full time or part time)
of any member of the Group.

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

2.BBRESTE (B

RERR ST (&

IAERN—IER IRt ST 8 (TRRBARAE St
8) EARTEBRRN T _TF+AH
ZHREBENEERERMERRMN 577
MAEBERATRHHB R  LELER
FHEWPIEH A ERBIELER WaEAE
ERLIERENGREENES Uk IRWE
KrEEMEBEEBNANER UWKARE
EETRHERNEMALR  FEEREST S
BERATBEAEEREAREATRIER
HITEOFNITE S SEEABIIIFRITE
ENEREES (FReBEiRE)  2mAH
HREEAEREARSHEFHRALTZ
ERMESE FRARE  2EIEMT ) Z
SEA EEBEEAAR B MBREEE
BREMSEAA  AERE SRR R
BB AEFEERNBERSENTER
EffEm - iBRESERN — =25+
BAZ+N B2

KRABWFTA BB IRH T AEEEARE
ABRWEEKRES (FenEREiFRE) o
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32.

250

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting and certain disclosure and reporting
requirements.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under all schemes
of the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue
at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable
under share options to each eligible participant in all
schemes of the Company within any 12-month period
is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting and certain disclosure and reporting
requirements.
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued)

The subscription price of share options is determinable
by the Directors, but may not be less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share
options; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii)
the nominal value of the shares of the Company. A
consideration of RMB1.00 is payable on acceptance of
the offer of an option or options.

After 13 October 2020, no further options will be
granted under the 2010 Share Option Scheme.
However, the provisions of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any options,
which were granted during the life of the 2010 Share
Option Scheme, and may continue to be exercisable in
accordance with their terms of issue.

The New Share Option Scheme became effective
on 30 October 2020, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the
date of adoption of the New Share Option Scheme by
shareholders by resolution at a general meeting. The
maximum number of share options available for grant
under the New Share Option Scheme at 1 January
2023 and at 31 December 2023 were 77,814,466.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

31 December 2023
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32. IR HEStE (&
(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued) fRIGERTE (&
The following share options were outstanding under all MUTBERARABMBEEIE N ERITE
schemes of the Company during the year: FERE
2023 2022
—E°= =S
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
MmiEFS ik ESs)
IEE BREXE TEE BREEE
HK$ HK$
per share ’000 per share '000
BRAT Fig BRET T
At 1 January w—B—H 0.84 81,480 1.09 53,030
Granted during the year FREH - - 0.57 37,500
Exercised during the year FRITE 1.00 (8,036) 1.02 (100)
Forfeited during the year FERRU 0.61 (3,551) 1.23 (8,950)
At 31 December m+-B=+—H 0.83 69,893 0.84 81,480
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

Movements in the Company’s share options under
all schemes of the Company during the year are as

32

31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

FEicREstE ()
AR B (4

FREATFMAEE N REBREZE
T :

follows:
Number of share options
BlRiEdE
Closing price of the shares
At Exercised At Date of Exercise Exercise of the Company immediately
Name or category of 1 January during 31 December grant of share periodof price of share before the date on which
participant SREHADER 202 the year 2023 options ~ share options options  Vesting period options were granted
i a2
S 2R Bl SRBRERH RSN
-B-B  EAfiE  =t-B KU BREGES BREGEE  BES FARRGZETE
HKS per share
shiEn
Directors iz
Mr. Cao Yixiong Alan ERiEEE 300,000 - 300,000 22 November 1 December 1.020 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any 1.020
2016 017021 time on or after 1 December 2017;
:g;/—\g Novem%ev 2)3%16 (| BEEREAHZ =52 -TR_E—tE+_A-BAZERARBERT
Z+IB tZB-BZE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
Sy time on or after 1 December 2018; and
I—E i Eﬁ&%ﬁ%%?ﬁzzzﬁz—ﬂm:g—/\ﬂiﬁ—EiZ’(ﬁﬁﬁ B
(ii) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2019.
(i) EEEREAR BTN IR E-NE+ - ARz BEARE
fafree
200,000 - 200000 19July2019 1 August 2020 1.280 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any 0610
ZZ-0E 018 uly 2029 fime on or after 1 August 2020;
tA+hA i?:ﬁg i %ﬁ%ﬂ%@&@&iiﬂz—ﬂfflgigﬁ/\ﬁ—EﬂiZf&EﬁﬁEﬂWﬁ
—HXE )
ZZThE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
tA+NE fime on or after 1 August 2021; and
) BRBREGH2=H2-TR-F_—EN\F-HAZBEMEHRT
(iiy The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any ime on or after 1 August 2022,
i) BEBRELSZ B T2 IR "2 F)\B-BAZERARER
fifge
300,000 - 300,000  3Apri 2020 16 April 2021 to 0600 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any 0480
Z3EE 2 Apri 2030 time on or after 16 Aprl 2021;
mA=H ZI-f () EEBRELH=H7-TR ST -FRATAEAZREARERT
ME+7"HE )
e (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
BAZH time on or atter 16 Apri 2022; and
fi Eﬁ%ﬁ%%@%&zz‘/}z—ﬂmigziﬁ TRBAZ EEARBRT
(iiy The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 April 2023,
(i) EEERELH BT= D TR_E = EMA AR GEARE
wfTEe
300,000 - 300,000 24 Qctober 1 November 0520 (i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at 0530
2022 20231023 any time on or after 1 November 2023
ZETTE (clober 202 () EEBREAYZNSZ TR B ZET-B-BAZERARERG
+AZ1HA a5 )
-f-B% (i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at
Z3oCF any time on or aftert November 2024;
+A-+ZA i ERERELHI N2 TR B ME+-A-HAZERARERT

(i) One-fourth of the total number of the shere options granted are exercisable at
any time on or aftert November 2025; and
fi gﬁ%m%%ﬁ(zﬁz*ﬂm:§:£i+fﬁfﬁiiﬁ&ﬁ BT
() The remaining one-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 1 November 2026,
i) %ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%%{z@ﬂﬂZ—ﬂﬁ?Z%ZﬁEﬂ‘-ﬁ- A2 EEAERE
{18
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

+—H

(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

B R

EstE (88

R EstE (@)

Number of share options
BRiEdE
Closing price of the shares
At Exercised At Date of Exercise Exercise of the Company immediately
Name or category of 1 January during 31 December ~ grant of share period of price of share before the date on which
participant SRERANER 2023 theyear 202; options  share options options  Vesting period options were granted
o5z = i i ) SRARERL AN
-B-B AR Z+-B  RHAE  BRECEE BREGER  BEN FARRAZEHE
HKS per share
SR
Directors coniieg B3 (£)
Mr. Lau Chi Kit Flig o 300,000 - 300,000 22 November 1 December 1.020 () One-third of the total number of the share opfions granted are exercisable at any 1.020
2016 201710 21 time on or after 1 December 2017;
:%;rﬁg Noveinger ZO%E 0 g&aﬁmiwz $2-TR_B-tE+ZR-BAZEENERRAT
Z+ZH +E§ —BE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
S fime on or fter 1 December 2018; and
_i‘g {i) g&%ﬂ@@%%&ZEﬁZ—ﬁmig—)\ﬁ-:ﬁ—EiZ%&ﬁJﬁFﬂﬁWﬁ
N (i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any ime on o after 1 December 2019,
Umﬁ&%%&“&zﬁ? R -TRE-nE+oA-ERZKEAET
ffrfee
200,000 - 200000  19July2019 1 August 2020 1.280 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any 0610
ZI-NE  to18Juy20%9 fime on or after 1 August 2020; )
tEthB Z\ﬁié‘ﬁ i gﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ&@%ﬂzz%zfﬂﬁigigﬁ\ﬁ*EﬁZf&EﬁJﬁFeﬁWﬁ
NA—-HE )
Sy 2 (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
tATI\B fime on or after 1 August 2021; and
{i) ﬁfé}ﬂfﬂ"&m&z bivae 'Jff ——E/\B-BHzBEABERT
(iiy The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any ime on or after 1 August 2022,
i) EERREAB BT =22 IR_F__E)\A-BAZERANER
it
300,000 - 300,000  3Apri2020 16 April 2021 to 0600 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any 0480
i Apnl 2030 fime on or after 16 Apri 2021;
A=A ﬁH Efi () EEERELH =52 - S -FMA+ ARz ERAERAT
IR+~ AZE )
e (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
BAZH fime on or after 16 Apri 2022, and
{i) %&%E@%ﬂZE%Z—ﬁKZSZZEH TREFZEEARERT
)
(ii) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 Apri 2023,
(i) ERBRELH BT =02 - TN _F-=ERA+/ B2 EEARE
ffTEe
300,000 - 300,000 24 October 1 November 0520 ) One-fourth of the total number of the shere options granted are exercisable at 0530
2022 20231023 any time on or after 1 November 2023; ) B
St October 2032 () ERBRELH NG -TR_E_=ET-F-BAZRERRERT
TAZFIA 3 %
+-f-HE (i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at
- any time on or after! November 2024;
+BZ+=H
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(i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at
any time on or after1 November 2025; and
fi) gﬁg%%wzmlﬁz T BCREt-A-ASZKERRE
78
() The remaining one-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 1 November 2026.
0] %@%M%Zéﬂﬂzfﬁjfﬁzg:/—\fi%ﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁfﬁ
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—E=F+”"“A=+—H
JL 425 é_l. 2] =1
32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES BRRESTE (&
(continued)
. . U =
Share Option Schemes (continued) fRRgERTE (B)
Number of share options
BRiEdE
Closing price of the shares
At Exercised At Date of Exercise Exercise of the Company immediately
Name or category of 1 January during 31 December ~ grant of share periodof price of share before the date on which
participant SRERANER 2028 theyear 20? options ~ share options options  Vesting period options were granted
:SZE‘;
oz t28 #Ri i i SEARERL AN
-B-B AR Z+-B RHAE  BRECEE BREGER  BEN FAARAZEHE
HKS per share
SRER
Directors (coniiveg % (£)
Mr. Lu Zhigiang EERLE 300,000 - 300,000 24 October 1 November 0520 () One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at 0530
2022 20231023 any time on or after 1 November 2023;
Z2TTF Oclober 202 () ERBRELEZNAZ-IR-F_ZF+-E-BAZERAREAGT
TAZ1IA S )
+-f-BE (i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at
“&-"% any fime on or aftert November 2024,
+AZ1=H ﬁOE&%%@%ﬁzuﬁz—am:gzﬂi+—ﬂ—EiZ%&ﬁﬁ%Wﬁ
(i Oné-fourlh of the total number of the shere options granted are exercisable at
any time on or after1 Noverber 2025; and
fi) %g%%%%{zmﬁz—ﬂﬁé:ﬁ:ﬁiir—ﬁ—wzz%ﬂ%
7125
() The remaining one-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any tme on or after 1 November 2026,
(v EREREARZETRAZ IR RET-F-AAZBERRE
fafree
Ms. Yin Haiyan [ 150,000 (150,000) 22 November 1 December 1.020 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any 1.020
2016 017021 fime on or after 1 December 2017;
:g;ﬁg quga@ﬁ 0 EEBRERRZ=HZ-AR-F-tETZA-BAZRENERRAT
Z+Z8  +28-8% fi Oné-lhird of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
Sy fime on or after 1 December 2018; and N )
71‘@ i E&%ma@;&zaz—ﬂm:@/\ﬂ:ﬁ—aﬁz%m B
N (i) They remaining one-third of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 1 December 2019,
i) EEBREAEZBT= A2 UR_E-NET_A-BYZBAARE
fafreee
150,000 (150,000) 4 December 16 December 1.442 fi) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any 1430
2017 2018103 time on or after 16 December 2018;
ZE—+E  December 2027 0 BERRRSRZ =32 T 5N\ E+ATARAZEENEAR
+ZEmA “I-0\E it
1z H 1738 (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
EISCtE fime on or after 16 December 2019; and
+:HEE ﬂn%gﬁgﬁﬂazzﬁzfﬂm:§*n¢+iﬁ+ﬁﬂﬁ2@ﬁﬁﬁﬁw
i3
(iiy The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 December 2020. \
(i) ERERERRZ BT =02 IR "F_FET R TABIZRERE
Bnie
900,000 (900,000) 9Juh/ 2019 1 August 2020 1.280 (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any 0610
ZZ-NE  to18Juy 2029 fime on o atter 1 August 2020; ) )
tA+hA ﬁ:ﬁ% 0 EERRECH =92 -TN-FRENB-BAZREAREAS
“EhE fi) Oné third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
tATNB fime on or after 1 August 2021; and

0 E}ﬁﬁi MEH2 57— T F—E )\ BB A2 AEARERT

&
(iiy The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 1 August 2022,
ff) ﬁ%ﬁgmmsﬁ(zﬂ ZHZ-MR_BZZENA-BRZEEARER
fife

“EBEC-FFR - BEXERKNERAS
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

32

JEkRiEStE (&)

R EstE (@)

Number of share options
BRiEdE
Closing price of the shares
At Exercised At Date of Exercise Exercise of the Company immediately
Name or category of 1 January during 31 December ~ grant of share period of price of share before the date on which
participant SRERANER 2023 theyear 202; options  share options options  Vesting period options were granted
o5z = Bl i i ) SRARERL AN
-B-B AR Z+-B  RHAE  BRECEE BREGER  BEN FARRAZEHE
HKS per share
SR
Directors (coniieg % (£)
Ms. Yin Haiyan mEBLL 300,000 (300,000) 3 April 2020 16 Apri 2021 to 0.600 () One-third of the total number of the share opfions granted are exercisable at any 0480
“3EE 2 Apri 2030 fime on or after 16 Apri 2021;
mAzR - i g&%m%zzﬁzfﬂfﬁ:?}ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz’éﬁfﬂﬁ%ﬁm
(i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
fime on or after 16 Aprl 2022; and
fi g&fﬁ@%@yzzﬁz—am:gz:&ﬁ TREGZEEARERT
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 Apri 2023, ‘
(i) ERERRARZ BT A2 IR ZFNE ANz REARE
ffrfee
1,000,000 (400,000) 600,000 13 January 16 January 0560 () One-ffth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any 0560
2021 2021012 {ime on or after 16 January 2022,
Z%ig Jagqu_ 293{; i %&aﬁ%%zmz—am:g:ﬁ—ﬁ TABAZ EEABBRT
N *E;EEE (i) One-fth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
It fime on or after 16 January 2023;
-A+ZH i) ERBREREZEAZ-AR-F=E-ARRAZRERERRAT
)
(i) One-fth o the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
fime on or after 16 January 2024; . B
(i) ERBRELH 17 -TR-FRE-ATRBAZHERERRT
W) Oné-ﬁﬁh of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
fime on or after 16 January 2025; and -
i) gﬁgmgxzmz—ﬂm:ﬁ—ﬁ TABAZ EEABBRT
v) The remaining one-ffth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any fime on o after 16 January 2026, \
() ERERERRZ BT AN IR "S- AE-BTABAZKERRE
ATt
1,000,000 (250,000 750,000 30 September 1 October 0572 (i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at 0540
2022 20231030 any fime on or after 1 October 2023;
S Seplember (| BEBRELYZDAZ-TR_EZE+A-BAZEANREAS
nA=tHE 203 B
BT CE (i) One-fourth of the total number of the shere options granted are exercisable at
TA-BE any time on or after 1 October 2024; )
ﬁ%ﬁ ) ERBREEH DA TR S ME+A-DHZRERHERT
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%
(i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at
any time on or after! October 2025; and
(i) %ﬁ%%@%@&iﬂz—ﬂfﬁigiﬁﬂﬁ— Az B ARNERT
)

() The remaining one-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any fime on o after 1 October 2026. .
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

32

31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

BizEstE (B

RERR ST (&

Number of share options
BRiEdE
Closing price of the shares
At Exercised At Date of Exercise Exercise of the Company immediately
Name or category of 1 January during 31 December ~ grant of share periodof price of share before the date on which
participant SRERANER 2023 theyear 20? options ~ share options options  Vesting period options were granted
= ?ZE‘;
oz = i i SEARERL AN
-B-B AR Z+-B RHAE  BRECEE BREGER  BEN FAARAZEHE
HKS per share
REm
Directors (coniieg ~ E% (£)
MsHong Yu Py i 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 13 January 16 January 0.560 () One-ffth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any 0560
2021 2021012 fime on or after 16 January 2022,
:?ifg’ Jagt%q 292 0 ERBREEHDHZ-AR-F_E-RADAZHENRRAT
N *Ejr%éx (i) One-fth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
ZE=- fime on or after 16 January 2023;
-A+ZA fi %&%M%QZMZ—M:EZEE—H TREGZEEARERT
(i) One-fth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
fime on or after 16 January 2024, ) B
fi) g&&%m%;&zﬁﬂz—ﬁm:g:i—ﬁ TRBIZ EERRRRGT
() Oné-ﬁﬁh of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at any
fime on or after 16 January 2025; and . -
U g&aﬁma@mzmz—ﬂm:ﬁ—ﬁ ARGz EEARERT
v) The remaining one-ffth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2026. \
() ERERERRZ BT RN AR5 AE-BTABAZKERRE
ffTeee
800,000 - 800,000 30 September 1 October 0572 i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at 0540
2022 20231030 any time on or after 1 October 2023;
o Seplember (| BRBREGHZNAZ-TR-F_ZE+A-HAZKEMEERT
AB=1E 2032 ;
ECcE (i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at
+5-B% any e on or ater 1 October 2024; )
ﬁ%ﬁ ) ERBEEEH NS - TR S ME+A DA REAHERT
B (i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are exercisable at
any time on or after1 October 2025; and
fi) %ﬁ%ﬂ&@&@&iﬂi—ﬂfﬁ:gzﬁﬂﬁ—ﬁ g REMEERT
)
(W) The remaining one-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any ime on or after 1 October 2026. .
U %E?ﬁﬂ%&%ﬁwziiﬂﬁz—ﬂﬁé:g:ﬁﬁﬂ-ﬁ—ﬂﬁzziﬁ&@ i lal
e
7800000  (2150,000) 5,650,000
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 32 BERGHEETE) (B)

(continued)
. . T o
Share Option Schemes (continued) EEE (&
Number of share options
Date of Exercise Exercise Closing price of the shares
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited A grant of period of price of of the Company immediately
Name or category of 1 January during during during 31 December share share share before the date on which
participant SEERAAEN 028 theyear  theyear theyear A28 options options options  Vesting period options were granted
i
it ekt
it St 128 B SHBRERLASY
-B-B  EREY  EARR  EARK Zt-B BHES BREGRE BREGRE SE8 ERARAZUHE
HKS per share
B
Other employees in aggregate £t E 8 A3t
(each not exceeding the 1%  (SEFBBER
individual limit) TRH1%)
4,780,000 - (1,533,000 - 327,000 22 November 1 December 1020 {) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1,020
216 21710 exercisable at any fime on or after 1 December 2017;
Z3RE 2 November () BEBRESHZZAZ-INCE-tETIA-HICEA
+-B 20% [ARTEANE;
IR IE-tE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
+2A-R% exercisable at any fime on or after 1 December 2018; and
kS i) BEEREREZ=NZ-IN"F-N\FT2A-RRA
- ABERGE R
Z+-8 (i) The remeining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are evercisable at any fime on or after 1 December 2019,
i) BEBRREEZBT=52-TR_B-NETZF-BEZ
BEREERGE
1,450,000 - (4,000) - 1446000  25Mey 2017 1June 2018 1760 f) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 1,690
Z3-tf to exercisable at any time on or ater 1 Jung 2018;
AZTER 2Ny 2007 () ERERESHZ=HZ-TN"E-N\ERE-BERER
E-\E BRATE,
AnA-HE (i) Onethird of the totel number of the share options grented are
CECtE exercisable at any time on or afer 1 June 2019; and
ERZfMA ) BRBRESH2 =57 -IN_F-NERB-RAZAAR
BHERGE; R
(i) The remeining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any time on or after 1 June 2020.
i) ERBRELH BT =D -TN_ERERA-RYZR
HARERTE
3,400,000 - (301,000) = 3099000  4December 16 December 1442 {) Onethird of the total number of the share options granted are 1430
07 018t exercisable at any fime on or after 16 December 2018;
Z2-tE  §December () BEBRESEZ=A2-IN_E-NETZATABIZE
TZAMA €07 HARENTE;
II-)\E (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
TZBtAE exercisable &t any time on or after 16 Decermber 2019; and
EICtE () BRERELHZ=47-TNT-AETCATARLZE
2Az8 ERREAGE &

(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
qranted are exercisabe at any fime on or afer 16 December 2020.

i) ERBREEH BT=D2-TN_E_EETZATSEY
JREPRBRTR
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

32.fEfeEst 8 (@)

RERR ST (&

Number of share options
BRiEE
Date of Exercise Exercise Closing price of the shares
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited A grant of period of price of of the Company immediately
Name or category of 1 January during during during 31 December share share share before the date on which
participant SEERATER N3 theyear  theyear  theyear i) options options options  Vesting period options were granted
i :E:Em
3 128 B SEERERLASY
-B-B  EREY  EARE ERRM Zt-B BULEH BREOEN BREGEE SE4 KRARAZNHE
HKS per share
SR
Other employees in aggregate £t E8 A3
(each not exceeding the 1% (S EFBA(ERI
individual i) contiveg)  RENI%) ()
12,600,000 1,517,000 11,083,000 19 July 2019 1 August 1280 f) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0610
ZE-0F 201 exercisabl at any ime on orafer 1 August 2020;
CAHAE 180y 20 () BRERESHZ=HZ-TN-E-ZE)\E-RYCRER
.3 BRNTE,
N\B-B% (i) One-third of the total number of the share options grented are
“ECE exercisable at any time on or afer 1 August 2021; and
tA+/E i ERBRESH2 =07 -IN_F_—-E/\B-RH2%4R
BERTE R
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any fime on or after 1 August 2022.
) BEEREEEZBET=02-TR-F_ENA-Bazk
EEEEAR:
1,200,000 (200,000 1,000,000 3 Apil 2020 16 Apr 0800 () One-third of the total number of the share options granted are 0480
43 2110 exercisable at any time on or afer 16 Apr 2021;
ME=H  2Api 2030 () BEBRREEZ=A2-IN_E-ERATAHIER
ut AREAGE;
ME+7RE (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
3%k exercisable at any fime on or after 16 Aprl 2022, and
REZH i EEBREERZ =D -IR_FZEMBABYZER
ABHRHE R
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
qranted are exercisable at any fime on or after 16 Apri 2023,
i) BEBREEEZBT=02-TR-F_ZEMATAREL
SERREATRE
3,000,000 3000000 13Janvay 16 January 0560 () Oneitth of the total number of the share options granted are 0.560
21 2021 exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2022;
ZRC-E 0 12y () ERBRESH 1H7-IN_B_E-ARALZ AR
-FtzR 200 [EEBATE;
31Tk (il One-ffth of the total number of the share options granted are
e exercisable at any fime on or after 16 January 2023;
3k () ERBRELYZIAZ-TRIBCZE-AREACRE
-B+2A ABBAGE;

(i) One-fifth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2024;

) BRERESHZANZ-TN-F_DE-BTRBAZ&E
BERGES

(v} One-fitth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after 16 January 2025; end

v ERBRELH 2 187N B RE-AALZ AR
ABERGE R

(v} The remaining one-fifth of the total number of the share options
granted are evercisable at any fime on or after 16 January 2026.

() ERBRESH BTRAZ-TR_EAE-At5Ed2
BEREERGE
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(continueqd)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

32.fEfEst 8 (@)

RERR ST (&

Number of share options
BRiEgE
Date of Exercise Exercise Closing price of the shares
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited A grant of period of price of of the Company immediately
Name or category of 1 January during during during 31 December share share share before the date on which
participant SEERLIER N3 theyear  theyear theyear 02 options options options  Vesting period options were granted
i :E:Em
. 128 B SRBRERLASY
-B-B  EREY  EARE ERRM Zt-B BHLES BREOEN BREGEE SE4 ERARAZMHE
HKS per share
ShiEn
Other employees in aggregate £t B8 A3
(each not exceeding the 1% (S E TR
individual i) contiveg)  RENI%) ()
13,050,000 (1,683,000 (451,000) 10,016,000 2 September 16 September 0910 () One-third of the total number of the shre options granted are 0840
21 021 exercisable at any fime on or after 16 September 2022;
ZEZ-E{ Septomber () BRERESHZ=HZ-TN-E-EARTARAZER
AAZA 2031 [ARTATTEE
S (i) One-third of the total number of the share options granted are
nA+HE exercisable at any ime on or after 16 September 2023; and
EIE=-f () BEBREEEZ=AZ-INCEZEARTARICER
hB-§ ARBATE; &
(i) The remaining one-third of the total number of the share options
granted are exercisable at any fime on or after 16 September 2024,
i) BREREEEZBET=H2-TR-F_REAATAREZ
EEAREANR.
34,200,000 (648,000) (3,100,000 30,452,000 30 Septermber 1 October 05872 () One-fourth of the tofal number of the share opfions granted are 0540
2022 20231t exercisable at any fime on or after 1 October 2023;
ZERCTE 30 September () BEBRRSEZNAZ-TN_ZZETA-BACERER
AB=1H 032 RRATE,
e St (i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
TA-8% exercisabl at any time on or afer 1 October 2024;
it S ) BEBREEHZNAZ-IN_E_NETA-AHERER
fBZtE BREAE;
(i) One-fourth of the total number of the share options granted are
exercisable at any time on or after1 October 2025; and
i) BEBRESH A2 -IN B REHA-RAZAAR
BERGE; &
(v} The remaining one-fourth of the total number of the share options
granted are evercisable at any fime on or after 1 October 2026.
v ERERELH BTN -TR_BAETA-RAZE
HARERTE
73,680,000 (5086,000) (3,551,000 64243,000
81,480,000 (6,036,000  (3,551,000) 69,893,000
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 2. el EstEl (38
(continued)
Share Option Schemes (continued) BiREAE (&)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share N TR =F+ R =+—HHEKXTENE
options outstanding at 31 December 2023 are as AR TIEERATERRI T -
follows:

Exercise price

Number of options per share Exercise period
B ERE SRITEE 1T1EHA
3,847,000 HK$1.020 1 December 2017 to 21 November 2026

1.020% 7T T E—+H#+-A—RBE_EBE_F+—HA-+—H
1,446,000 HK$1.760 1 June 2018 to 24 May 2027

1,760 7T B N\ERB—HEZE_ttEFERE-+@EAH
3,099,000 HK$1.442 16 December 2018 to 3 December 2027

1.44278 7T 2 N\F+IZB+ARBEZZETEtHF+ZA=H
11,483,000 HK$1.280 1 August 2020 to 18 July 2029

1.2807%8 7T T ECEFENB—HEE_AFEtEBE+NH
1,600,000 HK$0.600 16 April 2021 to 2 April 2030

0.6007& 7T TET - FNA+AHE_E=ZFIA_H
4,600,000 HK$0.560 16 January 2022 to 12 January 2081
10,916,000 HK$0.910 16 September 2022 to 1 September 2031

0.910 7T TEC_FNAB+AHEZE=—FNBE—H
32,002,000 HK$0.572 1 October 2023 to 30 September 2032

0.5728 7T B CFt+BA—HEZE="FhBE=1H
900,000 HK$0.520 1 November 2023 to 23 October 2032

0.52078 75 TS =F+—AB—-BEZE="_F+B_-+=H
69,893,000
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32.

262

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(continued)

Share Option Schemes (continued)

No share options were granted during the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: 37,500,000). Accordingly,
the number of shares that may be issued in respect
of options granted during the year was nil (2022:
37,500,000).

The 8,036,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 8,036,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$803,600
(equivalent to RMB721,000) and share premium
of HK$7,233,000 (equivalent to RMB6,472,000),
before an amount of HK$3,155,000 (equivalent to
RMB2,825,000) was transferred from the share option
reserve to share premium upon the exercise of the
share options.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
outstanding share options for the subscription of
69,893,000 shares under all schemes of the Company,
which represented approximately 5.12% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at that date. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 69,893,000 additional ordinary
shares of the Company and additional share capital
of HK$6,989,000 (equivalent to RMB6,334,000) and
share premium of HK$50,890,000 (equivalent to
RMB46,118,000), before related issuance expenses.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 68,992,000 share options
outstanding under all schemes of the Company, which
represented approximately 5.05% of the Company’s
shares in issue as at that date.
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AN BIFT A 51 8118 769,893,0008% B%
B EERARATAREEINEZRTREAN
512%  RIEARRBNIRBEAREE 2@
1TERTTE IR IR & B 5 851769,893,000
AR NBREINE BIRIED » U BBIMR S
6,989,000/ 7t (18 & i A R #6,334,0007T)
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33.RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity in the financial statements.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the capital
contributions by Dr. Dong Li, a director and controlling
shareholder of the Company, to the subsidiaries directly
held by Dr. Dong Li before the group reorganisation
on 8 June 2010 and, in the case of an acquisition
of an additional equity interest in a non-wholly-
owned subsidiary, the difference between the cost of
acquisition and the non-controlling interests acquired.

Statutory reserve fund

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to allocate 10%
of their profit after tax to the reserve fund until this
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
PRC subsidiaries. Subject to certain restrictions set out
in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the reserve
fund may be converted to increase paid-up capital/
issued capital of the PRC subsidiaries, provided that
the remaining balance after the capitalisation is not less
than 25% of the registered capital. The reserve fund of
the PRC subsidiaries amounted to RMB304,548,000
and RMB229,229,000 as at 31 December 2023 and
2022, respectively.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of companies outside the
PRC. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.5.

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

33. f# A

FEBAFERBEFENRESEANRESE
HBERNEVBRENGSEaEFHRPE
Bljo

B

FEENSHREBRRALADESFRIERRKR
EFFLIN_T-TF,\A/\BEEEHER
mHABEFANNB AR EE RHE—
BIF2ENB AT 2 HthiEm B A UESRL
KR PRI EE IR m ~ IRV ERR

EERLTEE

RIEFEABE AEBNTEMBEABE
BHEBENRBEF0%EAEE TS
BHEZREEDTMERS0%2 1 o FEH
BlABIEFTEANE FRREIFRET » #8B97ARE
NFER AT UER LIS NP ENBA SR
BABEBITRA EWRERMEBORIERES
BRBMMER M E A& B925% © R E B A B
HNAEEN B =FE;_ T "F+_4
=+—H2 5% ARE304,548,0007t & AR
#229,229,0007T °

[ERRB A
ER KB G D EMERAEREUINAT

M mARMEENEREZTR - ZRFEREN
fyEE2 5B B SR ERIE ©
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33.RESERVES (continued)
Share option reserve

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and
the share options issued under the schemes are
included in note 32 to the financial statements.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the fair value
differences arising from the revaluation for the
equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income and debt investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

34.NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of RMB26,449,000 (2022: RMB22,706,000)
and RMB26,449,000 (2022: RMB22,706,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for
property, machinery and other equipment.
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34.NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

n\TIZIEE"i %%Bﬁtgi CIE

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MEEFEBELEZEEESH
financing activities
2023 2=
Bank and Lease Convertible
other loans liabilities bonds
R1TR
Hth&Em HERE FakES
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®BTRT AR%TR
At 1 January 2023 RW_E2_=F—H—H 2,710,087 29,171 -
Changes from financing cash flows HERERSEE) 1,450,497 (14,938) 80,262
Equity component of convertible bonds  BI4A& {& % A9 25 2F 7 - - (26,623)
Acquisition from subsidiaries BB AR (H:E37)

(note 37) 283,564 3,113 -
New leases WHEE - 26,449 -
Foreign exchange movement HNEE 1 F) 13,215 603 2,019
Interest expense MERX - 2,744 10,055
Interest paid BENHE - - (4,581)
At 31 December 2023 RIZZ=fF

+=-A=+—82 4,457,363 47,142 61,132
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34.NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from

MR RERERMT (B)

financing activities (continued) (#)
2022 BT TF
Bank and Lease
other loans liabilities
RITR
HthE®R HESE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T AR
At 1 January 2022 W2 __#—HF—H 2,372,206 20,468
Changes from financing cash flows BREIR %7 S EE) 241,980 6,517)
Acquisition from subsidiaries EENEYNCEIE 1,740 -
New leases WEE - 22,706
Foreign exchange movement CAN ) 94,161 249
Interest expense FERE - 1,597
Revision of a lease term arising E RO AR A &)
from a change in the non- Fri& A PO AR HBIERT
cancellable period of a lease - (9,332)
At 31 December 2022 .= ——
+ZA=+—4H 2,710,087 29,171
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34.NOTES TO THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

M. ixeHERERME &

(c) HHERE M4

SPARERERZEERSR LG

mr:
2023 2022
—EC=H B F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT

Within operating activities FTARE EH 33,662 14,028
Within investing activities FTAKEED 5,538 81,555
Within financing activities SFARE EH) 14,938 6,517
Total 485t 54,138 102,100
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35.PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35. BEEEF

Prepaid Property,

land lease plant and Pledged

payments equipment deposits Inventories Trade receivables Total
it ENT EaEk
HERE & BiEHER 3 IR Mzt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AEEFRT AEEFT AEBF ARETT NS AEEFT
(note 16) (note 14) (note 25) (note 20) (note 21)
(Hfz16) (Bi3E14) (M5E25) (H5£20) (H3E21)

31 December 2023 ZZ-=%+-A=t+-H

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5t 8 SR1TEE (Fi5:28)

(note 28) 106,835 534,260 25,766 100,000 410,880 1,177,741
Bills payable (note 26) fEfT 2% (zE26) - - 597,220 - - 597,220
Issue of letters of credit BHEEE - - 342,781 - - 342,781

106,835 534,260 965,767 100,000 410,880 2,117,742
31 December 2022 “ETTE+THAZ+-H

Interest-bearing bank borrowings 3t B5E{TEE (15E28)

(note 28) 45,859 734,964 5,397 100,000 407,147 1,293,367
Bills payable (note 26) FEfT =% (HzE26) - - 415,947 - - 415,947
Issue of letters of credit BHERE - - 372,462 - - 372,462

45,859 734,964 793,806 100,000 407,147 2,081,776
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36.COMMITMENTS 36. 56

PERERR "EBA U T EHEE

(@ The Group had the following contractual @

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

2023 2022

it St - S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Land and buildings THI R AIEF 277 2,866

Capital contribution for financial BAREBEEREF ABTN
assets at fair value through TREENTE

profit or loss 72,500 2,500
TOta| /\/L: D-I— 72,777 5,366

7. ERSH

The acquisition of Tianjin GS and WEER BB T RIEEZE (MEX
Shunde Yuasa (the “first acquisition”) YeEgl)

37.BUSINESS COMBINATION

RIZEZ=FtAZ+HH ' AREE2E

Bt B8 /A F]Leoch Battery Company Limited (T8

B BEuE=F (EA) mRlER 2

TRIEEZE G EETAETBERTF)

HMEANTOR]ILHZR N ZE=FN

BZ+RBE B REAIIHRGE
.ﬂ”%@@’&jﬁ_;ﬁ: F+HA=+—
HARE E/FERI70%©

On 25 July 20283, Leoch Battery Company (the
“Buyer”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into an agreement with independent third
parties (the “Sellers”) in relation to the proposed
acquisition of 70% of the registered capital of
Tianjin GS and Shunde Yuasa (which together with
Tianjin GS are collectively referred to as the “Target
Companies”).On 25 September 2023, the Sellers and
the Buyer entered into a Supplemental Agreement,
and the consideration was adjusted to an amount
equal to 70% of the total net asset value of the Target
Companies as at 31 October 2023.
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37.

270

BUSINESS COMBINATION
(continued)

The acquisition of Tianjin GS and
Shunde Yuasa (the “first acquisition”)
(continued)

The consideration for the first acquisition shall be paid
in installments, with RMB60.0 million shall be paid
at completion, RMB60.0 million shall be paid on or
before the end of the first month following the date of
Completion; and the remaining consideration shall be
paid on or before the first anniversary of the date of
completion. In addition, after the third anniversary of
completion, the Sellers may exercise a put option and
require the Buyer to purchase an additional 10% of
the registered capital of the two or any of the Target
Companies. The purchase price of such additional
equity interests shall be prorated based on the audited
net assets of the two or any of the Target Companies
(as the case may be) as of 31 October 2023 or the
consideration for the transaction.

As a result of the above transactions, the Buyer
obtained control over Target Companies, which then
became subsidiaries of the Company on 31 October
2023.
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37.BUSINESS COMBINATION

(continued)

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

The acquisition of Tianjin GS and
Shunde Yuasa (the “first acquisition”)

(continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

31 December 2023

B =F#+"H=+—H

37.ZHBEMH (B

WEERZE T RIRESZ (MTHX

Wakg1) (&)

BRARRWEHRNRRAIEEREEZ

Target Companies as at the date of acquisition were as NABEWT
follows:
Fair value Fair value
recognised on recognised on
acquisition acquisition
(Tianjin GS) (Shunde Yuasa)
ST HRUR BB EFRERRRY
AREE AREE
(RiBffEL) (IBEZE)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREEFIT
Total non-current assets JERENEEMRE 380,761 169,543
Total current assets MBEEME 291,923 160,431
Total current liabilities FENE AL (422,952) (61,936)
Total non-current liabilities IERB A B (23,758) (18,082)
Total identifiable net assets at fair %A AEEFIERRY
value Al EE P ERER 225,974 249,956
Non-controlling interests JEVER (67,792) (74,987)
Gain on bargain purchase RizEEmEN
recognised in other income H U A K Wz
and gains in the consolidated EEA g
statement of profit or loss (89,127) (81,435)
Satisfied by: UFA AT
Cash "/E 114,174 137,650
Contingent consideration FARE 4,881 5,884
Total consideration BB 119,055 143,534
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37.

272

BUSINESS COMBINATION
(continued)

The acquisition of Tianjin GS and
Shunde Yuasa (the “first acquisition”)
(continued)

Since the acquisition, the Target Companies
contributed RMB281,909,000 to the Group’s turnover
and net profit of RMB2,103,000 to the consolidated
profit for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the period, the revenue and the profit before
tax of the Group for the period would have been
RMB14,289,686,000 and RMB508,230,000
respectively.

The acquisition of Tianjin Juli Material
Technology Co., Ltd. (the “second
acquisition”)

On 10 November 2023, Anhui Uplus New Energy,
a subsidiary of the Company, entered into an
agreement with three independent third parties, Toho
Zinc Co., LTD., GS Yuasa International Limited and
Hakua Trading Co., LTD. (hereinafter referred to as
“Seller 17, “Seller 2" and “Seller 3" respectively,
collectively referred to as the “Sellers”) to acquire a
total of 93.2973% equity interest of Tianjin TOHO
LEAD Recycling Co., Ltd. (later renamed to Tianjin JuLi
Material Technology Co., LTD., “Tianjin JuLi”), with
a consideration of RMB3 and RMB1 for each of the
three sellers. The agreement also stipulates that Tianjin
JuLi will be exempted from repaying the debts owed
to Seller 1 and Seller 2, totaling about RMB140 million,
after the signing date. The group will be responsible for
the handling of Tianjin JuLi ‘s employees.
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37.XHBAH (B

WERXERLRIEREEZE (MTBX
Wkg1) (&)

BRBERUR BEZT =6+
=t+—HIEFE BRABRAEESEME
288 A R #5281,909,00070 K & i A 4 A
K 52,103,00075

HE HICERF 3L RSB m 5 iR
Al ) 73 5l 73 A R 114,289,686,0007T K% A
£ #%508,230,0007T ©

WEXEFRDMERRERATE
(T58 Z R UkB&))

N2 =F+—B+8 > AREMNBAE
SN AE RE = KRB E =R
SRRk T =4~ GS Yuasa International Limited
JeHakua Trading Co., LTD. (A T RliEAE
B TER2 1 KBRS s IiEX
ERMBMERBEBRAS BERARE
FOMBRRAERAR TRERN)) &6+
93.2973%8I 1 =REANNEBDRIBA
R170 Het ARSI R INRE » KoF
FHBEZENHBRRNEERE 1 RE 2
HIETR > MR A ARIE140B 8T ZER
BEaERIERXERINETER
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(continueqd)

The acquisition of Tianjin Juli Material
Technology Co., Ltd. (the “second
acquisition”) (continued)

7. (FEH B)

WEREZZDMERRBRAE
(M =R Uekzl) (&)

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
UL BB R RESDRY
RNREE
RMB’000
AREEFIT
Total non-current assets IERENE ELRE 86,675
Total current assets MEIEEME 33,117
Total current liabilities mENEEAEEE (114,288)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAREEYERN
AR B E R EERE 5,504
Non-controlling interests R S (231)
Gain on bargain purchase recognised in other income 4% & 18 % 2k A9 ELth A K U
and gains in the consolidated statement of profit or  # P FESD A B U B =
loss 5,273)
Satisfied by: MTFHHHZA
Cash RE -

TR R - BTEREHARAR 273



Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR Mtz

31 December 2023
TE=F+"HA=+—H

37.BUSINESS COMBINATION 7.k ak (@
(continued)
The acquisition of Tianjin Juli Material KRR ERAMEREBERAR
Technology Co., Ltd. (the “second (B UslE)) (&)
acquisition”) (continued)
Since the acquisition, Tianjin JuLi contributed Nil to the BWEMR @22 _=F+"/F=+—
Group’s turnover and net loss of RMB3,957,000 to the BIEFE XERNAKREBRSMEEES
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December KR aimt g RS EEA R 3,957,0007T
2023.
Had the combination taken place at the beginning e RV ETT > AEBRHBANKE &
of the period, the revenue and the profit before AT =AD& A R #13,606,421,00070
tax of the Group for the period would have been K N\ R #418,530,0007T ©
RMB13,606,421,000 and RMB418,530,000
respectively.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the RN B A BMNIRERESITUWT !

acquisitions of subsidiaries is as follows:

RMB’000

ARBTFT

Cash consideration BERE (251,824)

Cash consideration not paid yet AEZMHNRERE 131,824

Cash and bank balances acquired FTEIR & M IRTTAE R 182,776
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in st AR E ZHFIEIRSREN

cash flows from investing activities RERIREZBYRAFER 62,776
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38.RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

(a) BRNEEFBRREMM S FMRHZ
S0 AEEEFEATEERNAUT

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the

following material transactions with related parties FERS !
during the year:
2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MIsE AR®FT ARET T
Purchases of raw materials [RBIEATIBERME
from related companies (i)
Related companies owned by BB R EBE A L+
Dr. Dong Li and his associates ~ ##A BIREE A E 44,271 36,357
Sales of products to related RIFAEATHEER
companies (i)
Related companies owned by ~ EZ1E+HEHBME A+
Dr. Dong Li and his associates ~ #B RIFE AT 74,299 100,635
Interest expense to related ERIEALTZGFFIE
parties A 38(b)(i)
Non-controlling shareholders of i@ A 5] Z JEIERR G
subsidiaries 87 307
Note: B 5

0] MEAEABETEMMNEE RERHE
ENRBEEEZENERREAER
s AR EBILE = HiRERES
UHE=H B RENEIETT

(i) The purchases of raw materials and sales of
products with the related companies were made
according to prices mutually agreed between the
parties on terms not less favourable to the Group
than terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties.

LR BB R R 8 E R A
BALXZIFER LTRSS +HTA
EEENRERZAFERERS -

The related party transactions in respect of the
purchases of raw materials and sales of products
above also constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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38.RELATED PARTY

276

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

38. Fl

BANLRS (&

As at 31 December 2023, a loan amounting to
RMB8,000,000 (2022: RMB4,000,000) from
non-controlling shareholders of a subsidiary was
unsecured, bore interest rate at 4.35% (2022:
6.60%) per annum and had no fixed terms of
repayment. A loan amounting to RMB90,500,000
(2022: RMB67,200,000) from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary was unsecured,
interest-free and had no fixed terms.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all balances
with the related companies owned by Dr. Dong
Li and his associates were traded in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of
repayment.
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(b) Outstanding balances with related (b) EARAEANLRIKREIZELERR -
parties:
Due from related parties Due to related parties
FEEIEA LIS FEfIRREALRVE
2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEZ= = —EZ= 2
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz AREFT ARETT ARBTR ARBT=®
Current: TRE
Non-controlling NI 0)
shareholders of FERKE
subsidiaries - - 99,758 72,371
Related companies EXBIRHBE (i
ownedby Dr. DongLi ~ ATHEBNEE
and his associates NG 7,492 26,028 32,048 44,833
7,492 26,028 131,806 117,204
Notes: MizE :

RWZEBE_=%+"B=+—H %kH8
—EMB AT ZIFERREZERA
18,000,000t (ZEZZF 1 AR
#4,000,0007T) % EILIF R EH]E
4.35% (CEB -4 :6.60%) st B &
HEEEERI - URKE—REA
BZEERREZ—FEERARE
90,500,0007T (ZE__5F : AR
67,200,0007T) % MIKIF - 2 B R EE
TEERH

i) RIB-_=ER_T__H+_8

=B FBEHEFH LI RHBE
ALTHEANBEARNERERES
MEEIRR s R REREEERH
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38.RELATED PARTY 3.FABEANLTRG (&

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Compensation of key management (c) =EEFEEEAENIME:

personnel of the Group:

2023 2022

—_E=F s F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT AREF T

Basic salaries and other benefits HEAFFEREMER 9,616 9,225

Equity-settled share option expenses LU 4 EHIEE IS HERT X 870 778

Pension scheme contributions BIREETBIERR 211 174

10,697 10,177

Further details of directors’ emoluments are EREEMNE 2 E—THBENTHE

included in note 9 to the financial statements. HRFRMIETO o
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39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

2023

Financial assets

39. AR DTN ER T A

BRI ERMTARRSHARPEREENT

—T ——

TREE

Financial
assets at
fair value
through Financial assets
profit or at fair value through
loss other comprehensive income
AAEE
ZEA
REM AREBEZEHHA
tHEE Ht2EWENEMEE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated Debt Equity amortised
as such investments investments cost Total
RS A
5a HEZ
Jafliisha BHRE #EMRE EHEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT AE%®Tn AR%TR AR%ETR ARETE
Equity investments designated ~ $5TEHRA A BEE )
at fair value through other HAHMEENE
comprehensive income NEERE - - 11,967 - 11,967
Debt investments at fair value NABEEEA
through other comprehensive Hith 2 mUaE
income BHRE - 189,258 - - 189,258
Trade receivables B SRR - - - 3247241 3,247,241
Financial assets included in SFATBIRIE KA
prepayments, other receivables  FEWFIE R Efth
and other assets BENEREE - - - 283,656 283,656
Financial assets at fair value NABEEE A
through profit or loss BRNEREE 328,579 - - - 328,579
Pledged deposits BIRRER - - - 965,767 965,767
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEEN - - - 1563343 1,563,343
Total st 328,679 189,258 11,967 6,060,007 6,589,811
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39. AR DTN ER T A

CATEGORY (continued) (%)
Financial liabilities TRaE
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or
loss
DB
BEE A
BEH
ERERE
Financial
Mandatorily liabilities at
designated amortised
as such cost Total
ISR A
EEg FHER
Pl EHaE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®BTR ARETR®
Trade and bills payables BSRNTIBERECER - 3,003,992 3,003,992
Financial liabilities included in STARMERTIBERESE BN
other payables and accruals TRaE - 522,105 522,105
Lease liabilities HEaR - 47,142 47,142
Financial liabilities at fair value NABELE T ABRD
through profit or loss TRER 10,340 - 10,340
Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHERITEE - 4,518,495 4,518,495
Total st 10,340 8,091,734 8,102,074
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39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

280

39. AR DTN ER T A

CATEGORY (continued) =
2022 (Restated) 2RI F ®&EY)
Financial assets EREE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through Financial assets
profit or at fair value through
loss  other comprehensive income
NAEE
BIA
Bl NABEEHHA
EHEE HtzERaNE®REE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
designated Debt Equity amortised
assuch  investments  investments cost Total
g SR
Gl HEZ
jflii=nd RERE EalRE THEE a5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
Equity investments designated ~ $STEHA A BEEEH
at fair value through other SAHMEEIEDN
comprehensive income BatRE - - 11,834 - 11,834
Debt investments at fair value NAEEEE AHM
through other comprehensive FENENERRE
income - 161,405 - - 161,405
Trade receivables BHENIE - - - 2736224 2,736,224
Financial assets included in AN TIE Hith
prepayments, other receivables  FEIRFER
and other assets HtEENEHEE - - - 125,487 125,487
Financial assets at fair value NAEEEH AR
through profit or loss NemEE 295,161 - - - 295,161
Pledged deposits BIRFER - - - 793,806 793,806
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY - - - 436,194 436,194
Total st 295,161 161,405 11,834 4,091,711 4,560,111
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39. AR DTN ER T A

CATEGORY (continued) (%
Financial liabilities AR
Financial
liabilities at
fair value
through
profit or
loss
NAEE
EEEA
BEr
EHER
Financial
Mandatorily liabilities at
designated amortised
as such cost Total
Gt SFEN
pifligicha THBEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARBTRT ARETRT
Trade and bills payables BSRNTIBERECER - 2,361,044 2,361,044
Financial liabilities included in AR IR R S & K
other payables and accruals THBE - 322,700 322,700
Lease liabilities HEESR - 29,171 29,171
Financial liabilities at fair value through AABEEEFABEN
profit or loss THMEE 13 - 13
Interest-bearing bank borrowings HERITEE - 2,710,087 2,710,087
Total Mt 13 5,423,002 5,423,015
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40.

282

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments approximate to their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of
cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade
receivables, trade and bills payables, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assets and financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals, approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the
chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are
discussed with the audit committee twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The
following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values.
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40.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
amortised costs which have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The changes in fair
value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance
risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31
December 2023 were assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of unlisted equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss have been estimated
using a market-based valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the
directors to determine comparable public companies
(peers) based on industry, size, leverage and strategy,
and to calculate an appropriate price multiple, such
as enterprise value to earnings before interest,
taxes, depreciation and amortisation (‘EV/EBITDA”)
multiple and price to earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for
each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an earnings measure. The
trading multiple is then discounted for considerations
such as illiquidity and size differences between the
comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is
applied to the corresponding earnings measure of
the unlisted equity investments to measure the fair
value. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation technique, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which
are recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the
reporting period.

31 December 2023
—E-=F+-B=+-H

40. R TEARBERARD

BEER (&

SHRIRTEREFRBE D Z ANEERES
SHA AR Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkﬁfﬁﬁ% BLURRRT
B2 BRTHER EERE AR fﬁﬁ)ﬁﬁfﬁ%@
HARRIRERFAE - HRNAEENR T "=
F+A=+—HEtRETEREESTE

NEBRERN LA DEEEBRTESMTE
o

NABEEEFTABTAIF MR SRS
Z2rRnBEBEEERTEIREMENERE
AEBENBRRA N ISERGERITEE
HESREFRTE -RE - ERRRBE
ERELER EHAT (A1) » U EHA
AIELRABFHEBESEBRER NEEB
EHFRAE - IRIE T E AR &R (TEV/
EBITDA ) Z# &= (TP/E)) (B8 &
U ELER ARz hEEERUBNGE
HESAE -BREHERRATREZEE
FIER > BB M R A B LA B 2 Y
REZEETIR - B IREBEALIE L
IR EZHRRAGERER  UFTEAR
BE -BEFRA REERMmMELNGS
RABE Gt ALEMBRTR URAREA
AEBEES GTAEBD YBSE TARS
HARHRIGEE
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40.

284

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income and certain investment at fair value through
profit or loss have been estimated using the asset-
based approach. The assets of the unlisted company
include cash and cash equivalents, short-term
principal-protected investment and investments in
portfolio companies. Management has assessed
that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
the short-term principal-protected investment and
the liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts
with consideration of the nature and the short-term
maturities of these instruments. The fair values of the
investments in portfolio companies are estimated using
different valuation methodologies according to the
nature of individual investments, such as the trading
price of listed shares, price of recent investments,
market multiples and the discounted cash flow method.

The fair values of debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, which are bills receivable,
have been estimated using a discounted cash flow
valuation model based on the interest rate yield curve.

The Group invests in other unlisted investments, which
represent the right to receive the proceeds from future
sales of the properties. The Group has estimated the
fair values of these unlisted investments by using a
market-based valuation technique based on the selling
price of comparable properties.

The Group enters derivative financial instruments
with various counterparties, principally financial
institutions with good credit ratings. Derivative financial
instruments, including commodity future and option
contracts, are based on quoted market prices.
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40.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value

31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

40.FRITEAARBERAR

BEREHR (&

DRBEERER

TREFIFERERTENRANEEER

R

BASIEEBHEE

Fair value measurement using

AREEFEFMARR
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
ERTHE EAFITHRR
TERTIRERE WA BASE
(B1E) (582/8) (583/8) faxt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETFTT ARETFTT ARET T
2023 —EC=E
Equity investments BERAAEBEED
designated at fair stAEMZEmE
value through other R MIRE
comprehensive income - - 11,967 11,967
Debt investments at fair NREBEEEHHA
value through other Hitt2mE Ik
comprehensive income BBKRE - 189,258 - 189,258
Financial assets at fair value =~ AR EEZETA
through profit or loss BENEREE 76 25,284 303,219 328,579
Total 4act 76 214,542 315,186 529,804
2022 (Restated) “ETF (KEY)
Equity investments designated S EIRA A BEE
at fair value through other StAEMEE G
comprehensive income WERERE - - 11,834 11,834
Debt investments at fair value AREBEEEHA
through other comprehensive Hi2E R
income BHEE - 161,405 - 161,405
Financial assets at fair value AREEEHTARE
through profit or loss mHNEMEE 136 51,815 243,210 295,161
Total “ast 136 213,220 255,044 468,400
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40.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

286

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level

3 during the year are as follows:

40. R TEANREBERARD

EBEREHR (&

[REERER (B

FREIBANBESELIUWT !

2023 2022

—EBCC=F —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
(Restated)
(LE5)
At 1 January n—EB—H 255,044 182,680

Total losses recognised in other EREMEEREERZ

comprehensive income 51848 % (17) 65)
Total gains recognised in profit or loss EREmER 2 W mARER 5,876 51,004
Additions NE 60,000 20,000
Disposals HE (6,066) (468)
Exchange realignment FE R Az 349 1,893
At 31 December R+-HA=+—H 315,186 255,044
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40. R TEAREBERARD
BERBR &)

40.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

[REEER (BB)

Fair value hierarchy (continueq)
BARBEENEE

Liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value measurement using

RREEHEFRBER
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EATRE EAFIEE
ERMRE BWAYE AR
(E18) (52/8) (53[8) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TT ARETR AREFT ARETR
2023 —E°=
Financial liabilties at fair value ~ AnNBEEEFABZN
through profit or loss By =X - - 10,340 10,340
2022 -
Financial liabilties at fair value A EEEE ABEN
through profit or loss TREE 13 - - 13

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1
and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for
both financial assets and financial liabilities.

RN =FRZEB"F+R=+—
B> AnBESAEMETE —BRNE_E
Mz EBEEE hkeMEEREREED
REBAHBHE=BR-
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41.

288

FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other
than derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings, convertible bonds and cash
and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out
in note 2.5 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term
debt obligations with floating rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and the
Group’s equity.

Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2023

A R EREIEEN KRR

FEENETELMTE GTETARID H5t
BIRTRHEMBEE AR ESF AR RE
HRER -SRI ANTEZRARARE
EHNEERE AEERARBHMERNE
EXREE I E 57 RUGRIER 8 57 AR
B SHREKEERESE-

FEEERTIAEENTIZARA/FEE

B INERER EERR KRB EREM B
FEEERTREREERNEENRR A
RIEERIS T XXt - REE AR E TR/
Gt BRI MmN EE25°

) 2 JE B

FEBREHSHXRESH MBI RERERR
FEBLUFFH XA BN RAEEER

TRINTREFMAEEMIFTEBERT X
BIER] EE BN AEREIRAN SN R AEE R
mR IR SRR BRUE



Notes to Financial Statements B4 7 #R = Mi:E /

31 December 2023
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41.FINANCIAL RISK M. EREREEENREE
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (#
AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued) MERE (&
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in in profit (decrease)
basis points before tax in equity*
EHE AT EH R
o GRiZy)  s8mn Gl  sEmn 7 G
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFRT  AR®TR

2023 —EZ=F

Us$ E7T 50 (2,500) -
Us$ E7T (50) 2,500 -
HKD BT 50 (2,278) -
HKD BT (50) 2,278 -
2022 =TT

RMB AREE 50 (118) -
RMB AREE (50) 118 -
uss ETT 50 (2,357) -
Us$ E7T (50) 2,357 -
MYR BERADRSTH 50 (55) -
MYR ERADRSTH (50) 55 -
HKD BT 50 (1,626) -
HKD BT (50) 1,626 -

Excluding retained profits * REERBEF]
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41.

290

FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currencies. The Group operates in Hong Kong, the
United States, Singapore, Malaysia and Chinese
Mainland. For companies in Chinese Mainland, their
principal activities are transacted in RMB. For other
companies outside of Chinese Mainland, their principal
activities are transacted in currencies other than
the units’ functional currencies. Approximately 42%
(2022: 42%) of the Group’s sales were denominated in
currencies other than the functional currencies of the
operating units making the sales, whilst approximately
58% (2022: 58%) of costs were denominated in the
units” functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities) and the Group’s equity.
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31 December 2023
—EC=F+ZA=t+—H

41.FINANCIAL RISK M. eRERSIEENKREER
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (%
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) ShEE LB (2
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) Increase/
in exchange in profit (decrease)
rate before tax in equity”
Ex Al F i
E3E(FR) 18, GR)  38h0 G~
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AREFT ARBTT
2023 ZZC=F
If RMB weakens against US$ HMARBRETEE 5 23,786 =
If RMB strengthens against US$ WARBERETHE (5) (23,786) -
If RMB weakens against HK$ HARERBLEE 5 (567) -
If RMB strengthens against HK$ MAREREBTHE (5) 567 -
If RMB weakens against EUR$ HARBRETEE 5 9,481 -
If RMB strengthens against EUR$ MARBREUTHE (5) (9,481) -
2022 =S
If RMB weakens against US$ HARBRETEE 5 17,887 -
If RMB strengthens against US$ HMARBRETHE () (17,887) -
If RMB weakens against HK$ HMARBRABTEME 5 (15,377) -
If RMB strengthens against HK$ HARBRBTHE ®) 15,377 -
If RMB weakens against EUR$ WMARERETRE 5 260 -
If RMB strengthens against EUR$ WARBRETHE () (260) -
Excluding retained profits * FEERBE
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41

292

.FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Management has made a detailed analysis of the credit
risk of different customers and divided the customers
into two classes, i.e., type A customers, which have
good credit ratings or have coverage by letters of
credit or other forms of credit insurance, and type B
customers, which are the other diversified customers.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis, and therefore, the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December.
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41.FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continueq)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2023

31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

M. =REREIERN KRR

(&

EEER (#7)
RABRHORFEFGERSA (B)

W_E2_=F+-"H=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B FaHA
EEE#E SHRHEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3  approach Total
1 BoREEL FIWE  WIEAHE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Trade receivables* 8 R IE - - - 3247241 3247241
Financial assets included STATEMFUIE HAth
in prepayments, other P IE R E A
receivables and other assets BEENGHEE 283,657 - - - 283,657
Pledged deposits BIEEER 965,767 - - - 965,767
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEEY 1,563,343 = = - 1,563,343
2,812,767 - - 3,247,241 6,060,008
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41.FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2022

41, &Rl S IR B A R EBER

(&

EEERE (&
RABRY R IR AIF ()

KRB _F#+-"HA=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 B TRHA
EEE#E LHRREEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
H1FEER HOPSER R BEAE st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTR ARBETRT AR®TR AR®TR
Trade receivables* 8 5 B - - - 2736224 2,736,224
Financial assets included STATEMFUE HAth
in prepayments, other e IE R E A
receivables and other assets ~ BEMNSREE 125,487 - - - 125,487
Pledged deposits BERER 793,806 - - - 793,806
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 436,194 - - - 436,194
1,356,487 - - 2736224 4,001,711

*

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 21.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s

exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.

294  Leoch International Technology Limited — Annual Report 2023

- MAEEERABEREEETRENGNE
S REWGIET = > A EHEE RN E R I

21K EE -

FEERBEZRWRIEEERNEER RO

EEBIEIN M BRI EE214KEE -



Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

41.FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continueq)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty, by geographical region and by
industry sector. There are no significant concentrations
of credit risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’s trade receivables are widely dispersed in
different sectors and industries.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank borrowings and lease liabilities. In addition,
banking facilities have been put in place for contingency
purposes.

31 December 2023
“ECZf#+-A=+-H
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41.FINANCIAL RISK M. EHEMEEENREE
MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES (#&
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) mBEERAR (&
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, AEENEME BN RELRAIR
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is as INE A I
follows:
Less than 1to 15
1 year years Total
DRME 1Z158 st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR ARETRT

2023 —E-=
Lease liabilities HE&R 20,125 35,050 55,175
Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTEIRITEE 3,582,025 1,190,710 4,772,735
Trade and bills payables B ENTIBMENERE 3,003,992 - 3,003,992
Other payables and accruals HnENRIaMEER 522,105 = 522,105
7,128,247 1,225,760 8,354,007
2022 —ETTFE
Lease liabilities HEAR 7,871 23,095 30,966
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STEIRTEE 2,706,391 72,527 2,778,918
Trade and bills payables B EMFIBRENZE 2,361,044 - 2,361,044
Other payables and accruals HMECTIaREt &R 322,700 - 322,700

5,398,006 95,622 5,493,628
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41.FINANCIAL RISK

MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by total
assets. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

31 December 2023
—E=F+"HA=+—H

41, & RhE S IR B A R EBER

(&

BEARER

FEREAEENTRERARARIERE
RIS SRR R R R B AN EE RS
FHED URRKRRNEBERAZERS

AEERBEERREHEEASARE
RAFL A - REE PRGBS FRENR
BARREBEANBITHRES A #
FUREELRB - BE"_ T =FA"ZF
T THE+ZRA=1+—HILFER BEEX
WER BEREE 7 e o

AEENEES ML REREA BhES
S BIRIT A B S B - RS HIRE
EBELEMT

2023 2022

—EC=HF T HF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FTT AREEFT

Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEIRITEE 4,457,363 2,710,087
Total assets BEEME 14,095,244 10,494,395
Gearing ratio BEBEX 32% 26%
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42.

208

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognised in their entirety

As part of its normal business, the Group entered
into a trade receivable factoring arrangement (the
“Factoring Arrangement”) and transferred certain
trade receivables to banks. The Group is exposed to
default risks of the trade debtors after the transfer.
Subsequent to the transfer, the Group did not retain
any rights on the use of the trade receivables, including
the sale, transfer or pledge of the trade receivables to
any other third parties. The original carrying value of
the trade receivables transferred under the Factoring
Arrangement that have not been settled as at 31
December 2023 amounted to RMB410,880,000
(2022: RMB407,147,000). The carrying amount of
the assets that the Group continued to recognise as
at 31 December 2023 was RMB410,880,000 (2022:
RMB407,147,000) and that of the associated liabilities
as at 31 December 2023 was RMB327,160,000
(2022: RMB300,102,000), which were recognised as
collateralised bank advances, secured (note 28).
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43.

Notes to Financial Statements BAFEER TR izt

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS (continued)

Financial assets that are derecognised
in their entirety

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the Group factored trade receivables to a bank on
a non-recourse basis for cash. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards associated with the factored trade
receivables. Accordingly, the Group derecognised
the full carrying amount of the trade receivables
factored. The carrying amount of the trade receivables
derecognised as at 31 December 2023 was
RMBG67,076,000 (2022: RMB61,056,000).

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified
to conform with the current year’s presentation
and disclosures. The Directors consider that such
presentation would provide a more direct comparison
to better reflect the financial performance of the Group.

42.

43.
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44 . STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

300

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

44. BRAB) Z A FFAR MR

BERANRABRRBREHRZMBRRRZER

the Company at the end of the reporting period is as wr:
follows:
2023 2022
=== —ECF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS EREEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZKRE 1,124,463 1,492,181
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY 837 6,333
Financial assets at fair value through RAEBEEHFAEEDN
profit or loss THMEE 76 136
Total current assets MBEEME 913 6,469
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEER
Other payables and accruals Hih e FBE R ESTER 3,222 377
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FFERITEE - 276,843
Total current liabilities MEEELRE 3,222 277,220
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FENaERE (2,309) (270,751)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEMRERTSHER
LIABILITIES 1,122,154 1,221,430
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREEE
Convertible bonds AR ES 61,132 -
Net assets BETE 1,061,022 1,221,430
EQUITY T
Issued capital BETIRA 116,971 116,250
Equity component of convertible bonds AR ESFNER D 26,623 -
Reserves (note) R (sE) 917,428 1,105,180
Total equity AR EE 1,061,022 1,221,430
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44.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

44. KRB Z BABARREKR (&

(continued)
Note: BIsE
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AANBIZEEBENT
Share Share Exchange
premium Shareholders’ option fluctuation Accumulated
account  contribution reserve reserve losses Total
ERKE
R EER BRRHE  EREHE it Bt azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBTn AR%TR ARETT AREFn AR%ETR
At 1 January 2022 RZZE-__&#—F—H 1,149,365 337,830 37,932 (44,313) (299,914 1,180,900
Loss and total comprehensive EEEEERK
loss for the year FHEEBEEE - - - - (196,577) (196,577)
Exercise of share options fIfbiEmRE 136 - (54) - - 82
Lapse of the share options ~ BEARIER N - - (25,745) - 25,745 -
Exchange differences on MEBINEBN
translation of foreign ERELE
operations - - - 115,859 - 115,859
Equity-settled share option ~ LUEREEH
arrangements ERELH - - 4,916 - - 4,916
At 31 December 2022 and 1 RZZE__"&F
January 2023 +ZB=+-Bk
&2 =F—-A—H 1,149,501 337,830 17,049 71,546 (470,746) 1,105,180
Loss and total comprehensive A FE SRR
loss for the year SHEGBEE - - - - (55,110) (55,110)
Exercise of share options BRI 9,297 - (2,825) - - 6,472
Exchange differences on BEBINERN
translation of foreign ERER
operations - - - 27,538 - 27,538
Dividends paid EfRE - - - - (171,660)  (171,660)
Equity-settled share option  LUIEZREER
arrangements BT - - 5,008 - = 5,008
At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=%
+ZB=1+—H 1,158,798 337,830 19,232 99,084 (697,516) 917,428
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44.

45.

302

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for share-
based payments in note 2.5 to the financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to retained profits should the related options
expire.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 26 March 2024.
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Five Year Financial Summary

hFEMBREE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and ~ #E$E B O TIENEBIZB MR ERMNAERNBER
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial B EEENEEREE - BENRIEERER R
years, as extracted from the published audited financial Z#EFWTF :

statements is set out below:

Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=+—-HLEE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
&= g -F B CBIEE _Z-AE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TT ARETR AR®TT ARETR

Restated Restated Restated Restated
RE5| RE5| 5| 5|
RESULTS ES
REVENUE Wi 13,471,235 12,845,859 11,303,125 9,631,362 8,362,722
Cost of sales SHERA (11,527,528) (11,251,085  (9,793419) (8443083  (7,347,336)
Gross profit EF 1,943,707 1,594,774 1,509,706 1,188,279 1,015,386
Other income and gains HAUA Rz 240,766 292,494 92,997 108,360 208,187
Selling and distrioution HERDHEES
expenses (464,279) (389,151) (586,076) (481,179) (392,009)
Administrative expenses  TEEI (446,084) (333,676) (306,212) (266,359) (273,530)
Research and development ~ FF Al 2
costs (371,868) (382,868) (239,446) (172,720) (119,347)
Impairment losses on assets & ERIEE51E 4,134 (27,516) (23,761) (20,675) (6,013)
Other expenses Hitgax (38,968) (14,443) (102,504) (36,427) 41,717)
Finance costs B (223,554) (156,222) (143,874) (158,180) (197,772)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX HMAnEH 643,854 583,392 200,740 161,099 193,165
Income tax expense e (76,018) (80,648) (24,566) (13,357) (38,706)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR TEERH 567,836 502,744 176,174 147,742 154,459
Profit for the year MTFALEEREE
attributable to: A
Owners of the parent ISUNCIEZ 2PN 535,372 481,075 145,571 133,510 159,512
Non-controling interests JEER S 32,464 21,669 30,603 14,232 (5,053)
567,836 502,744 176,174 147,742 154,459
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Five Year Financial Summary RAEEFEFE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BEE B ENRIFERER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
As at 31 December
R+—B=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EZ= “ECTF ET-F C"EBEFE _—ZEhHE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FRT ARETR AREBTxT AREFT ARETT
TOTAL ASSETS BEME 14,095,244 10,494,395 9,596,131 9,072,832 8,671,526
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEEE (9,506,604)  (6,458,160)  (6,017,086)  (5,672,896) (5,397,337
NON-CONTROLLING E[S2i
INTERESTS (389,478) (213,957) (192,428) (160,310) (156,443)
4,199,162 3,822,078 3,386,637 3,239,626 3,117,746

304
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